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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OPERATING PERFORMANCE DATA REXRB[EE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“E-ZE —F-C —F=- “E-FE “E-NE

For the year ended 31 December RMB'000 RMBO00  Change RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BE+-AZ+-HLEE ARBTR ARETFT g ARETR ARBTR ARETT

Revenue LiON 22,725,317 23,805,354 -45% 26,521,193 19,576,938 22,002,943

Gross profit i 1,462,615 2755622 ~46%% 5851971 2,707,118 2,993437

(Loss)/Profit for the year FEB 8/

gl (299,382) 201,186 -2488% 2,741,616 530,354 922,749

(Loss)/Profit attributable to RREL

shareholders (B8),/ &7 (375,700) 156808 -3396% 2685170 517,065 883,726

(Losses)/Earnings per share H&(E’,]E)/
B

— Basic — &K RMBARM(041)T RMBAR®0I7TT  -3412% RAMBARM2BT RMBARM0S7TT RMBARMOITT

— Diluted — &%  RMBARM(041)7T RMBARMOITT  3412% RVBAR293m RAMBARMO0S6T RMBARM097T
FINANCIAL POSITION DATA B RO g

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

“B-ZE it St S it = it e 22 —E-NE

As at 31 December RMB’000 RMBO00  Change RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

W+ZA=+-H AR®TR ARETT & ARETFT ARETT ARETT

Total assets %@é?@ 22,811,172 26,151,299 -12.8% 24,44 884 20,157,279 21,174,601

Non-current assets FRBRE 11,103,716 1250445 -113% 11,394,265 10829540 11,374,054

Current assets THEE 11,707,456 13,628,854 -14.1% 13,048,619 9,327,739 9,800,607

Total liabilities BEE 13,055,814 16,049,823 -18.7% 13,841,932 11,684,541 13,075,286

Current liabilities nEaE 9,117,898 12166884 -25.1% 10,089,446 801,160 7583220

Non-current liabiltes FERHEE 3,937,916 38899 14% 3752486 3673381 5492066

Net current assets RYEEFE 2,589,558 1461970 77.1% 2,959,173 1316579 2217387

Net assets BEFE 9,755,358 10101476 -34% 10600952 8472738 8,099,375

Equity attributable to shareholders  FR B fE i 5 9,149,079 9501623 -37% 10,038.270 7,863,267 TAT3456

FINANCIAL INDICATORS BBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

BETZA=+—BLFE Bz —TC-Zf T C—ZT-TF _ZT-NF

Inventory turnover days FERAERY 109 126 95 95 98

Trade and bill receivables [EWE 5 RRERIA

turnover days (Note 7) FERE (fit1) 29 28 25 30 27

Trade and bill payables ENESRERHER

turnover days (Note 2) [EE R (fit2) 72 78 63 61 62
Current ratio ML= 13 1] 13 12 13

Net debt to equity ratio (Note 3} BEFEERILE
(Hat3) 0.60 063 045 052 086

Return on equity (Note 4) B EE (ffzt4) -4% 2% 30% 7% 12%

Note 1. Based on the average of the trade and bills receivables and financial M BEEVNNMEFERKESREEFIANUR
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income at the BAFEAEEEEH A AR M2 ERE
beginning and ending of the year over sales revenue for the WemEE 2 FHEBRASFOHE KA
respective year and multiplied by 360 days. FLAB60OKRFTE R -

Note 2: Based on the average of the trade and bills payables and supply M2 BEEVINFERNESHREEIFAUR
chain financing at the beginning and ending of the year over cost HEERE 2 IR USFHHERAR
of sales for the respective year and multiplied by 360 days. FLA36ORETE B -

Note 3: Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and M3 : BESFERHEELBBNRIRE LIRS
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders at LEMA KRB ERRITF R AR R E(L
each year end. R ESH -

Note 4: Based on each year's profit attributable to shareholders over the Hiata : IRIEE A0 R R RS i Tl R A o2 B A T
average of the equity attributable to shareholders at the beginning FRFEBRRELER 2 FHIEES
and ending of the financial year. i e

02
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CORPORATE PROFILE

CORPORATE PROFILE

Texhong International Group Limited (formerly known as Texhong
Textile Group Limited ) (the "Company’, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) (stock code: 2678) is one of the global
largest cotton textile manufacturers and is a leading textile
enterprise focusing on manufacturing high value-added core-spun
textile products. The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of quality yarns, grey fabrics and
garment fabrics. Since 1997, the Group has grown rapidly and has
over 5,000 customers in the People’s Republic of China (“China” or
“the PRC") and overseas, with its sales network spanning across
many countries and regions around the world, including the PRC,
Vietnam, North America, Europe, Brazil, Turkey, Bangladesh, Japan
and South Korea. With its sales headquarter established in Shanghai,
the Group has production bases in operation in the PRC, Vietnam,
Turkey, the Americas respectively, with major production facilities
comprising about 4.18 million spindles and about 1,700 weaving
and knitting machines and the related dyeing equipment as of
31 December 2023.

TEBN

AUTEBREBERAR (BRI EGEERS
RAED([ARR]  EREMBARGE A%
E ) (DR - 2678) R 2 B Z AR 4 @
BlEm Yy —  ERALNEWINER S &E
MEECE AEENTEEKARENEE
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TEXHONG

On behalf of the Company’s
board of directors (the “Board”),
| present the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 to the
shareholders of the Company.

RAEBERRARBDESS(ES
2 AARIARREIFEEE
E-EC=HF+T-A=T-HLF
ENEFEE-

Hong Tianzhu # X #
Chairman £ /&

TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED KRITEFREBER A A



ERHESE (R
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

RESULTS

In 2023, the global economy remained in a state of volatility, as the
macro-level trends that had significantly impacted multiple
industries worldwide in 2022 have now trickled down to a more
micro level, yielding tangible consequences. The ongoing
international geopolitical tensions, reduced trade and supply chain
efficiencies and inflationary pressures have further amplified the
complexities and difficulties that enterprises are facing. Being the
first full year in the post-pandemic era for the domestic market,
2023 has brought a renewed sense of vitality to the consumer
market after a long stagnant period. Still, the reality that must be
faced included shifts in the global economic growth model, as well
as the post pandemic lifestyle and concept changes, which have
greatly affected consumer behavior and market sentiment. For the
textile and apparel industry in particular, apart from observing the
overall trend of consumption downgrade, we were also witnessing a
shift in consumer preferences towards concepts such as sustainable
development, ethical procurement and digitalization. These factors
all contributed to major adjustments within the current supply
system and order structure. Nonetheless, the domestic textile and
apparel market has experienced a substantial recovery in 2023. In
contrast, the overseas markets remained relatively lackluster, with
industry destocking efficiency falling short of expectations.
Combined with the cautious sourcing strategy of downstream
retailers, such developments exerted pressure on the pricing power
and profit margin of the supply chain.

Against this challenging backdrop, the Group recognises the
imperative of embracing adaptability and resilience to navigate
shifting market dynamics and achieve long-term sustainable growth.
Therefore, during the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the
Group placed substantial emphasis on controlling capital
expenditures, optimising resources, and streamlining management
processes, all with the aim of fostering a healthier internal
environment. For instance, the Group prioritised investments that
demonstrate a clear potential for return on investment and align
strategically with our long-term objectives. This approach aims to
preserve financial flexibility and mitigate unnecessary risks. At the
same time, the Group focused its resources on product segments
with better competitive advantages and higher market potential, and
optimised its product portfolio and marketing efforts accordingly.
Furthermore, the Group sought to strengthen regional production
capacity and bolster regional supply chain flexibility by promoting
vertical integration and fostering supplier partnerships, thereby
mitigating risks related to global trade volatility and improving
operational flexibility.

E
—ECZF EREBEDERNKBZT  FFE
—E O _FRARERRETRENLER

SHENSELEZEINEMBNER  YELT
DENER - RENBERMEBARRRE
B 5 R A R 2 R P (K AL 38 R JBE ) B3 — 25 hn
Bl T EFEERAEMIEME - 8 AU E
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BEURHEE A RBS  BEAUYET
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MEEBRAMTEEBERAR -BEW
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RARERE@HRE N  YREENRYBE SRR
B —B0NRE  SERBVHEE ML REE
THEOER - RS ERBEEIRAZOE
FNARBERRENOEMBE - LI RAIK
BICEMESTEHEITIE - LI AEEED
MRS L EER S WRBHSERES
BB RS (R B R AL 08 (R I (L e g 08
T - e B K B 2 3RS 50K E) R RE HO AL B 3 £2
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ERHESE (R
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Even though the efforts of all employees of the Group have led to
some progress, still more time is needed before the full results can
be manifested. In the first half of the Year, the Group focused on
processing and resolving the legacy issues of the previous year,
especially the impact of macro-level trends on all aspects of the
business. After a series of internal adjustments, the Group started
experiencing positive changes and results in the second half of the
year. Regrettably, although operating performance improved in the
second half of the year, the loss incurred in the first half of the year
resulted in the reporting of a loss for the annual results, signifying
the first year of financial loss since the Group's establishment. In
2023, the Group's sales revenue was approximately RMB22.7 billion
and the net loss was approximately RMB299.4 million.

OUTLOOK

Despite the persistent macroeconomic uncertainties and the
normalisation of certain market trends and changes, the Group
maintains an optimistic outlook on the resilience of the textile
industry and the robustness of its own business. The market has
endured its trough, and the Group has largely overcome the major
challenges it previously encountered, gradually setting itself on the
right track and is prepared to forge ahead. In the upcoming vyear,
the Group will remain committed to the strategic objectives that it
set previously, focusing on innovation, sustainable development, and
operational excellence, while continuously optimising corporate
assets and financial health. In terms of market positioning, we aim to
strengthen our competitive position and seize emerging market
opportunities through focusing on our advantages, and believe that
the Group will emerge stronger from the current challenges and
deliver long-term value to our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of our shareholders for their unwavering interest in
and support for the Group.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

25 March 2024
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EHBEWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group hereby reports its annual results for the Year to its
shareholders. During the Year, the Group's revenue decreased by
45% to approximately RMB22.7 billion as compared with the
previous year. The Group's net loss was approximately RMB299.4
million, compared with a net profit of approximately RMB201.2
million for the previous year. Loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company was approximately RMB375.7 million versus profit
attributable to shareholders of approximately RMB156.8 million for
the previous year. Basic loss per share was RMBO0.41 versus basic
earning per share of RMBO0.17 for the previous year.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the aggregate sales achieved by
sizeable textile enterprises amounted to approximately RMB2,287.9
billion in 2023, representing a year-on-year decline of 1.6%, with a
total net profit of approximately RMB84 billion, representing an
increase 59% vyear-on-year. The total sales of sizeable textile
garment and apparel enterprises amounted to approximately
RMB1,210.5 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 5.4%,
with a net profit of approximately RMB61.4 billion, down 3.4% year-
on-year. According to data from the General Administration of
Customs of the PRC, the PRC exported around US$134.5 billion
worth of textile products in 2023, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 8.3%, while the value of garments exported reached
approximately US$159.1 billion, a year-on-year decline of 7.8%.

According to statistics from Vietnam Customs, the export volume of
yarns and staple fibers manufactured in Vietnam rose by 13.4% to
approximately 1.78 million tonnes in 2023, generating
approximately US$4.4 billion in revenue, a decrease of 7.6% as
compared with 2022. Garments exports declined by 11.3% to
approximately US$33.3 billion in 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Affected by the international financial and political environment,
2023 was a year full of changes and uncertainties. The global
economy faced various pressures. On top of rising risks associated
with inflation and tightening monetary policies experienced among
developed economies, there were also geopolitical conflicts that
further intensified, such as the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict and
the unexpected Israel-Palestine conflict. Impacted by such
developments, the demand among overseas textile markets
continued the weak trend of 2022, with the recovery failing to meet
expectations, and there was still pressure to destock. In the PRC,
with the full relaxation of the pandemic control policy at the
beginning of 2023, market demand picked up, but the lack of
export momentum led to intensified competition in the domestic
market.

BE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

For the Group, revenue in the Year decreased to approximately
RMB22.7 billion, a decline of 4.5% as compared with the previous
year. During the Year, the Group’s revenue was mainly derived from
the sale of yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics. Revenue from the
sale of yarns remained the primary source of revenue for the Group,
accounting for approximately 77.2% of the total revenue for the
Year. Revenue from yarn sales amounted to approximately RMB17.5
billion, which was basically the same as the previous year, and
mainly due to the recovery of domestic market demand. While
garment fabrics are primarily sold to overseas markets, as overseas
market demand fell short of expectations during the Year, and
revenue from garment fabrics decreased to approximately RMB2.9
billion, down 18.8% when compared with the previous year.

The year 2023 was the first year of the post-pandemic era of the
PRC's economy, and was marked by a demand rebound in the
domestic textile industry that commenced at the beginning of the
year. However, the long-term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on
the PRC's economy still existed, and the decline in profitability of
enterprises led to a decline in the income of residents, resulting in
the “‘consumption downgrade” in household consumption trend that
has inhibited the increase in product prices. Meanwhile, for the
overseas markets, the high inflation level in developed economies
also dampened demand in the textile industry. Still, the Group
actively adjusted its product mix and structure to adapt to the shift
in market demand, and actively destocked on the sales side. The
final sales volume of yarns amounted to over 740,000 tonnes for the
Year, representing an increase of 12.7% as compared with the
previous year. Affected by the changes in raw material prices and
consumption trends, the annual revenue from vyarns for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB17.5 billion, which was basically the
same as the previous year.

As aforementioned, as the global economy failed to recover as
expected during the VYear, especially with demand in overseas
markets remaining weak, the Group’s production capacity was not
fully utilised during the Year, particularly in the first half of the year.
In addition, the pressure of destocking in the textile industry
remained high, and weak market demand suppressed product
prices. Consequently, the gross profit margin of yarns declined to
5.7% for the Year.

As for grey fabrics, the annual sales volume was approximately 55.3
million meters, an increase of 9.9% as compared with the previous
year. Owing to adjustments made to the variety of grey fabrics, sales
revenue for such fabrics decreased to approximately RMB531.7
million, the gross profit margin of grey fabrics decreased to 6.1%
from 10.2% of last year.

08 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XIIEIMEEERAA
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THBEWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

For woven garment fabrics, which are mainly sold in overseas
markets, they were greatly affected by the weak demand in these
markets. As for the main product working suits, the response to the
weak market demand was relatively slow, and continued to face
greater destocking pressure, with both production volume and sales
under pressure. Annual sales volume decreased by 22.9% to
approximately 89.7 million meters, and the sales revenue decreased
by 22.3% to approximately RMB2,056.3 million. Due to the drop in
the production capacity utilisation rate caused by insufficient orders,
the gross profit margin declined to 12.7%.

For knitted garment fabrics, owing to the recovery of the domestic
market and the shift in consumption habits towards sports and
leisure, the sales volume for the Year slightly increased to
approximately 15,400 tonnes, representing an increase of 2.8% as
compared with last year. The sales revenue decreased by 8.0% to
approximately RMB797.4 million for the Year, as a result of
fluctuations in raw material prices. Due to the disposal of the loss-
making Vietnam factory to the Texwinca Group in November 2023,
coupled with the Group's stringent control of various expenses, and
further strengthening of vertical integration of the industrial chain to
fully utilise internal yarns, the gross profit margin for the Year
increased to approximately 8.7% from approximately 53% in the
previous year. For further details regarding the aforementioned
disposal, please refer to the section headed “Material Acquisition
and Disposal” on page 81 of this annual report.

The jeanswear business generated sales revenue of approximately
RMB20.4 million, which was mainly from sales of garment factories in
the PRC. For the trading business, it mainly involves the Group’s U.S.
garment fabric and garment trading business. The gross profit
margin was approximately 6.0%.

Due to higher living expenses brought about by inflation and the
significant decline in the demand for anti-pandemic products
related to non-woven fabrics in the post-pandemic era, the
development of the non-woven fabric business (as a non-essential
product) fell short of expectations. The Group has been proactively
adjusting the product structure of non-woven fabrics to adapt to the
changes in market demand and actively promoting further strategic
cooperation with renowned customers in the industry. Sales revenue
increased slightly to approximately RMB70.0 million in 2023, as
compared with last year.

¥KOE2)

REEERAME  BREBHEEEINTE X
BN B RRRTERR BXEEERTIE
FRETISFE R B RERIE - DAEBRR AN
FEGRN EERBEERIERE  2FHE
TBE22.9%Z 498,970 K » $HE WA T F£223%
EHAREE20563187T - ARFI BN BB ERL
FIAEANRE  EFNEEE127%°

fHgme s m e AREATISER - 2 AM
FEEBEREE ARHELR FRHEEEMH
BHMEL 1548 M - L A FRIEFHE hN2.8% : 1H
HREMEERES AFEHEERARD
BONE AR 79748 - AR AEBR -Z
=R+ A HEREBEZUEMmIRLE
FEKEEE  M2AEERZESERS M
REEEXBE—SES ROMNARNBEE
MR AFEEMEREFHLHS3%EH2
4987% - BRARTME BME —FFFE - B2H
AFERBNBIEARERTEEE] & -

FHREEBHEERANAARE20408
T X ERARERETIRMEEER -85
¥B5E FEAAEEERERAMREES
T o EFELE60% °

AR KA FKER G - Iz R IERE
REH M ABHRERFTRKOAE TR - (EE
MAmER (ERFELFR) BRI RIEH - A&
EEGRAEEGTNEMGBNREM SRR
ML WEBEEEZEANATPNE—F
BEAIERER - —T-_=F HERALEF
R ARSENARE7000&TT

2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-=#%F3% 09



THBWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Based on the above analysis, the slower than expected recovery of
overseas market demand, the consequent weak selling prices of the
Group's products, the inability to fully utilise production capacity and
the impact of consumption downgrade caused by global inflation
and economic downturn were the major reasons leading to the
decline in the Group's profitability. Therefore, its overall gross profit
margin declined to 6.4% from 11.6% in 2022. In accordance with the
established strategy in 2022, the Group actively carried out expense
control, improved management efficiency and disposed of some
inefficient assets during the Year. Although certain results have been
achieved, it is still unable to make up for the decrease in gross profit
and the increase in financing costs caused by the increase in
interest rates, and such that the loss attributable to shareholders for
the Year was approximately RMB375.7 million, as compared with a
profit attributable to shareholders of RMB156.8 million for last year.
Basic loss per share was RMB0.41, compared with basic earnings per
share of RMB0.17 for last year.

PROSPECTS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's major production facilities
consisted of approximately 4.18 million spindles, of which 2.43
million spindles were in the PRC and 1.75 million spindles were
located overseas. It also had approximately 1,700 weaving and
knitting machines and related dyeing equipment. Due to
technological transformation and upgrade and the reallocation of
production capacity, the Group disposed of some old equipment in
2023.

As mentioned above, affected by the ongoing Russia-Ukraine
conflict and the unexpected Israel-Palestine conflict, coupled with a
rise in all-round competitions among great powers, the global
supply chain market was unable to operate in a normal, proper
manner. With the downturn of several major economies resulting in
the decline in household income and global inflation leading to
high commodity prices, the textile industry in 2023, despite showing
a stabilising and recovery trend in the fourth quarter, was generally
sluggish for the year as a whole. Moreover, the textile industry
continues to face overcapacity and high inventory pressure. Still,
with the easing of inflationary pressure in the U.S. in 2023, the U.S.
dollar is expected to enter a gradual interest rate reduction path in
2024, which combined with a series of economic stimulus policies
adopted by the PRC's economy, market demand is anticipated to
recover gradually in 2024, and the Group’s profitability is expected
to improve likewise.

In 2023, the Group conducted a series of restructuring exercises,
divesting certain low-profit assets while at the same time
reconsolidating some inefficient assets, which laid the cornerstone
for its development in 2024. The Group will continue its strategy
from last year while building on the foundation of 2023. It will also
strengthen the construction of platforms for the functional business
departments, further reduce production and administration costs
and improve management efficiency. Based on current market
conditions, and excluding the sales volume of the trading business,
the Group targets to sell 760,000 tonnes of yarns, 92 million meters
of woven garment fabrics and 12,000 tonnes of knitted garment
fabrics in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PROSPECTS (Continued)

In terms of new investment, the Group adopted a proactive
planning and relatively conservative strategy during the year,
basically maintaining the scale of production capacity in 2022.
Presently, the textile industry is moving towards a high-end,
intelligent and green trend. The Group will actively embrace this
change and further transform and upgrade its original production
capacity in 2024 to improve efficiency. At the same time, it will
increase research and development efforts in green and
environmentally friendly products. Furthermore, the Group aims to
strengthen cooperation with industry leaders in the garment fabric
businesses sector to enhance overall product responsiveness and
gain further access to the industry chain for boosting sales revenue.
Currently, the Group’s on-going projects mainly include the
construction of yarn factories and a woven garment fabric factory in
Vietnam. The construction of the weaving factory is mainly to take
up the production of a woven garment fabric factory in Shaoxing,
the PRC, following land resumption efforts by the local government.

In response to the need of transformation and upgrading in the
printing and dyeing chemical electroplating industry in the urban
area of Shaoxing, the PRC, and related local government policies,
Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co., Ltd. (#T)T E %
MERENBBR A F]), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an asset disposal agreement as vendor with
Shaoxing Paojiang Venture Construction Development Co., Ltd. (43
BT A ZE R REEE B R A ) as purchaser on 3 November 2023.
This agreement involved the disposal of certain plots land located in
Shaoxing, along with the buildings and infrastructure erected
thereon (the “Zhejiang Disposal”), including the mentioned weaving
factory. The consideration for the Zhejiang Disposal was
approximately RMB975.1 million. For further information regarding
the Zhejiang Disposal, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 3, 24 and 27 November 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 22 December 2023.

On 25 July 2023, the Group continued to be ranked on the “Fortune
China 500" list, compiled by Fortune — a renowned international
publication, testifying to the Group’s growth and widespread
recognition. The Group will continue to work tirelessly to bring
long-term and sustainable returns to its shareholders.

With the aforementioned adjustment strategies and business
development plans, the Group is well prepared to respond to
market changes and seize new opportunities, while maximising its
use of resources and production capacity, thereby preserving and
generating value for the Company’ shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Sales

During the Year, the sales of the Group mainly comprised the sales
of yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics. Yarns
continued to be the Group’s major product. Given the decrease in
sales unit price of yarns, the revenue of yarns in 2023 decreased by
approximately 0.3% as compared to that of 2022. Analysis of the
Group's sales by products is shown below.

Bt %5 B B8

FRA AEENHEEIZREBHEYR KL
o~ EHMEEN W REBER/AEENTE
Eme HRWBRHEEEENTR  —T-=
WRHEERBR T _FTHKH3% TR
AEBEEEERNHEEIN -

RMB million
ARBEET
18,000

16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000 17,537.0 17,587.5
4,000
2,000
0 A 5317 A 728.0 20.4

1.3 . 1,480.6 .1,822.2 700 624

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

2023 2022 2023 2022

—R-=F —R-—F —R-=F St " —B-=F St " —BC=HF S —BC=HF —B--fF
Yarns Fabrics Jeanswear Trading Non-woven fabrics
W A R HFARE 825 fsnril
Yarns . Grey Woyen garment KnitFed garment Jeanswear Trading Non_—woven
WiR fabrics fabrics fabrics FFARE 25 fabrics
b AR FHAER ot

Revenue
2023 2022 change
—E=-= —=g-- WA &)

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R AREF T
Yamns iR 17,537,022 17,587,450 -0.3%
Grey fabrics b2l 531,657 727,980 -27.0%
Woven garment fabrics % B R 2,056,331 2,647,893 -22.3%
Knitted garment fabrics F A mE R 797,448 866,442 -8.0%
Jeanswear F1FBR % 20,413 91,344 ~77.7%
Trading 25 1,480,616 1,822,180 -18.7%
Non-woven fabrics A 69,982 62,065 12.8%

Others Hity 231,848 —
Total wat 22,725,317 23,805,354 ~4.5%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B & B (&)
Sales (Continued) HE (&)

Sales Volume
HE

Yarns, Grey fabrics, Woven garment fabrics, Knitted garment fabrics, Jeanswear and Non-woven fabrics

Wi B - REBES > HEER - FHRERES T

Tonne/Million metres/Million metres/Tonne/Million Pieces/Tonne

WEEK S BEKS W BB

112.7%

12.8%

[=2]
e 122.9% o
g © 5 >
F »
~ B n <t
© ™ - -
) ©
19.9% ~Em = 16.3%
N
3 176.5%
© ©
T i
=) -
< - [<p)
l ' S M0 “'l l
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC=E T F ZB-=HE T F —EC=E T —F —EC=E T —F —EC-=E —EC-F —EC=E —E-F
B Yams [ Grey fabrics [ Woven garment [ Knitted garment I Jeanswear 8 Non-woven
Wix b7l fabrics fabrics (T RREE fabrics
AR SR 2 Y]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Sales (Continued)

B R ()

HE (7

Sales Volume Selling price Gross profit margin
HE EE EF%
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=F ZEZZfF CZE-zZf ZEZZF ZE-=E ZZEZZ-F
Yarns (Tonne/RMB per tonne) 404 (I, A R 1) 740,679 657,163 23,677 26,763 5.7% 10.6%
Grey fabrics ®m(AER/
(Million metres/ ARBEX)
RMB per metre) 55.3 50.3 9.6 145 6.1% 10.2%
Woven garment fabrics BEEH (FAER/
(Million metres/ ARBEX)
RMB per metre) 89.7 1163 229 228 12.7% 24.6%
Knitted garment fabrics SEGEB (i
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) AREFHE) 15,412 14,991 51,742 57,797 8.7% 53%
Jeanswear SrlRE (BEHS
(Million pieces/ ARBEH)
RMB per piece) 0.4 17 51.0 53.7 -17.9% 3.7%
Non-woven fabrics & (W
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) ARBEIE) 2,956 3,156 23,675 19,666 -50.9% -320%

The Chinese textile market is the Group’'s major market, and
accounted for approximately 68.9% of our total sales of 2023. Due to
the continuously weakened demand of textiles in overseas markets,
the percentage for the Group's overseas sales has decreased in
2023.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has more than 5,000
customers. As the Group produces differentiated products, the
Group does not rely on orders from a particular customer. The top
ten largest customers of the Group only accounted for
approximately 13.4% of the total sales of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2023, gross profit of the Group
decreased from approximately RMB2,755.6 million for 2022 to
approximately RMB1,462.6 million for 2023. The overall gross profit
margin decreased by 5.2 percentage points to 6.4% as compared to
that of 2022. The decrease in the gross profit margin was mainly
due to the continuously weakened demand for textile in overseas
markets during the Year, which resulted in weak selling prices of the
Group's products and the lower production capacity utilization rate,
which in turn affected the Group’s unit cost of production and gross

B & B (&)
ENRERNR
HE_Z_=_F+_A=+—HULEFE £&E
BMWEFH T - F A RE7 55608 T
BWAPBEZZTZ=ZFHMHARKE14626187T - S
FEREH - ‘:ETBLFS 2EE \¥£i64%

profit margin.

Cost structure

For the year ended 31 December 2023, cost of sales rose by 1.0% to S
approximately RMB21,262.7 million when compared with 2022. Raw
materials cost accounted for about 77.3% of the total cost of sales

of 2023. Cotton is our major raw material.

The breakdown of our cost of sales in 2023 and 2022 is shown

below:

Consumables Others
HFER HAth
2.3% 0.8%

ERE TR EERBF RSN DEHBED
S 55 4 AR L2 B 1B U 58 R A
FIRRIRIE - 48 8 B A R B BT A P A
BEFE -
BRI

2T -_=F+_-AH
AR T =

Utilities

B) 1) KRk

7.0%

Depreciation
e

4.2%

Direct Labour

HEIE

8.4%

Raw Materials

o
77.3%

2023
—EC=HF

Selling and distribution costs

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's selling and HZE
distribution costs amounted to approximately RMB730.4 million,
representing a decrease of 17.6% when compared to that of 2022. It
was mainly due to high costs related to freight and port charges as TIERE

a result of the impacts of pandemic in 2022.

General and administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's general and HZE

A H77.3% - 816 B FIR £ 2 B M -
THAREEANR "B -=FF -"T - —FHH
SRR ¢

Consumables Others

JHFE HAth

2.7% 0.7%

Utilities

B h KRRt

7.0%

Depreciation

3.9%

I
x L

Direct Labour
BHEIE
9.5%

Raw Materials

R
76.2%

HER T HAX

—E =+ A=+—HILFE"

—RRITHAX

Zt+—HIEEFE  HE
TFEEFHI0NEH AREE212627
Bt - RZEZ=ZF 2 REMERAE A EK

BZHEERD %%iﬁ_?__ETﬁwwm:
PAREI34ETT TERANRZ X
EBEMBOEENEBRARSTE -

SEo=E{ A=t AR A%

administrative expenses amounted to approximately RMB1,178.6
million, which represented a decrease of 10.4% when compared
with 2022, and accounted for 5.2% of the Group's revenue. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in salaries of management
personnel.

Bz —RETBEASZOBAREIN786ET
BT _FRAD104% (hAREBR AR
52% WA EERNEEABFHER DT ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B O B8 (%)
Cash flows ReRE
2023 2022
—E-=F —EFE-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Net cash generated from operating activities KETEBSR S FRE 1,985,629 1,620,127
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing BEEBME () Re
activities il 29,529 (1,725,984)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBER ST (2,337,584) (30,664)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes RSN E 15,800 99,535
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERNE S RBLEFEY 2,161,795 2,468,421

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net cash generated from
operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB1,985.6 million, which represents an increase comparing with
2022 mainly because the Group actively control inventory to
improve working capital efficiency in 2023. Net cash generated from
investing activities amounted to approximately RMB29.5 million,
which was mainly due to the reduction of capital expenditure
payments made by the Group during the Year, while obtaining the
partial receivable from the disposal of knitted factory in Vietnam and
the land and factory located in Shaoxing, the PRC as mentioned
above. During the Year, net cash used in financing activities
amounted to approximately RMB2,337.6 million, which was mainly
due to the enhancement of capital control during the Year and the
decrease in bank borrowings under the improved operating
conditions.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's bank and cash balances
(including pledged bank deposits) amounted to approximately
RMB2,228.0 million (as at 31 December 2022: RMB2,580.1 million). As
at 31 December 2023, inventories and trade and bills receivables
(including financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income) of the Group decreased by approximately RMB2,345.5
million to approximately RMB5,244.6 million and increased by
approximately RMB164.5 million to approximately RMB1,908.2 million
respectively (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB7,590.1
million and approximately RMB1,743.8 million respectively). Turnover
days for inventories and trade and bills receivables were 109 days
and 29 days respectively, compared to 126 days and 28 days in
2022 respectively. The inventory turnover days significantly
decreased from last year, mainly because the Group actively
controlled inventory to improve working capital efficiency in 2023.
The turnover days for trade and bills receivables were slightly higher
than that of the previous year, which was mainly because of the
increase in the balance of receivables at the end of 2023 as a result
of the sales revenue of the fourth quarter in 2023 having
significantly increased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

Trade and bills payables of the Group (including supply chain
financing) decreased by approximately RMB1,781.8 million to
approximately RMB3,364.7 million as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31
December 2022: RMB5,146.5 million), the payable turnover days was
72 days, compared to 78 days in 2022. The decrease in the payables
and the payable turnover days was mainly attributable to the
advance settlement of substantial US-dollar letter of credit by the
Group during the Year.

The total bank borrowings of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB820.2 million to approximately RMB7,723.2 million as at 31
December 2023. Current bank borrowings decreased by
approximately RMB1,009.5 million to approximately RMB4,145.7
million while non-current bank borrowings increased by
approximately RMB189.3 million to approximately RMB3,577.6
million. The Group optimized its financing structure, repaid short-
term borrowings to reduce the Group's debt level and increased
long-term borrowings to ensure the safety of the Group's cash flow.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022 the key financial ratios of the

B & O EE (&)
RBESRMBER(E)
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17818 ENARKEBM47EL (R ZEZ
—HFF+ZA=+—H8: AR®s51465(B70) © JE
NpBEREXH AR M_ZE__F0|478
KeBRNREKEAERERLTERRAT
NAEERAAEEAEBELEREERAE -

—ZHF+-AZ1+—8 - AEEMIRT
BRI D ARE2ETEH AR
2 BT e m@ﬁﬁfﬂﬁgﬂd #IAR 810,095
EMARBA1 45718 - MIERERITES
iﬂébui’MEﬁ&8931“_3%’JAE¢1€<357761“

12w
S|
gt

—. GR+ VI

TCe REBERIBMELE  EERBESEE
SEREKT  ENEHER BREERS
MEE °

R-E_=FR_ZF__F+-_A=+—8"

Group were as follows: AEEZFEHBHEERET :

2023 2022

—EBZ=HF —F-_—

Current ratio mEN L E 1.28 112
Debt to equity ratio’ BEEREE 0.84 0.90
Net debt to equity ratio? BEFEERL R 0.60 0.63
Gearing ratio® BEAGHLE 0.57 0.61
! Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to shareholders ! BEBEERARREGEETE

2 Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders

3 Based on total liabilities over total assets

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB7,723.2 million, among which
approximately RMB3,839.7 million (49.7%) was denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”), approximately RMB524.5 million (6.8%) was
denominated in U.S. dollars ("US$" or "USD"), approximately
RMB2,496.9 million (32.3%) was denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS" or "HKD"), approximately RMB856.2 million (11.1%) was
denominated in Vietnamese dong (“VND") and approximately
RMB5.9 million (0.1%) was denominated in Australian dollars ("AUD").
These bank borrowings have borne interest rates ranging from
0.80% to 6.54% per annum (2022: 0.80% to 7.23%).

2 REREECREASIRSSEY RO EF
RITEFO R ABCRE(G S E

: REBERERNEERLEBEANE

Bl

R-ZZE—=ZF+=-A=+—H A&EEMIRTT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had current bank borrowings of
approximately RMB4,145.7 million (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB5,155.2 million). The decrease in current bank
borrowings was mainly because of the repayment of short-term
bank borrowings by the Group to reduce the overall level of
indebtedness.

In respect of the Group's borrowings, the Group has to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants.

As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings of approximately
RMB53.7 million (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB5.8
million) were secured by bank deposits with a net book amount of
approximately RMB54.0 million (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB6.0 million), and bank borrowings of RMB200
million (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB200 million)
were secured by export tax rebates entitled to be collected.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Vietnam. Most of the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, USS and HKS. Foreign exchange risk may arise from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is mainly attributable to its borrowings and raw
material procurement denominated in USS or HKS. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular reviews
and closely monitoring its foreign exchange exposures.

To mitigate the depreciation risk of RMB, the Group has purchased
certain amount of currency option contracts and currency swap
contracts so that a significant part of its foreign currency exposure is
hedged.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the capital expenditure of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB899.0 million (2022:
approximately RMB2,391.0 million). It mainly related to the
unfinished construction projects, equipment renovation in China,
Vietnam and the Americas during the Year and the acquisition of
certain assets from Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited
(“Texhong Industrial Park”) in Vietnam. For further details of the
acquisition of the above assets, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 7 November 2022, 8 December 2022, 3
February 2023 and 15 March 2024.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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THBEWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Human resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total workforce of 27,655
employees (as at 31 December 2022: 30,206), of whom 15,733
employees were based in the sales headquarters and manufacturing
plants in Mainland China. The remaining 11,922 employees were
stationed in regions outside Mainland China, including Vietnam,
Turkey, the Americas, Hong Kong of China and Macao of China. The
Group has a total of 14,454 female employees, accounted for 52.3%
of the total number of employees as at 31 December 2023. During
the Year, the Group incurred total staff costs of approximately
RMB2.4 billion (2022: approximately RMB2.6 billion).

The Group will continue to optimize its human resources structure
and offer a competitive remuneration package to its employees with
reference to factors including the prevailing market conditions and
the performance of the Group and the merits of the employees
regardless of their gender, race, age or religion. As the Group's
success is dependent on the contribution of a group of skillful and
motivated employees who form functional departments, the Group
is committed to creating a learning and sharing culture in the
organization, and placing strong emphasis on the training and
development of individual staff and team building.

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable dividend payout
ratio of about 30% of the Group’s net profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company, providing shareholders with an
equitable return. In 2023, the Group's results were primarily affected
by the continued weakening demand on textiles in overseas
markets. The Board does not recommend a payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Events after the reporting period

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
7 November 2022, 8 December 2022, 3 February 2023 and
15 March 2024 in relation to, among others, the asset purchase
agreement entered into between a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company ("‘HK Co") and Texhong Industrial Park on 7 November
2022, pursuant to which HK Co agreed to purchase, and Texhong
Industrial Park agreed to sell, certain plots of land and infrastructure
and ancillary equipment thereon. Pursuant to the asset purchase
agreement, Texhong Industrial Park had undertaken to HK Co that,
among others, it shall complete the registration of the transfer of
the legal title of the subject land (the “Registration”) within 12
months from the completion date, which was 31 March 2023. As
additional time was needed to, among others, liaise with the local
authorities to understand the proper procedures for the Registration
and make applications before proceeding with the transfer of the
relevant land use rights, HK Co and Texhong Industrial Park, after
arm’s length negotiations, entered into a second supplemental
agreement, pursuant to which Texhong Industrial Park has
undertaken to complete the Registration by 31 March 2025.
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THBWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

The following are the key risks that we consider to be of great
significance to the Group in its current status. These risks may have
adverse effect on the Group’s business.

For the possible impact of each risk on the Group should it occur,
we have made a detail description and set down corresponding
control measures and mitigation plan to manage the risk.

The impact of risk relating to the business of the Group will change
over time. The size, complexity and coverage of our business and
the changing environment in which the Group operates also mean
that the list cannot be an exhaustive list of all material risks that
could affect the Group.
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Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
2 B 1 4t TEERREREBRHR BERATRLEFR{E
Business concentration
ESEY 1
Product concentration: The Group has Enhance customer communication with an outstanding >
established its market position as a manufacturer marketing team which thoroughly and promptly Unchanged
of high value-added core-spun textile products understands the requirements of customers
and core-spun yarn is the major earning source of Step up cooperation with raw material suppliers and
the Group. In the event of any change in fashion monitor the market trend of change in new textile
trend, customers may prefer other textile materials
materials. Competition in such market may also Boost input for research and development team and
intensify suddenly. If the Group fails to respond improve product functionality and develop new products
to the change in an efficient and effective in response to market demands
manner, the profitability of the Group may be Explore downstream industries and increase the
adversely affected. contribution of downstream products
Facilitate the development of import and export business

Geographical concentration: The Group has continuously to tap into overseas markets
several production bases located in the Mainland Promote diversified development in the industry so as to
China, which is the major market of the Group survive under adverse macro-environment, in view of the
and, thus, the Group is subject to the economic, fact that the textile industry is large in scale despite its
political and social condition and change in vulnerability to the economic and social environment
domestic demand for the products of the Group
in China.
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THBEWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) rEBNWEKRRAR #)

Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
B i TEELRERERYER RERAFHRLEFE(

Risk of fluctuation of cotton prices

REERKBER

Cotton is the major production material of the
Group and the fluctuation of cotton prices may
not align with fluctuation of end-product prices
at all times. In the event of intense fluctuation of
cotton prices, the gross profit margin of the
Group will be heavily affected.

ﬁ4%$ﬁlzgm$FFﬂ TRICERAN
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%o i ﬁbﬁ%ﬂﬂ&@ SHAEEE

FFD

MEEKREATE -

|10

Foreign exchange and interest risk

MERFZEMR

Fluctuation of exchange rate may result in
material losses on foreign currency and affect the
raw material procurement costs and financing
costs of the Group. In the event of intensified
fluctuation of the exchange rate of USD/RMB, the
profitability of the Group may be subject to
material uncertainties.

In the event of increase in prevailing interest
rates of banks, liabilities at floating rates may
cause an increase in financing costs of the
Group.

&@T%%ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ%’%§$%ﬁ
mﬁﬂ?$%$uﬁﬂﬁﬁ$° EXTL/A
REMEZKENE $%Em§ﬂ%ﬁﬂ%
BEEEATHES

HERITRINE LT - FBAEMAELS
BYRKERERASZM

Closely monitor the dynamics of cotton futures and
supply and demand balance and correlation in the spot
market and hedge risks mainly through measures like
maintaining stable procurement and inventory strategies
Diversify the development of the synthetic fiber category
and reduce the Group's reliance on the cotton category

%w@&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁu&&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%F@&ﬁ
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R

EM&@E&&E%%'%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@&ﬁmw

Foster communication with financial institutions and
market analysis institutions to interpret the dynamics of
financial market and make specific adjustments to
financing structure

Increase loans in RMB to reduce the ratio of loans in USD
to directly mitigate risks

Lock up exposure of liabilities in foreign currencies,
including foreign liabilities arising from daily operation
and financing, using foreign exchange financial products,
such as forward contracts and options

Closely monitor various important economic data
published by the People’s Bank of China and the Federal
Reserve and keep abreast with its interest rate policy
Obtain quotations for interest rate swap from financial
institutions regularly and utilize financial instruments in a
timely manner to switch from floating to fixed interest
rate

MEESREERMSOMEENER  BRERD
SEm - SHHIENAREE R
BIMARBEFNREZTER LY - EREERR
MREHAH - %ﬁ”%[%ﬂémk%i%%ﬁ%
WO BEAREENIMERARBAMIBAR
ZOBEIFEARRIMZBRENSEERLER
B HENEHESERT
BERBERBEANTARE  EHNAERT
ARFBMEEBETERN X

t

Causes of the trend:

t

Fluctuation of cotton market
price has increased the
difficulties of raw materials
procurement of the Group
The continued weakening
demand on textiles in
overseas markets. If cotton
prices increase, the risk of end
product prices not rising
simultaneously increases
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THBWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEBENEKRRRE &)

Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
2B i TEERREREBRHR BRAFREFE(

Financing risk

HERR

The business scale of the Group is relatively large,
but it also seizes the opportunities to increase its
investment with higher financing needs. In the
event that the financial institutions which provide
the existing facilities cease to offer such financing
to the Group or banking facilities on similar terms
and the Group fails to obtain alternatives, the
Group may not have sufficient funds for its
commitment of capital projects and may restrict or
hinder the business operation of the Group. In the
event that the operating environment deteriorates,
it may even affect the operation of the existing
business of the Group.

TEEXBREBA - A0 E—Like
BIRE  ARROBERE - WARMRE
BENSREEFLAAEEREGERER
BUGRORITRE - MAKETRER R
MBS AIARER T EEGENNESAR
ERRERA - WA sER 6 AR A& B
EfEE - ARERERL EEWRFED

FAEERAXHHEE

Enhance the transparency of the Group's operation for
banks' understanding and maintain good working
relationship between the Group and financial institutions
Monitor various financing indicators in real-time and
provide timely alerts to ensure compliance in respect of
various indicators

Diversify the portfolio of financial institutions and
financing products

Devise a reasonable spread for financing with different
terms to strike a balance between financing costs and
risks

B BTHREEETHRABRBRNERE  #ETK
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t

Causes of the trend:
Downturn in overseas market
demand on textiles has
affected the profitability of the
Group's business

t
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THBEWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEENERER &)

Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
2B i TEERERRERYER BRAFREFE(

Customer credit management risk

EFEREERR

The Group focuses on producing a wide range of
products and does not rely on a particular
individual customer. The Group works with more
than 5,000 customers from an enormous and
widespread portfolio. Increasing business volume
and business type lead to increasing total
receivables.

AEENAEEASENERAEH - TKE
RRE—FP - AREHEZ PRS00 « &
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TER NG S YR BB

Monitor and evaluate credit terms granted to customers
reqularly

Monitor the collectability of receivables in real-time and
provide alerts and warnings for amount overdue and
customers with abnormal business operation

Closely monitor market dynamics and operation of
customers to devise plan for customer visit and collect
the latest information of customers

Enhance customer reconciliation system

Adopt collectability of receivables as a criterion of staff
performance assessment to promote staff members’
awareness of payment demand

Arrange export credit insurance for all overseas customers
with newly established relationship

ERREHHEEPNES

EREERISEN  UBRUAREBZERENE
PRBYERETRERR
TBOREIMSDENELEERR  SIEEPETH
it BERFPRMEER

HER P R
BELZHOERELRAZHRENEY  BEXH
ANEMEREZ

HRFBRMAENEBNEPORELOERRR

t

Causes of the trend:
Downturn in overseas market
demand on textiles, higher
operation risk for customers

t
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THBWR RS (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEENERR

(4 )
h k»(‘!ﬁ /

Risks description

BB g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BBATRLEFE{

Product liability risk
ERETAR

The Group offers a wide range of products and
its portfolio is ever-expanding, creating a huge
risk of product liability for the Group. Although
the Group has not suffered any material losses
from product liability claim, there have been
individual claims from customers in respect of
product quality.

TEEERmELS  EXmERSEN Y
FEBERITFRTEANAR - #ALE
ERAREREESRANENEL ERE
EXPHRERZENRANREEMN -

Tax risk

REER

The operation presence of the Group covers
various countries and regions, including the
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Vietnam,
Turkey and the Americas. In the course of tax
planning and daily operation, we are subject to
the following tax risks:

Risk of tax incompliance caused by
misunderstanding of regional tax policies;

The interpretation of tax policies and the
legal conformity of tax preparation must
be confirmed by the tax administration
authority. In the course of such
confirmation, the enforcement of tax
administration may be different.

AEERNKERSAETEAY B R
PI-#m - THERENSSAEZXABE -
ERBEARATERBRET  RMARAT
BRiEE -
HiEURBEIRERERMELN
RBERRR
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Increase efforts on quality control and devise
improvement solutions for quality fluctuation

Control production process using state-of-the-art
measurement equipment and online quality control
system

Improve production technology training for staff members
and cultivate responsibility awareness of plant
production staff and management members at each
level

Actively reach out to customers for product liability
incidents and coordinate for resolution and hold relevant
staff accountable internally

%Kgiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmgiﬁ@ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂ
MRATENRAGSEREREEEHES HERE
EMBRETE

EMETAERMMNEN  REIMEEABRESR
BEABMEEER
RERECSHETFBEEER  BARE HAE
RRBAREE

Engage financial officers familiar with local tax policies and
regulations to conduct tax audit and handle tax
examination of the government

Engage professional local tax consultation institutions for
consultations on tax compliance advices, tax incentive
policies and tax preparation solutions

Liaise with local tax authority frequently to have thorough
understanding of change in tax policies and policy
interpretation, thereby reducing risks of tax incompliance
and enforcement of tax administration

ERATEMHBRR AR BARETRER
8 BYBRRERE
EFEHEXORBAARBETREORRZE B
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BREE RO RBERRRURRBTRIERR

t

Causes of the trend:
Downturn in overseas market
demand on textiles, higher
customer demand for product
quality

)
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Causes of the trend:
Intensifying tax regulations in
different countries
Increasing international coverage
of operation presence, resulting in
mounting overseas tax risk
The requested implementation
of the minimum tax rate
jointly by the OECD countries
around the world will increase
our tax burdens and risks
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRRE (&)

Risks description

B g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

IREERRRARHE

Changes of risk
level from last year

BEBAFRLFEE

Legal and other regulatory risk

ERREMEERR

As a listed company on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”), the
Group must comply with the "Securities and
Futures Ordinance” and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as
well as the laws and regulations in places which
the Group operates in. As social and economic
environment evolves, many countries and
relevant authorities continue to promulgate laws
and rules to update economic matters, such as
corporate governance, foreign investment,
commerce, tax and trade. The introduction or
amendments of these laws and regulations may
adversely affect the business and prospects of the
Group.
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Energy supply risk
R Em b

Electricity consumption of the Group's
production process is huge and electricity
shortage may adversely affect the operation of
production facilities of the Group.

FEERRERRETRARENE N ENH
EERATEHARELERENEZEXTH
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Engage qualified legal advisors or consultation institutions
to review and provide advice on relevant documents to
ensure legal compliance

The company secretary is responsible for offering advice
to the board of directors and board committees in
respect of the latest legal, regulatory and governance
matters and ensuring their awareness of such matters

BEAARNZRBNXAARBEENAEXELR
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Equip production factories subject to potential electricity
shortage with generators to minimize the duration of
electricity shortage

Conduct technological renovation on equipment to
reduce energy consumption

Liaise with the government to seek permit for
uninterrupted electricity supply
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Unchanged
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Causes of the trend:
With the increase in capital
investment of clean energy for
factories by the Group, the
Group’s energy costs are
expected to be effectively
reduced

\/
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRRE &)

Risks description

R g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BRAFRLFE{E

Human resources risk

ANERER

The Group operates in a labour-intensive industry.
While our new plant, with more advanced
production facilities, has helped to reduce our
deployment of labour force to a certain extent, our
need in manpower remains relatively high
compared to some other industrial segments. If we
experience any labour shortage or technical
inadequacy of its labour force, the efficiency in
utilization of our production facilities will be
impaired, and our profitability will be affected as a
result.

The Group has been expanding its operation
abroad. The cultural difference between our
foreign and Chinese employees may bring risk to
the regular and normal operation of our Company.

FEEMRITRASBTEUTE AN T
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Commence effective performance-based unit count in
recognition of the principle of ‘better reward comes with
greater contribution

Expand the scope of staff training to create a highly
efficient and capable workforce

Prepare and work further ahead on any decisions related
to employees and that any issue which may arise will be
promptly dealt with

Address issue concerning the conditions of our canteen
and staff quarters, enhance the quality of our employees'
livelihood, and improve our backup supporting service
Train up and enhance the management capability of our
management staff, roll out skill and capability
reinforcement programme, strengthen the sense of
belonging and honour of our staff

Improve staff retention through maintaining and
expanding our presence in the locality
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Unchanged
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRRE (&)

Risks description

B g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

IREERRRARHE

Changes of risk
level from last year

BEBAFRLFEE

Environmental protection compliance risk

BREAER

The Group’s production process is subject to a
wide range of the environmental protection laws
and regulations in various countries and territories.
The Group has not been subject to any fines or
penalties conceming environmental pollution in
the past. However, there can be no assurance that
governments of any countries and territories will
not introduce new laws and regulations to impose
stricter control on environmental pollution in the
future. Additionally, the risk faced by the Group
may also increase as a result of investments in
downstream sectors.

Changes in existing environmental protection laws
and regulations may require the Group to incur
substantial expenditure to upgrade its existing
environmental protection facilities and the
profitability of the Group may be adversely
affected.

TEBLERRAETRARMEBNRERE
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Selectively pick our suppliers, enter into purchase
agreements with suppliers which guarantee the raw
materials supplied are in compliance with environmental
protection standard (in particular dyestuff and chemicals)
Establish a factory internal check system and procedure
in compliance with product-wise regular core
environmental protection standard, set up a highly
regulated control system and strictly implement it

Pay attention to news about development in
environmental regulations, cause new factories to
operate in strict compliance with any new regulations
and existing factories to transform and upgrade their
facilities in order to meet environmental protection
standard

BEMER  AEEREITRERERRESOHRE
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ERELGWSE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is essential to the success of the Group and
the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (THE “CG CODE")

The Company is committed to maintaining high levels of corporate
governance and has steered its development and protected the
interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and open manner.
The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part 2
of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the Company had complied with the
then applicable code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises five Directors and its composition is
set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
Tang Daoping (resigned on 8 December 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD
(retired on 25 May 2023)
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (appointed on 25 May 2023)
Professor Tao Xiaoming
Professor Cheng Longdi

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 57 to 60.
There was no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

To ensure that the Board has access to independent views and
input, various mechanisms are adopted: the Company has three
INEDs representing more than one-third of the Board; at least one of
the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules; the chairman of the Board meets with the
independent non-executive Directors regularly without the presence
of the other Directors to discuss matters relating to the Group; and
Directors may seek advice from external independent professional
advisors at the Company's expense to perform their duties. The
Board has received from each of the INED an annual confirmation of
his independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent
under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to
review and approve the Group'’s annual and interim results. During
the Year, six Board meetings and one general meeting was held and
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the general
meeting is set out as follows:

BEES® &)
EEerHERAeE TR AEE o BERKE
UK EERTHRE  TEELAMEAEERZ

EERTHES -RFERN CRITARESE
GREN ARG REEFHFEEFE SR
RERAGZIBREINMT :

Number of
Board Number of
meetings General meetings
attended/held attended/held
HE HES
BTEEY BIRRK
BRRE RERE
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Hong Tianzhu (Chairman) HERW(FE) 6/6 1/1
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and KoKFE (B EREFTHA 6/6 /1
Chief Executive Officer)
Tang Daoping 7B 5/6 1/1
(resigned on 8 December 2023) (RZEZ=F+ZAN\BEHIT) (Note 1) (Note 1)
(Bizt1) (Bizt1)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B FHITES:
Cheng Longdi TEE R 6/6 1/1
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA T R BBMH, FCCA, FCPA 1/6 N
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD (Note 2) (Note 2)
(retired on 25 May 2023) (RZZE-_=FRA=-FTHHBENK) (Ki722) (H17%2)
Tao Xiaoming F8 & A 4/6 /1
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence FFEER 3/6 N/A
(appointed on 25 May 2023) (RZE-=FRA-+HBZMT) (Note 3) (Note 3)
(Hi7t3) (B1iE3)
The Board is responsible for considering and decision making for EEgREERMAR EEREREEERE
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, investment s WERE 2FERPHES EE=LRT
plans, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ RENZAERE EAGHERRS  URH

appointment or reappointment, material contracts and transactions
as well as other significant policies and financial matters. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board.

Notes:

(M) Mr. Tang Daoping ceased to be an executive Director on 8 December
2023, his attendance was stated by reference to the number of board
meetings and general meetings held during his tenure in the year
ended 31 December 2023.

(2) Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased to be an independent non-
executive Director on 25 May 2023, his attendance was stated by
reference to the number of board meetings and general meetings
held during his tenure in the year ended 31 December 2023.

(3) Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 May 2023, his attendance was stated by
reference to the number of board meetings and general meetings
held since his appointment.

MEABRLEUBEEE EFQCHARER
EZRTEAEEE YTHEFSEE -

HyiF

() BEFEER-_ZT-_=F+= ﬁﬂﬁtfﬁﬁ
FRTES EHBEREI2EHZE
F+-_A=+— EtifEE%Wﬁﬁm§$
CeHEMBREASREIIR -

2 TREXENR_ZTZ_=FEA_+HAETH
BEBIFNTES  RHEABN2EEE
TR+ A=+ RLEFEEEHAS
THEESRARBERGERBIITR -

Q) HERIENR_T_=FRA-_+HABEZ
ERBUFNTESE  HBERHD2EEH
Z&i%&l«%ﬂ(%ﬁﬂ’ﬂ%%ggﬁ R A& R
SR °

2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-=HF3 29



ERELIRE (B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days' notice
of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as
practicable for other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board
meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment before the
same will be tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the company
secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Hui Tsz Wai acted as
company secretary from 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023. With effect
from 30 June 2023, Ms. Ng Sau Mei, an external service provider, has
been appointed by the Company as the company secretary. Her
primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Hong Tianzhu (an
executive Director and chairman of the Board). In accordance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Ng had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant and in compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG
Code, the Company would arrange and fund suitable continuous
professional development for the Directors to participate in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, the Company had provided all the Directors with
regular updates regarding the Company's performance as well as
updates on latest amendments and developments to the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from
time to time.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the Securities
Code") regarding securities transactions by Directors and officers on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code (“Model Code”) for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

A copy of the Securities Code has been sent to each Director of the
Company first on his/her appointment and thereafter twice
annually, 30 days and 60 days before the date of the Board
meetings to approve the Company's interim results and annual
results respectively, with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives of the Company until after such results
have been published, and that all his dealings must be conducted in
accordance with the Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, the Directors are required to notify
Mr. Hong Tianzhu or Mr. Zhu Yongxiang or a Director (other than
himself/herself) designated by the Board for the specific purpose
(each a “Designated Director”) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement from such Designated Director before dealing in
the securities and derivatives of the Company.

The Company, having made specific enquiry on all the Directors,
confirms that all the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Code and the Model Code during
the Year.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the chairman of the Company. Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang is the vice chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Cheng Longdi,
Professor Tao Xiaoming has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for an initial term of one year commencing
from their respective date of appointment as an INED renewable
automatically for successive term of one year each commencing
from the next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment, unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the independent non-executive
Director or the Company expiring at the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased to be an
independent non-executive Director on 25 May 2023. The Company
has paid an annual director’s fee of HKD125,000 to Mr. Ting Leung
Huel Stephen, HKD150,000 to Professor Cheng Longdi, HKD180,000
to Professor Tao Xiaoming and HKD120,273.97 to Mr. Shu Wa Tung,
Laurence for the year ended 31 December 2023. Save for the above
directors’ fees, none of the independent non-executive Directors has
received any other remuneration for holding their office as an
independent non-executive Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a nomination committee (the “"Nomination
Committee”) and an environmental, social and governance
committee (the “ESG Committee”), each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the company
secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the committees
are required to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures and
arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned on page 29 in the
section “The Board” above, have been adopted for the committee
meetings so far as practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee since
November 2004, which currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, namely
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor
Cheng Longdi. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased to
be the chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 25 May 2023.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of reference
which are in line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice in accordance with the Company's policy if considered
necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(©) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, this should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

(e)  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination

of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h)  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration; and

(i) to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. Two
committee meetings were held during the Year to review and
discuss the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of both the executive Directors and senior
management and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

BEEZEE(H)

FWNEES (&)

O WA MMERIRTEELSHEEAE
MEELSKRIEBUSEZTMAEL M
BE - UERZEREES NG —E
ERAEHEA LG —E  BENEALTE
12 ARBS

(@ RIEKBAEANERTAREMERREX
REFMS MR ELRYE - UERZEF L
HE KRR — B HREEEAHIRR—
B BEBENEREEE

(h HEREFNEFIETABBEATGZHE
BEMECHHMN: &

0 BERER/AHEEELETRAEI7EERET
B EIMEE -

YR EesFRAELAR—REE - FAE
RITMAZESEH  UERLTWESZHA
THMBRERE  THATEERSRER
BewMrBRnESeRftrs mMEKEZ
HEERESIMT :

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee members ZEERE HE BTEESERZRE

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 2/2
(retired on 25 May 2023) (RZZBZ=FRAZ+EHBRK)

Tao Xiaoming b8 & A 2/2

Cheng Longdi TR 2/2

Shu Wa Tung, Laurence HER 0/2

(appointed on 25 May 2023)

In addition to the Committee meetings, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during the
Year. The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment or service
contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior executives and key
employees of the Group, including the executive Directors, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) in April 2014 for a term of ten years. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 66 to
68 and note 20 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since November 2004,
the current members of the Audit Committee are
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor
Cheng Longdi. The chairman of the Audit Committee is
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased to
be the chairman of the Audit Committee on 25 May 2023. To retain
independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee has been
chaired by an INED with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Audit
Committee has adopted terms of reference, which are in line with
the code provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice according to the
Company'’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(@)  to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(c)  to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(d)  to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company's annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them, and to review the Company's annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports before submission to the Board;

(e)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss;

() to review the Company'’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

(g)  to discuss with the management the risk management and

internal control systems and ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

(h)  to consider any findings of major investigations of risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response;

(i) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and

practices; and

(0 to review the external auditor's management letter,
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or

systems of control and management’s response.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Two
committee meetings were held during the Year and the attendance

of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee members ZEERE HE BTEESEEZRE

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 1/2
(retired on 25 May 2023) (RZE_=FRA=_F+HBRIK)

Tao Xiaoming ba i BF 2/2

Cheng Longdi TRER 2/2

Shu Wa Tung, Laurence AFER 172

(appointed on 25 May 2023)

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had

performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “2022 Final Audit”);

(i) reviewed the external auditor's report of findings in relation to

the 2022 Final Audit;

(i) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31 December

2022 and for the six months ended 30 June 2023; and

(iv)  reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of the
Group including financial, operational and compliance control

and risk management functions of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

On 19 March 2012, the Board has approved the establishment of
the Nomination Committee which became effective on 1 April 2012.
The current members of Nomination Committee comprises an
executive Director and the chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong
Tianzhu and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor Cheng Longdi and
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased to
be a member of the Nomination Committee on 25 May 2023. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The
Nomination Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in
line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice in
accordance with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

(@) to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on:

(i) the role, responsibilities, capabilities, skills, knowledge
and experience required from members of the Board;

(i) the policy on the terms of employment of non-executive
Directors;

(i) the composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and other board committees of the

Company;

(iv)  proposed changes to the structure, size and composition
of the Board;

(v) candidates suitably qualified to become members of the
Board;

(vi)  the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

36  TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XIIEIMEEERARA

%%%é = (&)

REZEES

RZE——F=ZA+NB EFgHEKTIR
HEBE RN_TE——FHNA—BLER A
ZESRIXNEBRERNTESTRARAIERE A
KL R=FBIIFRTES - BIEE A
R REBRRBRMETERLAE - T REBLAE
RZBEZ=FAATHARBTBARIERELE
KB - RBLESERARRNLE - B
ZESERMBETEETATRIMSTFRNEN —E
MIGEHE - RRLTEEREEHNERETT
B YEEBEEEEBIT  BRELRARFK
RERBUEESR -

REZESWIERULIIGEWT :

@ ELEFRIESINRE  ABKMAEK
(BfEEEE - MBNERTHE) - YREE
ARBMDEREMRSESTSIEHLH
EREEQROES

b) YEABREERAREIEENHAL I
HEREABATHEESTARMLRE
FERfER

© AHEBILIFERTESOBILIE

) MREFERTINFEFHERERSE

() FREZeXEMEENAE &
£ B8 - BeRE - AR

(i ZEFATESHREFNOBRK:

(i) ARRBEZE® FMHZEER
HtEBEZ 8B SMMARK

(v EEEHZME - ABRAERFHEL
BB

v EBEEAEEREXESZENREAN:

Vi) BEWEBALHEES



ERELGHSE (|
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on: (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

the re-election by shareholders of the Company of any
Directors who are to retire by rotation having regard to
their performance and ability to continue to contribute
to the Board;

the continuation (or not) in service of any independent
non-executive Director serving more than nine years
and to provide recommendation to the shareholders of
the Company as to how to vote in the resolution
approving the re-election of such independent
non-executive Director;

the appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive; and

the policy concerning diversity of Board members;

(e)  to give full consideration to the following in the discharge of
its duties as mentioned above or elsewhere in these terms of
reference:

(iff)

(iv)

(vi)

succession planning of Directors;

leadership needs of the Group with a view of
maintaining or fostering the competitive edge of the
Group over others;

changes in market environment and commercial needs
of the market in which the Group operates;

the skills and expertise required from members of the
Board;

the Board’s policy concerning diversity of Board
members adopted from time to time; and

the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with
regard to directors of a listed issuer;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

()

in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered into
by any members of the Group with its director or proposed
director, which require the prior approval of the shareholders
of the Company at general meeting under rule 13.68 of the
Listing Rules, to review and provide recommendations to the
shareholders of the Company (other than shareholders who
are directors with a material interest in the relevant service
contracts and their respective associates) as to whether the
terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable and
whether such service contracts are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole, and to advise
shareholders on how to vote;

to ensure upon the appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out
what is expected of them in terms of time commitment,
committee service and involvement outside meetings of the
Board;

to conduct interviews with any Director upon their resignation

in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. Two
committee meetings were held during the Year to review the
structure and composition of the Board and the re-election of the
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retiring Directors and the attendance of each member is set out as SLEFIINT
follows:
Number of committee
meeting attended/held
Committee members ZEEHE HE BITZEE8B2RE
Hong Tianzhu R 2/2
Tao Xiaoming i85 & A 2/2
Cheng Longdi TRER 2/2
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR#E 1/2
(retired on 25 May 2023) (RZEZ=FHA=-+HBRIK)
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence ArER 1/2

(appointed on 25 May 2023)

(R-ZB-_=FRA-+HBEMEF)

38  TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XIIEIMEEERAA



ERELIRE (B|)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

The Company has established the ESG Committee since 23 August
2021, which currently comprises executive Director of the Company,
namely Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. The chairman
of the ESG Committee is Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen ceased to be a member of the ESG Committee on 25 May
2023 and Mr. Tang Daoping ceased to be a chairman and member
of the ESG Committee on 8 December 2023. The ESG Committee
has adopted written terms of reference. The ESG Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company'’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the ESG Committee are:

(i) to formulate and review the Company’s concepts, strategies,
frameworks, principles and policies in respect of
environmental protection, corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility, make relevant
recommendations to the Board and implement the
environmental protection, corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility policies formulated by the
Board;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility policies and practices to ensure compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(i) to take measures to promote the Company’s environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility, and formulate corporate objectives, goals, key
performance indicators and measures to ensure performance
in response to the areas of environmental protection,
corporate governance and corporate social responsibility (as
appropriate);

(iv)  to monitor expenditures arising from Company’s environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility work; and

(v)  to review the annual “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” and make recommendations to the Board for
approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (Continued)

The ESG Committee shall meet at least once a year. One committee

EEZ89 @)
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meeting was held during the Year and the attendance of each T—REEEEE  MEKEZHEBRET
member is set out as follows: ZZD—F :
Number of committee
meeting attended/held
Committee members ZEERE HE BTZESEB2XE
Zhu Yongxiang RIKFE 0/1
(appointed on 8 December 2023) (R—ZE-_=F+-_ANBZIT)
Tang Daoping R 1/1
(resigned on 8 December 2023) (RZE-_=F+-ANHET)
Tao Xiaoming fa B BA /1
Cheng Longdi TRER /1
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR#E /1
(retired on 25 May 2023) (RZEZ_=FRA=-+HHEK)
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence ATER 0/1

(appointed on 25 May 2023)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The director nomination policy (the “Director Nomination Policy”) of
the Company aims to set out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company; ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors

The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out as
follows:

bringing an independent view and judgment and make
constructive recommendation on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for Non-Executive Director) and other relevant
Board Committees, if invited;

devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s)
on which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit
from his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and
participation in the Board;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors
(Continued)

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance;

ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he or she
serves to perform their powers and functions conferred on
them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules, where
appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s
education, qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to
consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an INED with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Nomination process
(@) Appointment of New Director

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

(i)~ The Nomination Committee should then, assess based
on the relevant information available to it, recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)
Nomination process (Continued)
(@) Appointment of New Director (Continued)

(iv)  For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the
general meeting.

(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring Director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring Director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(iii) ~ The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or
re-elect a candidate as Director at the general meeting,
the relevant information of the candidate will be
disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing
Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

(c) Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual
as an INED at the general meeting, it should set out in the
circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

(i) the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected and
the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Nomination process (Continued)

(c)

Re-election of INED at General Meeting (Continued)

(i) if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(iv)  how the individual contributes to diversity (including
gender diversity) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
Director Nomination Policy and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs, to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations from time to
time and maintain good corporate governance practice.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 5 August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which aims to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit while taking into account diversity including gender
diversity. The Nomination Committee will regularly review the
measurable objectives to ensure its effectiveness to achieve diversity
on the Board. The following measurable objectives have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy:

inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors and there shall be at least one female member on
the Board;

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge
and skills in different aspects.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved. 5 out of 5 members of the Board have overseas working
experience and 1 out of 5 members of the Board have accounting
or other professional qualifications. The Board is also a mixed-gender
board with female representation brought by Professor Tao
Xiaoming, an independent non-executive Director. The Board
recognises the importance and benefits of gender diversity at Board
level and shall continue to take initiatives to identify suitable female
candidates for board succession planning and enhancement of
gender diversity in the Board. To increase gender diversity on the
Board, the Board has actively sought out candidates who are
qualified and suitable. At present, the Nomination Committee
considers that an appropriate balance of gender and skills diversity
of the Board is maintained. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the Group's business needs and consider further appointment of
female directors as appropriate. In order to build a pipeline of
potential successors for the Board to increase gender diversity in the
Board in the upcoming years, the Group will also proactively provide
trainings to our senior managements to create an inclusive
workplace and may also work with human resources firms to
identify potential successors for the Board.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment etc.), identify and recommend the proposed candidate
to the Board for approval of an appointment.

Set forth below are the gender ratio in the Group’s workforce as at
31 December 2023:
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Male (%) Female (%)
B (%) Z % (%)
Directors o= 80.0 200
Workforce (including senior management) THEEER(BEaRERRE) 497 50.3

Based on the existing composition of the workforce, the
management has deemed that the workforce has more or less
achieved gender parity and no targets have been set. The targets
will be revisited periodically based on a range of criteria, including
current and expected size of each department in the future,
changes in the number of female staff members in each
department, and the needs of each department with reference to
the Group's business development plans.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a Director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior
management will subsequently conduct such briefing as is
necessary to give the new Directors more detailed information on
the Group's businesses and activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND ESG
COMMITTEE

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the effectiveness of the
corporate governance and system of internal non-financial controls
of the Group. The Board shall introduce and propose relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and to review and
determine the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to
ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices in the
Group.

During the Year, the Board regularly reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors,
and the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements the Board has also reviewed the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and the disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report. In August 2021, the Company
established the ESG Committee to oversee and report to the Board
on matters relating to environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
practices of the Group and to ensure compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements on ESG including corporate governance
principles applicable to the Company. For details, please refer to the
paragraph headed "Board Committees” above.

EEENESTLHRE#)
MEFERZARBEME —EABREMX
 HEMBIREAEAREMRAUBAE ARk
EHESFEETZEEREB 2HES - EHX
HIHBREARARF MY BHREREES
Rz ERERERXMT - SREEBREH
REFEZHREFTH  ASFEFRELAKE
XS FHAER -

TEEEREHRESGEES

EXeTI R AHRAKENDERT R RAR
FMBEERRNERE - EFTSHREEE
Al AKEZRAETR TERHMEELERE
BREK - UREMERAEENSEELEE
REAM

FR EZCTHRTVEREETNFIIRE
BEERRE URARREITEAEREEEXRK
MR REH EEFeNEHAAGEBTRE
ERTAMBRIRACEEARERNNHEE -
MNZZT=—F)\A ARRIKIESGEEE - M
EEVTREETEREAUAEEIRE LR
BB ([ESG]) BN EE - WHEMARESTESGH T
RZEEREERT EYEEERRAAAN
PEERRA - RS F2RHEXESE

Bgl—R-

2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-=#F#3#% 45



EREGHS (|

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from finance department, the financial statements of the
Group. In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the Companies
Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in the Auditor's Report
on pages 84 to 92.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Framework

The risk management and internal controls system will assist the
Group to fully achieve its strategic objective by identifying and
assessing all the risk exposure of the Group and setting down
corresponding control measures, with a view to attain the long-term
vision of the Group. We believe that effective risk management and
internal controls system will enhance shareholders’ value in the long
term. The risk faced by the Group directly relates to its control
measures and mitigation plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BMERZE (&)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) EpEE R AIBEEE ()
Framework (Continued) ER(E)

At AREEERE IR R AR EEERNT -

Accordingly, the risk management and internal controls framework
of our Group is as follows:

The Board Audit Committee
E=g N EREEE

*  To set strategic objectives » To assist the Board in

*  To assume overall responsibility for the Group’s risk monitoring risk exposure,
management and internal controls system design and operating

* To assess and determine the nature of the risks and our effectiveness of the
level of tolerance for each of them underlying risk

»  To review the effectiveness of our risk management and management and internal
internal controls system controls system

»  To provide direction on the importance of risk *  To monitor and review
management and risk management culture the effectiveness of the

internal audit department
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- ZHEEASENRBRERNABEIEFRL «  BhEFSEERERKA -

- FHMEREERROEEARERIEE HE A R B 222 % T B A

c BAAREERRER LA RGN R REOTH)RR AT AEER

+ REREENEREREREEREMAES C %ﬁ%@%ﬁm%%%%ﬁﬁ

Internal Audit Risk Management and

Internal Controls Team
R B EEANBER M

To assist the Audit
Committee in
reviewing the
effectiveness of our
risk management and
internal controls
system

To perform analysis
and independent
assessment on the
adequacy and
effectiveness of our
risk management and
internal control system
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To design, implement,
and monitor risk
management and
internal controls
system

To assess the risk
profile of the Group
and each of our
operating units and the
risk mitigating
measures

To give confirmation to
the Board on the
effectiveness of the
risk management and
internal controls
functions
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Framework (Continued)

The operating model of the Group’s risk management and internal
control framework conforms to the internal controls framework of
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) in the following five aspects:

. Control Environment

The Group has established a clear organization structure and
delegated powers necessary to perform different business
functions to management at different levels but it is subject
to the limit set by the Board. The Board meets regularly to
discuss and approve the business strategies and working
plans set by each operating units. The Group will report our
financial performance to the Board on monthly basis.

Our governance rules and requirements are very transparent
to employees. We hope to build up risk awareness and
internal controls responsibility in our corporate culture by
creating an internal organizational environment driven by the
management operating philosophy, risk awareness, integrity
and ethical values.

. Risk Assessment

The Group identifies, assesses and grades the risks that are
most relevant to the success of the Group based on the
possibility of occurrence and the impact on the financial
result of the risk. Risk management and internal controls team
is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the top,
performing risk assessment, as well as taking care of the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Meanwhile, it requires department heads from each of the
operating units to identify operating risks from the bottom in
order to determine the major risks and the risk levels of the
Group.

. Control Activities

The Group has policy and procedure in place for all business
functions, including authorization, approval and audit,
recommendation, performance review, asset protection and
division of duty, to ensure effective execution of organization
objectives and mitigation of risk activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Framework (Continued)

. Information and Communication

The risk management and internal controls team performs risk
assessment and prepare the “Annual Report of Risk
Management” on a semi-annual basis, which sets out the
identified risks and related control procedures. The report will
be submitted to the Board and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

. Monitoring

The Group self-assesses its controls and risks by internal
review and circulating major control procedures to its
employees to maintain continuous monitoring of the internal
control procedures. Rectification will be made according to
findings of the control procedures in order to improve
internal monitoring.

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
Composition

A risk management and internal controls team has been set up by
the Group in 2016, which comprises Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (executive
Director, vice chairman of the Board and chief executive officer), and
members including general manager and department head from
each of our operating units, and general managers and department
head of finance and human resources department of our
subsidiaries. Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an executive Director and chairman
of the Board as the advisor of the working team.

Major Tasks

Set out below are the major responsibilities of our risk management
and internal control team:

The team shall formulate proposal and plan for building and
promotion of corporate culture in risk awareness and to lead
in providing risk management training.

The team shall prepare and conduct annual and interim reviews
on risk profile and formulate mitigating measures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)

Major Tasks (Continued)

50

The team shall summarize and analyze the findings of the
review exercise, to advise any modification to the risk
management strategy, to lead and assist relevant departments
in formulating counter measures in addressing any material
risks.

[t shall conduct annual internal evaluation on its own risk
management function, to lead and mobilize the establishment
and modification of risk management and internal controls
system, to give guidance to subsidiaries on initiation of setting
up of risk management system.

It shall prepare the “Annual Report on Risk Management” and
submit the same to our Audit Committee for review and
approval.

It shall be responsible to formulate or modify the relevant risk
management and internal controls system and to oversee its
implementation, to give guidance and assist the subsidiaries
on setting up and optimizing their risk management practical
measures.

[t shall be responsible for the organization, compiling of
minutes and oversight of implementation of relevant
resolutions concerning the risk management function in the
meetings of the Audit Committee and Board meetings.

It shall strictly comply its plan to counter risks by implementing
the measures stipulated therein and to monitor the work rate
and efficiency of such implementation on an ongoing basis,
and advise on remedy in a timely manner.

It shall monitor the status and development of any risk events
and formulate and devise contingency plan in a timely
manner, to forthwith report or inform the Audit Committee
on such matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)

Work Accomplished During the Year

Our risk management and internal controls team held two meetings
during the Year, and reported twice to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the annual risk assessment and findings of internal
controls review. The team accomplished the following work during
the Year:

1. issued relevant documents on risk assessment and internal
controls within the Group to enhance its risk management
culture;

2. performed a general review on the major risk exposure of the

Group, especially in areas relating to raw material purchase,
foreign exchange and exchange rate, credit management and
taxation;

3. discussed the possible risk and impact on operating result with
department heads from each of our operating units;

4. reviewed and improved corresponding internal controls
measure; and

5. prepared and submitted the annual report on risk assessment
and internal controls to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Details of the major risks of the Group are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 20 to 27.

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. For the Year, our
Board had conducted its annual review of the representations made
by the management in respect of risk management and internal
controls, and considered that our Group's risk management and
internal controls system effective and adequate. No significant areas
of weaknesses and deficiency that might have affected the financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group were identified. The Board is of the view that the
resources, qualification and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, as well
as those relating to the Company's ESG performance and reporting
and their training and budget are adequate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness (Continued)

The risk management and internal controls system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our
business objectives. Like all other systems, it could not entirely
eliminate the impact of all unforeseeable risks and events beyond
our control that might emerge and occur during the course of our
operation. Consequently, the Board may only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that there was no significant
misrepresentation or deficiency as to the completeness and
effectiveness of our Group’s risk management and internal controls.

Disclosure of Inside Information

Regarding procedures and measures of internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group:

1. is aware of its obligation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced on a timely manner;

2. conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

3. has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to
the public through channels such as financial reporting,
announcements and its website;

4. has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorized use of non-public or inside information; and

5. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the

implementation of the Continuous Disclosures Policy and
relevant trainings are also provided.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
External Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the Year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set
out as follows:
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Paid/Payable

Services rendered to the Group ) 2% 5= B 42 it 2 AR 7% Bt E A

RMB'000

ARBFIT

Annual audit service FEEZRS 3,500
Non-audit services (including consulting service JEEZ iR (B IR E % T E MRS H
for transfer pricing and tax and preliminary A SRARTS R ) 2 AR A ) 1 TE AR

announcement of results) Fr) 1,400

Total: CE 4,900

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars that are posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Company's annual general meeting (the "AGM”) is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The chairman actively participated in the AGM held during the year
and personally chaired the meeting to answer any questions from
the shareholders. A separate resolution had been proposed by the
chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An
AGM circular and AGM notice had been distributed to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”) and the Listing Rules,
setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures
and other relevant information. The chairman explained the
procedures for conducting a poll at the beginning of the AGM, and
answered any questions from shareholders regarding voting by way
of poll.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (the “Shareholders”, each
a "Shareholder”) of the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company are prepared in
accordance with Article 64 of the Articles:

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)") holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than 8% of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings shall have the right, by written notice (the
"Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by the Directors
for the transaction of any business specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company via email at the email
address of the Company at main@texhong.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such Requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of the deposit of such Requisition, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall
be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries

1.

54

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of
the Company via email at the email address of the Company
at main@texhong.com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together

with their detailed contact information for the prompt
response from the Company if it deems appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures and contact details for putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings

1. To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its
proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact
information via email at the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

2. The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar
that the request is proper and in order and made by a
Shareholder, the Board determines whether to include the
Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting to be set out
in the notice of meeting.

3. The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(i) Notice of not less than 21 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting;

(i) Notice of not less than 14 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in meeting other than an
annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. Through the
communication with Shareholders via various channels as outlined
above, the Board was able to receive invaluable feedback and
opinion from Shareholders. The Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the above shareholders’ communication policy
during the Year and, based on the Shareholder engagement
through the communication channels available, concluded that it
was effective. We will continue to review and, where appropriate,
improve our current practices on the basis of our experience,
regulatory changes and development. Any views and suggestions
from our Shareholders are also welcome to enhance our
transparency.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND STOCK SHORT
NAME AND AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 28 December 2022, the issue of the Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the Registrar of
companies in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2023, the English
name of the Company has been changed from “Texhong Textile
Group Limited” to “Texhong International Group Limited” and the
dual foreign name of the Company in Chinese has been changed
from "R HEEEFEER AR to "RITBEKREEBER A F" with
effect from 4 January 2023. The memorandum of association and
the Articles (collectively, the “Memorandum and Articles of
Association”) were amended and a new set of Memorandum and
Articles of Association was adopted to reflect such change of name
of the Company with effect from 4 January 2023.

The stock short name for trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange has been changed from “TEXHONG TEXTILE” to “TEXHONG
INTL GP” in English, and from “XKIL#54%" to “RITEFRERE" in
Chinese with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 2 February 2023. The stock
code of the Company remains unchanged as “2678".

For further details of the change of company name and stock short

name, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7
November 2022 and 30 January 2023.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Tianzhu, aged 56, is an executive Director and chairman
of the Group. He is the founder of the Group and was appointed as
executive Director on 27 July 2004. He is responsible for the
strategic development and strategic deployment, project investment
and decision-making for major issues, leadership and policy
decision-making for establishment of corporate culture of the Group.
He has over 20 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to
establishing the Group, Mr. Hong was a vice general manager of &
TBLREHEBR AR (injang Yifeng Garment Weaving
Company Limited). Mr. Hong's interest in the shares of HK$0.10 each
in the share capital of the Company (“Shares”) is disclosed under the
paragraph headed “Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, aged 57, is an executive Director, vice
chairman and chief executive officer of the Group. He was
appointed as executive Director on 27 July 2004. He is responsible
for the strategy implementation, operational planning and
decision-making, decision-making for major issues and
organizational implementation of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated
from the FI#E#%4E TEBT (Nantong Textile Industry College) in
1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr. Zhu was an assistant to
the general manager of B2 — &% &M (Nantong No. 2 Cotton
Textile Factory). Mr. Zhu's interest in the Shares of the Company is
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Tang Daoping, aged 58, was an executive Director and chief
operation officer of the Group and resigned from such positions on
8 December 2023. Prior to his resignation, he had been responsible
for the operation management of the Group. Mr. Tang graduated
from N EIEE 18 KE (Xuzhou Radio and TV University) in 1996
majoring in accounting and administrative management. Mr. Tang
has over 30 years of experience in the textile industry. He was a
workshop manager of R 38 4% 45 4% g (Suining Cotton Textile
Factory) prior to joining the Group in 1998 as a vice general
manager. Mr. Tang was promoted and became a director of Jiangsu
Century Texhong in September 2002.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Tao Xiaoming, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 March 2014. Professor Tao
is an elected fellow of The Textile Institute, the American Society of
Mechanical Engineers, the Royal Academy of Arts and Design and
Commerce of the United Kingdom, and has been the chair professor
in Textile Technology at the Institute of Textiles and Clothing of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University since April 2002. She was elected
as the world president of The Textile Institute for a tenure of three
years from May 2007. Professor Tao received a bachelor's degree in
textile engineering from China Textile University (/7 B4 4% K )
(currently known as Donghua University (3% KX E2) of the PRC in
January 1982 and a doctorate degree in textile physics from
University of New South Wales in August 1987. From September
1987 to September 1988 and from October 1990 to September
1994, she had been a scientist of the Commonwealth Scientific and
Industrial Research Organisation of Australia. From October 1988 to
January 1990, she had been a lecturer of Donghua University.
Professor Tao was a recipient of prestigious individual awards of the
field: the honorary fellowship of the Textile Institute in 2010, the
founder award of the Fiber Society of the United States in 2013, and
Guanghua Engineering Scientific and Technological Award of
Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2020. With seven academic
monographs, over 800 research papers published and over 41
patents granted, she has been internationally recognised in
particular for her pioneering work on smart textiles and clothing and
textile engineering such as low-twist yarns, solospun yarns and
fabric sensing technology which have been widely applied in the
textile industry.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Professor Cheng Longdi, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 November 2004.
Professor Cheng obtained his doctorate degree in textile
engineering from Donghua University in 2002 and has obtained the
membership of the China Textile Engineering Society. He is currently
a professor (2nd grade) in College of Textiles and a deputy director
of the Key Laboratory of Textile Science and Technology of
Donghua University. Professor Cheng is a member of the expert
committee of each of the following institutions: the China Cotton
Textile Association of New Technology (as a deputy director), the
China Knitting Industrial Association, the China Bast and Leaf Fibers
Textile Association and the China Textile Machinery Association.
Professor Cheng was an engineer of the China Textile Academy
(formerly known as Textile Academy of Textile Ministry).

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA,
CTA (HK), FHKIoD, aged 70, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director on 21 November 2004 and retired as
independent non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2023. Mr. Ting is an accountant in public practice and has more
than 30 years’ experience in this field. Currently he is a partner and
director of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited
respectively. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of six other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely China SCE
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 01966), Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 00046), Dongyue Group
Limited (stock code: 00189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
(stock code: 00472), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 01666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
00698) respectively. He is also a non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (stock code: 00116).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, aged 51, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2023. He has over 20 years of experience in audit, corporate finance
and financial management. He was an independent non-executive
Director of Chengdu Expressway Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1785) from November 2016 to
September 2022, Riverine China Holdings Limited (@ company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1417) since November 2017,
Twintek Investment Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 6182) since December 2017, Goldstream
Investment Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1328) since December 2019 and Termbray Industries
International (Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0093) since April 2022. Mr. Shu was
accountant, semi-senior accountant of assurance & advisory
department, senior accountant of corporate advisory services
department, and senior accountant, associate manager and manager
of reorganization services group of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
March 1994 to October 2000. Mr. Shu was a manager of Deloitte &
Touche Corporate Finance Ltd. (a corporate finance service company
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu) from July 2001 to November 2002.
Mr. Shu was an associate director of Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited
from November 2002 to April 2005. Mr. Shu was the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company from May 2005
to July 2008, overseeing the group’s financial management
functions. Mr. Shu served as the chief financial officer of Jiangsu
Rongsheng Heavy Industries Holding Co., Ltd. (T &k /A BX & T 1 i%
BBRAT]) from July 2008 to June 2010. Mr. Shu served as the chief
financial officer of Petro-king OQilfield Services Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2178) from July 2010 to
July 2018. From August 2018 to November 2019, Mr. Shu was the
chief financial officer of Brainhole Technology Limited (formerly
known as Top Dynamic International Holdings Limited) (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2203). Mr. Shu joined
ContiOcean Environment Tech Co., Ltd. as the chief financial officer
since September 2020. Mr. Shu graduated from Deakin University,
Australia in September 1994 and obtained his bachelor’s degree in
business majoring in accounting, and completed his CFO
Programme at China Europe International Business School (F [ B
PRI ZET) in November 2009. Mr. Shu was accredited as a
certified public accountant associate by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in September 1997. Mr. Shu was
admitted as a member to the Hong Kong Independent
Non-executive Director Association in May 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sha Tao, aged 58, is a vice president of the Group and director
of our grey fabric production and management center. Mr. Sha
obtained his bachelor's degree in textile from #E$5# T ¥ 257
(Wuxi Light Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 30 years of
experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1998,
he was a factory manager of one of the factories of F 2 — 184
KM (Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, aged 60, is a vice president of the Group and
general manager of Taizhou business segment. Mr. Hu graduated
from #8583 K22 (Wuxi Professional University) in textile in 1984.
Mr. Hu has over 30 years of experience in the textile industry. He
was a vice general manager of &85 EER R AR (Wuxi Xieda
Weaving Company Limited) prior to joining the Group in 1998.

Mr. Cao Youchang, aged 55, is a vice president of the Group and
director of the yarn production and management center of the
Group. He is responsible for the yarn production of the Group.
Mr. Cao graduated from 3B %5 4% T 2F% (Nantong Textile Industry
College) with a bachelor's degree in textile engineering in 1994.
Mr. Cao has over 26 years of experience in the textile industry. He
joined the Group in 2000, and served as the director of yarn
technology of the Group.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (Vice chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Tang Daoping (resigned on 8 December 2023)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman,)
(retired on 25 May 2023)

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (Chairman) (appointed on 25 May 2023)

Professor Tao Xiaoming
Professor Cheng Longdi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chalirman)
(retired on 25 May 2023)

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (Chairman) (appointed on 25 May 2023)

Professor Tao Xiaoming
Professor Cheng Longdi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (retired on 25 May 2023)

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (appointed on 25 May 2023)

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

ESG COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (Chairman) (appointed on 8 December 2023)

Mr. Tang Daoping (Chairman) (resigned on 8 December 2023)

Professor Tao Xiaoming
Professor Cheng Longdi
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (ceased to be a member on 25 May 2023)
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
(appointed as a member on 25 May 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (resigned on 30 June 2023)
Ms. Ng Sau Mei (appointed on 30 June 2023)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (resigned on 30 June 2023)
Ms. Ng Sau Mei (appointed on 30 June 2023)

HEAD OFFICE

Room 03, 37/F
Cable TV Tower
9 Hoi Shing Road
Tsuen Wan

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank

Citibank

Bank of Communications

United Overseas Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

China Merchants Bank

DBS Bank

Hang Seng Bank Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Chiu & Partners

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
2103B

21st Floor

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.texhong.com

STOCK CODE
2678

AMREE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
submit their report together with the audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 41 to the accompanying financial statements.

Business segments

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics. Business analysis of
revenue, segment results, total assets and capital expenditure are set
out in note 5 to the accompanying financial statements.

Geographical segments

The Group mainly operates its business in China, Southeast Asia and
the Americas. Geographical analysis of revenue, segment results,
total assets, and capital expenditure are set out in note 5 to the
accompanying financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance, position and likely future development of the
Company’s business as well as principal risks facing the Company,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance of such rules and
regulations on the business. During the year ended 31 December
2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
maintaining the highest environmental and social standards to
ensure sustainable development of its business. The Group
understands that a better future depends on everyone's
participation and contribution in environmental protection. All
employees are encouraged to participate in environmental and
social activities which benefit the community as a whole.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group advocates cleaner production and pursues both
environmental and economic benefits through means such as
reducing pollutant emissions, improving energy efficiency and
reducing material consumption. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged employees to
develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.

Details of the Group's environmental policies and performance can
be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Group dated 25 March 2024.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are its valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration packages of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, the Directors or senior management have maintained
good communication, exchanged feedback and shared business
updates with them when appropriate. During the year ended 31
December 2023, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 95 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 21 to the
accompanying financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note
7 to the accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 19 to the accompanying financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2023 is set
out in note 39 to the accompanying financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Shareholders of the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on
7 April 2014 (the "Adoption Date”). The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the
Group. All directors, employees and other eligible participants under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are eligible to participate in the
Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date, with
remaining life of approximately less than one month as at the date
approval of this financial report, due to expire on 6 April 2024.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company (“Shares”) on the Adoption
Date (the “General Scheme Limit"). The Company may renew the
General Scheme Limit with Shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the Shares in the
Company in issue as at the date of the Shareholders” approval.

As at 1 January 2023, the number of options available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme was 81,968,117. As at 31 December
2023, the number of options available for grant under the Share
Option Scheme was 85,468,117. As at the date of this report, the
total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme was 85,468,117 Shares, representing approximately 9.31% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

Unless approved by Shareholders of the Company, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-months period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit").

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal consideration
of HKS$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the option, subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of
options to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme as to the fair value of
the share options granted are disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements. The fair values of share options calculated using the
binomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due
to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of
assumptions of the expected future performance input to the
model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself. The fair
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, movements of the share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme are summarised as

BRE )

BRETSEEAKLERES

FEMNE ¥

HBERMBHRRME22WE - AR RS TEH]
ARRBBABBZ ZHABRNEIBMEE RS

fEE
5

CORNEE=5=—=w0)
Al gk

RBE-T

HEBER

M ARBEAR G H) 5 T BB R ER -
ARG HBRER
RIEHIFTARR - BIRAER

FEEETE
RS T WA
1 U R 1 72

FEEHELEA

=47
=

“ZHE+-A=T-BLEFE R

EBRE SR B RN E AT

follows:

Number of share options
Weighted
average
Closing price Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled closing price
per Share Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding  immediately
immediately asat theyearended the year ended the year ended the year ended asat before the
before the  Exercise price 1January  31December 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December date(s) of
List of grantees Date of grant (Note) Exercise period date of grant per share 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 exercise
REE REE REE HEE
R-B-=f  -%-=f  -¥-=f ZECZE ZBCSE O RCECEE
RERY M -f-B tZB=t-B tZAZt-B fZA=t-8 +ZAZt-B tZA=t-B REAKAZH
ERALE REARHE) 8 28REHE  SROKE AE LEERE  LFEFE  LEEXM LEEEH ATE NMETAUTE
HKS HKS HKS
#n #n -1
Employee participant
EasEE
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai 23 March 2015 1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - - -
(resignation effective from “T-REZF-fZR —ET-RE-F-HE
30 June 2003) tNote /) “RoRFSACTCA
FTERE 23 March 2015 1 January 2017 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - - -
(R=Z-=£75A=tE8 -2-RE=A-f+=8 ZZ-tE-f-8%
MO “RCRFZACTCR
23 March 2015 1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - - -
Z3-RFZACTZR -\§-A-BE
:*“ﬁﬁ:ﬁ‘—‘ﬁ
28 December 2015 1 2020 to 27 Decerber 2025 584 570 200000 - - 200,000 - - -
Z2-RETZRZTA £-A-8%
Subik: gkl gl
28 December 2015 1 January 2021 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - 300,000 - - -
TR-RETSACTAR CEC-F-A-HE
CRCIETCACTLR
Total 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000 - -
&t
Notes: Mt -
1. On 30 June 2023, Mr. Hui Tsz Wai resigned as company secretary of 1. Eéf S=FRNA=TH FTFELEERHTR
the Company, authorised representative of the Company and director TW\E RATIRERRRASEEBHM
of other subsidiaries of the Group, and the 3,500,000 options granted WE RIE S - M2 mEE L 235000001
to him were lapsed on the same date. BIERRBEER -
2. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until 2. EhEs FERHRL ARREE/TE NS
the commencement of the exercise period. RBlE-e
As at the date of this report, no share options were outstanding RAERE B E - BT 8118 T 0 /B B AR A &
under the Share Option Scheme. RITEE o
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this report were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping (resigned on 8 December 2023)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen* (retired on 25 May 2023)
Professor Cheng Longdi*

Professor Tao Xiaoming*

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence* (appointed on 25 May 2023)

* Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and Professor Cheng Longdi will retire as
Directors by rotation and they, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, all being
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of one year, and will continue thereafter
for successive terms of one year until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi, all being independent non-executive
Directors, has been appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from their respective dates of appointment as an INED
renewable automatically for a successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then current
term, unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

BE
BE_F_=F+_A=+t-RLFEREZR
ABERH EEZEENT

RS
RAKFELAE
CRELELE(R-—E-=F+— A \BEF)
TEEBES*(R_ZE-—=FRA=-+HAEK)
FERE IR
(GESEEE S
FEREE(RN_ZE-_=FRAA=-+HBZME)

* BIYFAMTESE

R 45 48 Bl 55 108(A) B2 108(B) 5 + R oKk #F 4 A= F AR
BREAREHERTERHRE  BEFAER
WHEERERERRRAF RS EEIRET-

EERBEL
WMITEBRAAM A RARKFLAEEZTHHEHA
NEEIIRBELY B_E—RE+—A_+
—HRE - U RE—F  REGEEEN—
F o HERE IR RS S B TR
Efh—pmS—A8HTIR=Z@AZEAD
ML B IE -

HERELE MERAHELRERRBEROLE
MIEHITESE  DRIEZ A —FHER &
BRERBIUFNTES 2 AHES AT RR
BLZEHERRZABDEN—F  HEEEM
— IR FHERA SRR ERRER S —
FEETIOR=ZEAZEEBARILEAL -

PR E = AR B S B AT A KB A B R SRS
BH) MARBRBEHERE I MEEREN
SNZEEERINGHRARBR —FARATARLE -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-=#F3% 69



EEEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service contracts entered into by the Company with each of the
Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during the
year ended 31 December 2023, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) subject to the limitations
specified in sections 468 and 469 thereof, for the benefit of the
executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify and hold harmless any Directors on demand from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and expenses,
including without limitation, any proceedings brought against such
Directors, arising from the performance of his duties pursuant to his
appointment under the service contracts, so far as permitted by law,
except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the default, neglect,
omission or fraud of the executive Directors. The Company has also
taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover to indemnify
the Directors for liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, no claims were made against the
Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors confirmation of his independence and the
Company considers that each of them to be independent based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE HIGHEST
PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis during
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 40 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year ended

31 December 2023 are set out in note 30 to the accompanying
financial statements.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE HIGHEST
PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration of the
senior management by band is set out as follows:

EE - IUBRSHEE REERSER
BEEzME @

UTAEAEzZ2—F —_=F+_A=+—BILFE
BHRERREZ HMEBE ST

Number of
Remuneration bands senior management
Mg E EREEEAY
Below RMB1,000,000 AR #1,000,0007C AR 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,000,001 752 A R 2,000,0007C 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR #2000,001 72 A K% 3,000,0007C 1
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR #3,000,001 752 A R #4,000,0007C 0
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR #4000,001 752 A K% 5,000,0007C 0
Above RMB5,000,000 AR #5,000,0007C A £ 0
REMUNERATION POLICY 3B BUR

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to the legal framework, market condition and performance
of the Group and individual staff including the Directors. The
remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group are reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee, which are contained in the paragraph
headed “Remuneration Committee” under the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 30 to the accompanying financial statements.

All of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are defined
contribution schemes. All contributions are vested immediately
when contributed and no contribution may be forfeited to reduce
the existing levels of contributions by the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "SHARE OPTIONS” above,
there was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company, or which subsisted, during or at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2023.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 57 to 61 of
this annual report.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Below is the information relating to the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

—  Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased to be an independent
non-executive Director, chairman of each of the remuneration
committee and audit committee of the Board, and member of
each of the nomination committee and the environmental,
social and governance committee of the Board with effect
from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 25 May 2023. For further information
regarding the retirement of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 21 April
2023 (the “Circular’) and the announcement of the Company
dated 25 May 2023 (the “Announcement”).

— Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence has been elected as an
independent non-executive Director by the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company with effect from
the conclusion thereof held on 25 May 2023, and was
appointed as the chairman of each of the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Board, and member of
each of the nomination committee and the environmental,
social and governance committee of the Board on the same
date. For further information regarding Mr. Shu Wa Tung,
Laurence and his appointment, please refer to the Circular and
the Announcement.

—  Mr. Tang Daoping ceased to be an executive Director and
chairman of the environmental, social and governance
committee of the Company (the “ESG Committee”) with effect
from 8 December 2023.

—  Mr. Zhu Yongxiang was appointed as the chairman of the ESG
Committee with effect from 8 December 2023.

—  The terms of remuneration of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang and Mr. Tang Daoping were amended to allow
them a special bonus for a particular financial year to be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion with
reference to their performance.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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EEEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

ESRFETHRAERERQFHEM
MBEE 2 RG - HEROREEE
ZEBERKRE

RZZE-=ZF+-"fF=+—H AREEES
MEBTBRABRAARLRERAEEZE (E&
REBEDESNEEZFRBEEN ([F 5 M E
BAEDI]) EXVED) 2% fm  BERG R EEE
RIEERIEES R BAE G FE 35210 - LENA
REIATHEZECLMAZEZ AR - iR
B ETRBI TS A ZEST AR E AU EM SR
BHMARNA MR 2 EE KRBT

Name of Number of
Group member/ ordinary shares
Name of directors associated corporation (Note 1) Approximate
of the Company TEBREAT Nature of interest LTEREE percentage
ARmESHR BB EE A EEMEE (Bat1) BMAOBED
Mr. Hong Tianzhu the Company Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
AR AE ViN/NEE] corporation(s) (Note 2)
PREHDE AR (Hiit2)
the Company Beneficial owner 5,400,000 (L) 0.59%
PAN/NE] BEnEAA
550,142,400 (L) 59.93%
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang the Company Interest of controlled 219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
ROKFESLAE PiN/N) corporation(s) (Note 3)
PESDE AR (B73)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. Among these 544,742,400 Shares, as to 392,842,400 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by New Green
Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu and as to 151,900,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade Partner
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu through New
Green Group Limited. Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited. Mr. Hong Tianzhu is a director of
Texhong Group Holdings Limited, New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited.

3. Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is a director of
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2023, the
interests or short position of the persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND FTERREAQNTRSG - MERSO R
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING fEREZZEZRAE &)
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Ordinary Shares of the Company: PAN/NE] o il g
Number of
ordinary shares
Name of the Nature of (Note 1) Approximate
substantial shareholders interests ZEREE percentage
TERRHEE BB EEME (Krat1) BHBES T
New Green Group Limited Beneficial owner 392,842,400 (L) 42.79%
ERBEAA (Note 2)
(H7t2)
Interest of controlled corporation(s) 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
PRESDE AR (Note 3)
(K13E3)
544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
Trade Partner Investments Limited Beneficial owner 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
Em#EA A (Note 3)
(K13E3)
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited Beneficial owner 68,000,000 (L) 741%
BEREAA (Note 4)
(K1it4)
Interest of controlled corporation(s) 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
PREHDE AR (Note 3)
(K13E3)
219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
Texhong Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation(s) 544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
FTiZ®lik ARz (Notes 2 and 3)
(Bt7F2%3)
Ms. Ke Luping Interest of spouse 550,142,400 (L) 59.93%
FI e+ [N e (Note 5)
(Bt7E5)
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang Interest of spouse 219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
HESHLL BB = (Note 6)
(Btite)
Mr. Hui Ching Lau Interest of controlled corporation(s) 64,200,000 (L) 6.99%
B M A PRYESDE AR (Note 7)
(Btat7)
Event Star Limited Beneﬂoal owner 64,200,000 (L) 6.99%
BEniEAA (Note 7)
(Btat7)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. These 392,842,400 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued share capital
of which is beneficially owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a
company wholly beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the
SFO, each of Texhong Group Holdings Limited and Mr. Hong Tianzhu
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by New Green

Group Limited.

3. These 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong
Tianzhu through New Green Group Limited and 42.56% by Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang through Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Under the
SFO, each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Texhong Group Holdings Limited,
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, New Green Group Limited and Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held

by Trade Partner Investments Limited.

4, These 68,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under
the SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed to be interested in all the

Shares held by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

5. Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO, Ms. Ke
Luping is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in

which Mr. Hong Tianzhu is interested.

6. Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is the spouse
of Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Zhu

Yongxiang is interested.

7. These 64,200,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Event Star Limited, a company which is 100% controlled by
Mr. Hui Ching Lau. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Ching Lau is deemed to be

interested in all the Shares held by Event Star Limited.
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EEEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,
at no time during or at the end of the year ended 31 December
2023 was the Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements which enabled the Directors (including
their spouses or children under 18 years of age), to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note
38 of the financial statements and in the section headed
"Connected transactions” in this annual report, no Director nor an
entity connected with such director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note
38 of the financial statements and in the section headed
"Connected transactions” in this annual report, no contract of
significance has been entered into between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

In addition, no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
were not contracts of service with any Director or any person
engaged in full time employment of the Company were entered
into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the percentages of
purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 10.6%
— five largest suppliers combined 25.0%
Sales
— the largest customer 2.7%
— five largest customers combined 9.4%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers of the Group noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had
conducted the following connected transactions which were
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules:

Continuing connected transaction — Utilities Supply
Framework Agreement

On 25 August 2021, Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited
(“Texhong Industrial Park”) and the Company entered into a master
supply agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) pursuant to
which Texhong Industrial Park agreed to provide and supply utilities,
wastewater treatment service and administrative services to the
Group for its uses at the production facilities operated by the Group
at the Hai Ha Industrial Park (the “Industrial Park”) with effect from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

As mentioned in the section headed “Events after the reporting
period”, on 7 November 2022, HK Co and Texhong Industrial Park
entered into an asset purchase agreement (‘the Asset Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which HK Co agreed to purchase, and
Texhong Industrial Park agreed to sell, certain plots of land and
infrastructure and ancillary equipment thereon (the "Acquisition”).
Since the completion of the Acquisition had been expected to take
place on or around 31 March 2023, in the meantime, to secure
continual supply of utilities by Texhong Industrial Park to the Group
for its operations at the Industrial Park and to ensure compliance
with Listing Rules for setting an annual cap for continuing
connected transactions, on 3 February 2023, Texhong Industrial Park
and the Company entered into an agreement (the “Utilities Supply
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which Texhong Industrial Park
supplied utilities to the Group for its production facilities at the
Industrial Park with effect from 1 January 2023 up to the completion
date of the Acquisition.
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EEEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transaction — Utilities Supply
Framework Agreement (Continued)

Consideration for the utilities were determined with reference to
operating costs attributable to supply of the utilities incurred by
Texhong Industrial Park, and/or additional factors where applicable,
such as government-prescribed prices (in the case of supply of
water), the prevailing market price of coal (in the case of supply of
thermal oil and steam) and procurement costs at which Texhong
Industrial Park sourced from the ultimate supplier (in the case of
liquefied petroleum gas).

The annual cap for the Utilities Supply Framework Agreement the
year ending 31 December 2023 was set at RMB26.0 million. The
annual cap had been determined by the Directors with reference to
the Group's estimated demand for supply of utilities for production
for the year ending 31 December 2023 assuming the completion of
the Acquisition took place on or around 31 March 2023. The actual
transaction amount under the Utilities Supply Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately RMB20.7
million.

Completion of the Acquisition took place on 31 March 2023 and
consequently, the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the Utilities Supply Framework Agreement also ceased
immediately upon completion of the Acquisition on 31 March 2023.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3
February 2023 for further details of the Utilities Supply Framework
Agreement and Master Supply Agreement.

Listing Rules implications

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of its being an associate of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of
the Company and an executive Director and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, the
chief executive officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the Master Supply
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transaction — Wastewater Treatment
and Administrative Services Framework Agreement

As the Master Supply Agreement had expired on 31 December
2022, to ensure continual provision of wastewater treatment services
and administrative services by Texhong Industrial Park to the Group,
on 17 January 2023, Texhong Industrial Park and the Company
entered into a framework agreement (the “Wastewater Treatment
and Administrative Services Framework Agreement”) pursuant to
which Texhong Industrial Park shall provide wastewater treatment
services and administrative services (the “Services”) to the Group
with effect from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transaction — Wastewater Treatment
and Administrative Services Framework Agreement
(Continued)

Consideration for the Services was determined with reference to
operating costs attributable to supply of the Services incurred by
Texhong Industrial Park, and/or additional factors where applicable,
such as the grade of the production wastewater which depends on
its components such as colour, acidity and solids content (in the
case of production wastewater treatment services), and prevailing
market prices for comparable services (in the case of domestic
wastewater treatment services).

The annual caps for the Wastewater Treatment and Administrative
Services Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2025 were set at RMB29 million, RMB33 million and
RMB36 million, respectively. The annual caps were determined by
the Directors with reference to the Group's estimated demand for
wastewater treatment services and administrative services for the
three years ending 31 December 2025, which have been assessed
with reference to the estimated output from the available
production capacity of the Group's production facilities at the
Industrial Park and the business development needs of the Group,
respectively. The actual transaction amount under the Utilities
Wastewater Treatment and Administrative Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB18.7 million.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17
January 2023 and the section headed “Connected Transactions” for
further details of the Wastewater Treatment and Administrative
Services Framework Agreement and Master Supply Agreement,
respectively.

For the connected relationship between Texhong Industrial Park and
the Company, please refer to section headed “Continuing connected
transaction — Utilities Supply Framework Agreement” above.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions undertaken by
the Group were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditors of the Company, has issued a
letter to the Company to confirm the matters stated in Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Connected transaction — Acquisition in Vietham

As mentioned in the section headed “Events after the reporting
period” in this annual report, on 15 March 2024, HK Co and Texhong
Industrial Park entered into a supplemental agreement to the Asset
Purchase Agreement to allow Texhong Industrial Park a further 12
months to complete the Registration as more time was needed to,
among others, liaise with the local authorities to understand the
proper procedures.

For the connected relationship between Texhong Industrial Park and
the Company, please refer to section headed “Continuing connected
transaction — Utilities Supply Framework Agreement” above.

Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated
7 November 2022, 8 December 2022, 3 February 2023 and
15 March 2024 for further details on the above supplemental
agreement.

Related-party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
4 August 2023, 28 September 2023, 31 October 2023 and 30
November 2023 in relation to the disposal of the entire equity
interests in Fashion Time Viet Nam Limited (Bf&Ti#i5 AR A 7))
(the “Target Company”) and the assignment of a loan owing by the
Target Company. On 4 August 2023, Fashion Time Vietnam Holdings
Limited (FF&t L RIEARBBR A E]) (‘FTVN") as vendor entered into
the conditional equity transfer agreement with Nice View Dyeing &
Bleaching Limited Gk = E B MR A 7)) (“Nice View”) as purchaser,
pursuant to which Nice View agreed to acquire the entire equity
interests in the Target Company and take up the assignment of a
loan owed by the Target Company to FTVN (the “Vietnam Disposal”)
from FTVN. The consideration for the Vietnam Disposal was
approximately USD78,591,942 (subject to adjustment). Completion of
the Vietnam Disposal took place on 30 November 2023.

Save as disclosed, there was no other material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries or, associates and joint ventures by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

There were no significant investments held during the year ended
31 December 2023, and the Company does not have any future plan
for material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under
the Listing Rules at any time during the financial year ended
31 December 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November 2004. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
ceased to be the chairman of the Audit Committee on 25 May 2023.
The rights and duties of the Audit Committee comply with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal control system and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 19 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor
Cheng Longdi and Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. On 25 May 2023, Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased to be a member of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has adopted
terms of reference which are in line with the code provisions of the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’'s policy if
considered necessary.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November
2004. The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi.
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. On 25 May 2023, Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen ceased
to be a chairman and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee has rights and duties consistent with
those set out in the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee is principally responsible for formulating
the Group'’s policy and structure for all remunerations of the
Directors and senior management and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the ESG Committee on 23 August
2021. The ESG Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (chairman), Prof. Tao Xiaoming, Prof.
Cheng Longdi and Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen ceased to be a member of the ESG Committee on 25 May
2023 and Mr. Tang Daoping ceased to be a chairman and a
member of the ESG Committee on 8 December 2023. The ESG
Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing and reporting to the
Board on matters relating to ESG of the Group and ensuring
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements on ESG including
corporate governance principles applicable to the Company.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made
charitable contributions amounted to approximately RMB371,000.

LITIGATION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance was known to the Directors to be
pending or threatened against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries that would have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition or results of operation of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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To the Shareholders of Texhong International Group Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Texhong International
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),

which are set out on pages 93 to 224, comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year

then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;

and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and

fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance

and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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i Pricewaterhouse Cooper, 22/F Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Impairment provision for inventories

B Fopk K 1B
B FEB %R A B R B X E AR A T
BARR : TR HE
7 A

Key Audit Matter
BEEXER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMEFLTEEERELSEENS X

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

WARER BmEE

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

e a=Np & )

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised RMB22,493,469,000 of revenue from sales of
goods.

RBE_F_=F+_A=+4+—HIFE BXRED
TSR P 88 B WA B A R #522,493,469,000 7T °

Revenue is recognised when control of the underlying
products has been transferred to the customers.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and the
customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract.

WARHEHEERNZEHELEBEETEPR®R - BE
mMEEETHE RERBIEREEBRER
F - BEFERBHESREMNEMR  BIBERN -
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We understood, evaluated and validated management’s key
controls in respect of the Group's process of recognition of
sales transactions, including contract approval, recording of
sales based on contract terms, and reconciliations with cash
receipts and customers’ goods receipt notes.

B ERERRBIHERH2IRT  BREAOME - L8k
RENGRZHEREWRE REFEmBIREE - &
B A RZEEEE ZBREE -

We tested the revenue derived from different customers and
different locations on a sample basis by examination of the
relevant supporting documents, including sales orders,
invoices, goods delivery notes and customers’ receipt notes
to revenue recorded.

FRREHEE  BENRDCHRRAZZEERETFK
BEFEBREAXM - RAMEAHATRZP &R E
EENBEA -

We confirmed selected trade receivables balances as at the
balance sheet date. The items tested were selected on a
sample basis by considering the amount, nature and
characteristics of the customers.

BMABCHENRNEEABRRANERE ZIBLEH -
AFHIEE LERREFPIEEE MEREHERBERE -
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRERSEE BMNEERTEERRELBEMNG E

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of sales We tested sales transactions that took place shortly before
transactions generated in various locations and from and after the balance sheet date to assess whether revenue
decentralised customers, and thus significant audit time was recognised in the correct reporting periods.
and resources were devoted in this area, in particular  RFIBIREEBERAANETABENHEER S « UFHE
relating to the occurrence, accuracy and timely WARGETFENREHANER -
recording of such transactions.

HRETEMERDHNEFEEREHERS ' t We tested post balance sheet date sales return, on a sample
HMZEENFTE UHRARSEZHHEEEIREE  basis, by tracing to the relevant supporting documents of
B LEERAEIZFHEA EEMEREE  the original sales and the sales return.

EAERNEE - BB EEMRRIEE RHEREMNEBEAXMT - Wk
AAEERERANRNEERE -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s
revenue recognition in relation to sales of goods was
supported by the relevant evidences that we have
gathered.

ERBEZIZF  RMAZHESSE BN @ HESORAER
1S 2 Pr Uy S AR BA 8 1 Sk -

Impairment provision for inventories

FERERE
Refer to Note 4.1 and Note 13 to the consolidated We understood, evaluated and validated management's key
financial statements. controls and assessment process of impairment provision
AR A RN 41 RT3 e for inventories and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
BB BFEMT IR NEE REAME T RRE R
K BIARAEAETE - FEIL - BEHREERER RS
FFRBURE - AR - ST R E BB ENFERE R
RIS R iR - WP ERE R E LA RERE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group's balance of gross We discussed with management and evaluated the
inventories was RMB5,586,878,000, against which a appropriateness of the method and assumptions used in
provision of RMB342,295,000 was made. impairment provision for inventories.
R-ZZ_=F+_A=+—H BEEENATFEHER KRMAESREEEETHw YA FEEREREBHRERD
AR ¥ 5,586,878,0007T + M Bt LE1EH A R TERBROBEE M
342,295,0007T #) B 55 ©
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment to
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated assess the effectiveness of management'’s estimation

selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the process.
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs FHMFFEBT AR ENER  UEEEEEMHTBRED
necessary to make the sale. BRNE o
FEKAR AT FEMNBEESER - a] 25)%E
R BB EBBERTHETEE (R AT TR AR R
HE TR AT EAR) ©
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Key Audit Matter
BRELEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEERTEERRELBEMNG E

The estimation of impairment provision for inventories
involves significant management judgements based on
the consideration of key factors such as aging profile,
prior experiences, estimated future selling prices and
selling expenses.

FERERBLHE SR EEERBEBERRNZZEHEL
B E R HE - FIINRRER AN - BELR - FRETARK
EENRHEER -

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances,
the significance of the provision to the consolidated
financial statements and the judgement exercised by
management in determining the net realisable value of
the inventories.

B IR LER DERNZFERNRE  REHB
BREBBNEEUNEREAETFENTERE
1B R VB I B I
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We tested the aging profile of inventories items on a sample
basis by checking to relevant documents including goods
receipt notes.

BABBZUBAXM (BRRERE) REEEEHEFE
BB REARETAR -

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
the provision for inventories.

B REFEREEERE D BRI -

We compared the selling price used in the determination of
net realisable value to actual selling price subsequent to
year end. We assessed the reasonableness and the accuracy
of the estimated selling expenses, estimated costs to
completion and other costs necessary to make the sale by
comparing with the historical selling expenses,costs to
completion, and other costs necessary to make the sale for
the similar inventories.

HMERBUNET AT 2R FENEBEFRIARNERE
1B o JAAIFTE(EFTHE R X - TRl AT AR K 4 (3
ERMHEAEMK AN SR RERY - FRALEBEEL
g‘iﬁ’wﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁi * STRCRCAN B A 8 6 P A O EL A

We observed the physical condition of inventories during
stocktake to identify if any inventories were damaged and
inquired management if appropriate inventories provision
has been made.

HPEFERMBARBERFENERLR  UBEFER
BHIREE  YHAREEERACFLEENTERE

Based on our audit procedures, we found the assumptions
adopted and judgement applied by management in the
determination of impairment provision for inventories were
supported by the relevant evidences that we have
gathered.

BRERMNBTIEF  HABR  EREEEEFERE
BB PTER A0 0 1R 5% % B PR ) #1598 AP ER PR S B9 4B
RARE R ATK o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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BIAZMENRE (1]F)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

L
pwc

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

i
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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HRERERRSR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2023
RZB-_=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F ==
Note RMB’000 RMB000
it AR¥TF T AR®EFr
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Freehold land K AERE L 6 109,393 188,492
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKRE 7 8,493,748 9,606,778
Investment properties wEYE 8 382,700 268,891
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 9 1,264,074 1,581,210
Intangible assets mEEE 10 61,756 65,417
Long-term receivables KEAIE BRI 17 — 146,000
Investments accounted for using the equity A EARE 2 K&
method 11 379,038 360,040
Deferred income tax assets RIEFMSHEE 25 397,104 305,617
Financial assets at fair value through profit or R A F(EF AEBZEH
loss TEEE 16 15,903 —
11,103,716 12,522,445
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5E 13 5,244,583 7,590,105
Properties under development ERPYE 13 415,549 340,796
Trade and bills receivables U E 5 K EEFRIE 14 1,571,477 1,363,146
Financial assets at fair value through other R AFEFERH
comprehensive income B2t AHEMEEA
WHERMEE 15 336,761 380,615
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JBffZ1E ~ 24 &
HAth fE U BR 3K 17 1,826,291 1,274,771
Derivative financial instruments PTAESmIT A 24 84,792 99,353
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITFR 18 66,208 111,647
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReSED 18 2,161,795 2,468,421
11,707,456 13,628,854
Total assets BEEHAE 22,811,172 26,151,299
EQUITY Rz
Equity attributable to owners of the AATEEAEGER
Company
Share capital: nominal value A mE 79 96,958 96,958
Share premium B imE 79 462,059 462,059
Other reserves H fth % s 21 1,054,138 999,848
Retained earnings R & A 21 7,535,924 7,942,758
9,149,079 9,501,623
Non-controlling interests IS 606,279 599,853
Total equity DB 9,755,358 10,101,476
2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-=#%# 93



ReRERRE (R
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2023
RZBE-_=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —ET-=
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt AR¥TF T ARKTFT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings BE 23 3,577,553 3,388,214
Lease liabilities HESE 9 162,270 258,695
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMGHAE 25 198,093 236,030
3,937,916 3,382,939
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables ERE S REBRRIE 26 868,848 4,597,463
Supply chain financing e g 22 2,495,882 549,041
Contract liabilities AHAE 481,177 659,458
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A N E e 1
BRI 27 849,954 884,143
Current income tax liabilities BNEfFRS R & 222,293 123,880
Borrowings BE 23 4,145,651 5,155,158
Derivative financial instruments PTAESm I A 24 7,055 142,054
Lease liabilities HEEE 9 47,038 55,687
9,117,898 12,166,884
Total liabilities BEHAE 13,055,814 16,049,823
Total equity and liabilities HEZRAE 22,811,172 26,151,299
The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these REBIONE4B 2T AL EREMBEHRE 2
consolidated financial statements. — 5 o

s

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 224 were RERENIBZFEMBRIREN T _MEF
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2024 and were SAZTHAEESEGHE  UHTIESER
signed on its behalf by: REZERBFHTNGEEERER

Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang HRB RKE
Director Director EZE EBFE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EF-—
Note RMB’000 RMB000
it AR¥FT AT
Revenue WA 5 22,725,317 23,805,354
Cost of sales SHE B 29 (21,262,702) (21,049,732)
Gross profit EA 1,462,615 2,755,622
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEAX 29 (730,358) (886,380)
General and administrative expenses —MRITEAX 29 (1,178,578) (1,316,058)
Net accrual of impairment losses on THIRESRMEE
financial assets A E 1R F (68,218) (39,615)
Other income H A 28 114,493 123,052
Other gains/(losses) — net Hiblrss/(E518)
— R 28 789,864 (34,760)
Operating profit KRR 389,818 601,861
Finance income WA 31 98,358 37,743
Finance costs MBE R 31 (615,950) (504,604)
Finance costs — net T BHE — F5 37 (517,592) (466,861)
Share of (losses)/profits of investments DMEEREREARZ
accounted for using the equity method "E (BB, &F 11 (2,414) 36,159
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETE AT (B18)
2 Fl (130,188) 171,159
Income tax (expense)/credit FTisf (%) e 33 (169,194) 30,027
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(FE)ER (299,382) 201,186
Attributable to: BT &S EAM :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NIE 2SN (375,700) 156,808
Non-controlling interests FE 12 I 1 A 2 76,318 44,378
(299,382) 201,186
(Losses)/earnings per share for AATEE AEAE
(loss)/profit attributable to owners of (BR) #Az2E8R
the Company (B8]) BF
— Basic (losses)/earnings per share — BREX
(E#8),/ &F 34 RMBAR®(0.41) RMBARX¥017
— Diluted (losses)/earnings per share — BREE
(&), &7 34 RMBAR(0.41) RMBAR¥017

The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2023 2022
== —E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥TFT AT
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BEB),BwE (299,382) 201,186
Other comprehensive income Hih2H K &=
Items that will not be reclassified REETEET A HEE
subsequently to profit or loss Ewm 2 HH
Revaluation of buildings EFEMY
— Gross — 5 — 8,198
— Deferred income tax — RIEFTISH — 23,662
Item that may be reclassified HErpteE 7 EE
subsequently to profit or loss HEwm 2 HH
Currency translation differences B HBRERE 21 27,119 52,626
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for F£EZ@E (FE), W
the year wa (272,263) 285,672
Attributable to: RUT&FEN:
Owners of the Company ZN/NIE SN (352,544) 229,789
Non-controlling interests FE 122 Il 1 A 2 80,281 55,883
(272,263) 285,672
The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these REIE4B 2T RESEEMBHRE 2

consolidated financial statements.
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SeEREDR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEAERG
Non-
Share Share Other Retained  controlling
capital premium reserves earnings interests  Total equity
Fe M
BAR  BHEE HEE RBEH Bm  BnAE
Note RMB000 RMB 00O RMB 00O RMB000 RMB 00O RMB 00O
Wit AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-ZZE--%-F—-HN
o303 96,958 462,059 907,534 8571,719 562,682 10,600,952
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year FERF = 156,808 44378 201,186
Other comprehensive income: Hir 2 ke
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BEfEFRH
— Gross — a5 8,198 = = 8,198
— Deferred income tax — BEMER 23,662 — — 23,662
Currency translation differences ERGBESR 21 491,121 — 11,505 52,626
Total comprehensive income for FEXHUEEE
the year 72,981 156,808 55,383 285,672
Transactions with owners BREREAZRS
Capital withdrawn by non-controlling ~ HIBARIFERBEHE
shareholders of subsidiaries — — (3/476) (3,476)
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ HIBARIZHERRRTE
shareholders of subsidiaries — — 30,273 30,273
Dividend paid to non-controlling GEzrtlid Sy enpd
interests BB = = (45,509) (45,509)
Dividends relating to 2021 “EZ-F2RE 35 — (447,492) — (447 492)
Dividends relating to 2022 “ECCFIRE 35 = (318.944) = (318,944)
Transfer to statutory reserves BERTETRE 21 27,137 27,137) — —
Transfer from revaluation reserve to RERREERERE
retained eamings pisk il
— Gross — % (10,097) 10,097 = =
— Deferred income tax — BEMRER 2,293 (2,293) — —
Total transactions with owners HRESEAZRZEE 19333 (785,769) (18,712) (785,148)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-Z--%+-AH
Zt-HWER 999,848 7,942,758 599,853 10,101,476
2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-=#%F% 97



ReERBB® (R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_T_=—F+_A=+—HItEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATEEAERS
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserves earnings interests Total equity
FE It
BA  RAEE HttEE KRR Bx HER4E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i BT ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREEFT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-ZZE-=%-F—-HN
o303 96,958 462,059 999,848 7,942,758 599,853 10,101,476
Comprehensive loss 2EER
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BB)/&H — - —  (375,700) 76,318  (299,382)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2EES
Currency translation differences ERRMESR 21 — — 23,156 — 3,963 27,119
Total comprehensive loss for FE2EFBREE
the year - — 23,156 (375,700) 80,281 (272,263)
Transactions with owners BREBEAZRS
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ HIBARIFEREE T E
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - 1,500 1,500
Dividend paid to non-controlling MM ERR 2
interests ) - - - - (75355)  (75,355)
Transfer to statutory reserves BREETRE 21 - - 39,836 (39,836) - -
Transfer from revaluation reserve to REHEHERZRYE
retained eamings i
— Gross — % - - (7.229) 7,229 — —
— Deferred income tax — BEMER - - 837 (837) - —
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBATA - - (2,310) 2,310 — -
Total transactions with owners HRENEAZRZAE — — 31,134 (31,134)  (73,855)  (73,855)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+ZA
=t - BN 96,958 462,059 1,054,138 7,535924 606,279 9,755,358

The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements. —&m o
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FERfRER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLHFE

2023 2022
—g-= —E-=
Note RMB’000 RMB000
k=3 AR¥FT ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RELETENES
RE
Cash generated from operations KEMEE R G 36(a) 2,112,943 1,935,434
Interest received 2 WFE 98,358 37,743
Income tax paid AR ST (225,672) (353,050)
Net cash generated from operating activities A& & EENFT1SIR & F5 1,985,629 1,620,127
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNRS
RE
Net proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries HE B QR ATSRIE
FER 17 170,013 186,764
Purchase of financial instruments HFEE2mIA (12,449) —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment FEE Y% - 5 K&E (770,989) (1,833,211)
Purchases of land use rights BE TP R (97,188) (244,589)
Purchase of freehold land BBEOKAERE T — (9,147)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and ~ HE®E - BE &
equipment and land use rights SR N M AR P
(S50 36(a) 509,851 235,839
Proceeds from sales of pollution discharge & HE5HEFT1S 3 E
rights 20,000 =
Repayments of/(proceeds from) loans to B 2 ERCEER
related parties 18,/ (Fr183818) 38(a) 72,617 (91,433)
Net proceeds from settlement of financial & @ T AAEFTERIA
instruments FER 136,973 16,559
Decrease in pledge of bank deposits BEHEARITF R 18 701 13,234
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing & /EB TS, (FT#E)
activities HeHE 29,529 (1,725,984)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2023 2022
—_ 2= —=E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥TFT AT
Cash flows from financing activities REMETENES
mE
Proceeds from borrowings BEMSNIA 36(c) 12,610,261 8,699,249
Repayments of borrowings EEEE 36(c) (13,508,537) (7,563,663)
Repayments of supply chain financing EEHEERE 36(c) (889,677) —
Proceeds from supply chain financing HEE R E 5 5KTE 36(c) 170,000 —
Principal elements of lease payments HENKzAE D 36(c) (78,037) (60,092)
Payment of long-term payables due TRR—FAEIER
within 1 year RHAFE T 50R 36(c) — (30,726)
Dividends paid B E — (766,436)
Capital injection from non-controlling BB A B FE A% AR B
shareholders of subsidiaries AE 1,500 30,273
Capital withdrawn by non-controlling BB A B FE A% AR B
shareholders of subsidiaries & — (3476)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests [ 3EE I EAEZSIR 14 2
@S] (75,355) (45,509)
Interest paid [EENEESS (522,416) (294,274)
Loan from a minority shareholder RE—BLERRZ
B 2,624 10,000
Increase in pledged bank deposits EHEARITF R
30 18 (47,947) (6,010)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBFTIEIR & F 5 (2,337,584) (30,664)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRASEEYRD
equivalents FE (322,426) (136,521)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYzRERREE
of the year B 18 2,468,421 2,505,407
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREE w8 15,800 99,535
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZESRRASSE
the year B 18 2,161,795 2,468,421

REINEZ214EZMFALEHRAMBREZ

The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements. — =R o
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SeMBEERmE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

=

BT _—F+_A=+—HItEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Texhong International Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven
fabrics and garment fabrics.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 July 2004 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 9 December
2004.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi (“‘RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 25 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HKFRSs comprise the following authoritative literature:

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of buildings, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI"), which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE-ZT—

2.

SEF-H=t—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a) New standard and amendments to HKFRSs
adopted by the Group in 2023

A number of new standard and amendments to
existing standards became applicable for the
current reporting period. These amendments to
existing standards did not give rise to any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements. These amendments are set out
below:

Definition of Accounting Estimates —
Amendments to HKAS 8

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single Transaction —
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure of Accounting Policies —
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Insurance Contracts — HKFRS 17

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules — Amendments to HKAS 12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
SE+ZA=H-ALSE

=

2.

st

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

The following new standard and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2023 and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 ‘Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

Amendments to HKAS 1 ‘Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 ‘Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 ‘Supplier
Finance Arrangements’, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)
‘Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause’,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024.

Amendments to HKAS 21 ‘Lack of
Exchangeability’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 ‘Sale or
Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture'. The effective date
is to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
SE+ZA=HALSE

=

2.

2T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(c)

Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment
scheme in Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government
enacted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the "Amendment
Ordinance”) which will be effective from 1 May
2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under the
Amendment Ordinance, any accrued benefits
attributable to the employer’'s mandatory
contributions under mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Benefits”) of an entity would no
longer be eligible to offset against its obligations
on long service payment (“LSP”) for the portion of
the LSP accrued on or after the Transition Date.
There is also a change in the calculation basis of
last monthly wages for the portion of the LSP
accrued before the Transition Date.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied
practical expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b)
(the “practical expedient”) to account for the
offsetable MPF Benefits as deemed employee
contributions to reduce the current service costs
in the period in which the related services were
rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” (the
“Guidance”) which provides clarified and detailed
guidance on the accounting considerations
relating to the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism. The Guidance clarified that following
the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance,
LSP is no longer a “simple type of contributory
plans” to which the practical expedient had been
intended to apply.

By following the Guidance, the Group has
therefore changed its accounting policy and
ceased to apply the practical expedient and
reattribute the deemed employee contributions
on a straight-line basis from the date when
services by employees first lead to their benefits
in terms of the LSP legislation in accordance with
HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a). The cumulative effect
of recognising these adjustments as of
31 December 2022 or for the year ended was not
material and hence no adjustment was made to
the beginning retained earnings, or another
component of equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-

e

3.

=F+=A=+—AILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain of its risk
exposures on changes in interest rates.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in China,
Southeast Asia and Americas. Most of the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, HKD or United
States dollars ("USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily through
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets at FVPL, trade
and bills receivables, trade and bills
payables, supply chain financing and
borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity. It
manages its foreign exchange risks by
performing regular review and monitoring
of its foreign exchange exposures and
purchase of forward foreign exchange
contracts and cross currency swap
contracts (Note 24). In 2023, the Group has
entered into the forward foreign exchange
contracts and cross currency swap
contracts to manage the expected
fluctuation of RMB against USD or HKD.

3.

B 7 [ B B B
3.1 HEEBRREZ

AEBMEBESZED S AR
(BRERINERR - EffER  RER
ERAFENERR)  FEAR
EngEzRk - AEBENRBRE
BESTMMBNTAIRAREE
WERG A H AN KB B KRB E
FREFENRERERE A&
B I B 7 4= & Bh T B DA e ) o
BMELNETEAR -

(a) THEHERER
(i) SrEREE

AEBEZERFH R
Mo REMEE - A%
BXHXNRG BER
BEUARYE - Bk
Zt([ZET])5HE ° Hh
BEE [ B2 2R B 7 R AR g A
E¥BPNEERS B
REERBENMEE
SHEE o ANEBEEE M
R TEREER
BRITER - He kR
SEEY - BAFER
AEENEREE - &
WE 5 REEFIEA - JE
NEBSHREEHRIE - #
JEEMENAREE R
At & IBY AR = E
TR EE N
Bk EE o REBIET
TEHARR AT M B ER ELAIME
Wi O AN B R AR IMNE &
HRZXEBIEBEELD
(P 5E24) LA IR ELHNE
e 7 A =
REBE FETRAPIME
AHRRXEEBHRE
HAERARY S ET
B TR TR ER B o

2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z==%F%#H 105



m e ME RN (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
=Et=A=t—ALEE
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3.

2T

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had
weakened by 1.7% (2022: 9.2%) against
USD with all other variable held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB11,132,000 (2022:
RMB281,135,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange gains on
translation of USD-denominated pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills receivables, financial assets
at FVPL, trade and bills payables, supply
chain financing and borrowings.

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had
weakened by 1.4% (2022: 9.3%) against
HKD with all other variable held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB32,577,000 (2022:
RMB247,307,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of HKD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-T-
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3.

=F+=A=+—AILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw material price
risk because of the volatility of the price of
main raw material, cotton. The
management of the Group analyze the
trend of raw material price on weekly basis.
To manage its price risk, the Group has
entered into the cotton future contracts
and cotton option contracts and decides
to enter long term contracts (Note 24) to
mitigate the impact from raw material
price changes, and diversify the suppliers if
they expect significant fluctuation in the
future.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for pledged bank deposits, cash at
bank (Note 18) and long-term receivables
(Note 17), the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact resulted
from changes in interest rates on interest
bearing assets.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at
variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. As at 31 December
2023, approximately 52% (2022: 53%) of
the Group's borrowings were at fixed rates
and the remaining 48% (2022: 47%) were
at floating rates before entering into cross
currency swap contracts. After entering
into cross currency swap contracts, the
percentage of the Group’s borrowings at
fixed rates as at 31 December 2023
increased to approximately 60% (2022:
70%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group manages certain of its cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk by
purchasing cross currency swap contracts
(Note 24). Such cross currency swaps have
the economic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to fixed
rates. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group in substance converted majority
of its borrowings from floating rates to
fixed rates through purchasing cross
currency swap contracts. So there is no
significant interest rate risk for the Group.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk because the Group has more than
5,000 customers. The carrying amounts of
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets at FVOCI, other receivables and financial
assets at FVPL represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

The Group generally grants credit terms of less
than 90 days to its customers in Mainland China
and 120 days to its customers in other countries.
The Group’s management performs periodic
credit evaluations/reviews of its customers and
ensures that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group places
deposits with major banks in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution.

Trade and bills receivables, financial assets at
FVOCI and other receivables are subject to the
expected credit loss model.

To lower the Group's exposure to credit risk, the
Group may request 5% deposits from certain of
their customers before delivery of goods. In
addition, 100% (2022: 100%) of the bills
receivable of the Group are endorsed by banks as
at 31 December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-T-
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3.

=F+=A=+—AILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(i)

3. BKERBER &)

31 HMBEBREEE)
Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERKE)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables (i) EREZREEFER
and financial assets at FVOC! BAFEEAREEE
FTARMEE Kz E
AEE A
The Group has trade and bills receivables REBBRETEBH
and financial assets at FVOCI from sales of 7% ¥ 5 45 A1 38 955 78 B
products that are subject to HKFRS 9's EEEBEBERANEDH
expected credit loss model. The Group ENEWE SR EER
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to BRI AFTEFERR
measure expected credit losses which uses FEE A MR
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all HEMEE - NEBEIR
trade receivables from initial recognition. RAEBHBREEDNE
To measure the expected credit losses, o5 &1k 75 A 5 = 78 B
trade receivables have been grouped EEEE  RYTHER
based on shared credit risk characteristics B BRTERIE S
and the ageing days. The expected loss HEEEHRNNESRES
rates are based on the payment profiles of B RIT=RHEES
sales over a period of 36 month before B ERESFIBER
31 December 2023 and the corresponding BELEERREE R
historical credit losses experienced within Rk D fE - TREIEBIE R
this period. The historical loss rates are ERZE==F+=AH
adjusted to reflect current and =+ —HA136(8 A 8
forward-looking information on SHE RN RIBE R KA
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability AR EREBEE
of the customers to settle the receivables, BB - BAEBEXRE
including Gross Domestic Product and HHAEUARREERF
industrial added value. On that basis, the HEEEWEREE IR
loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 BB A = E AT AT
was determined as follows: EMHER(REEAE
EBEREFEE) -
RUWEE RZZT_=
FE+-A=1+—HNE
BEEDETET :
Trade receivables FEWE S HIE
Within 181 days to 1 year to Over
180 days 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
180BUA 181BZ1E  15Z2% BiB2F st
AMB000 RMB000 AMBU0O AMB000 RMB000
AREBTT ARETT ARETrT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZ%
t=Azt-B
Gross carrying amount EEAE 1,025,709 49,489 63,101 1,224 1,139,523
Expected loss rate FEHEER 0.20% 7.55% 34.61% 100.00% 2.53%
Loss allowance EREEE 2,006 3,734 21,840 1,224 28,804
At 31 December 2022 R-BZZF
+=A=+-8
Gross carrying amount FmeE 1,042,541 37,782 9917 183 1,090,423
Expected loss rate BHEEX 067% 7.81% 53.66% 100.00% 141%
Loss allowance EEER 6970 2,949 5321 183 15423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_T_=—F+_A=+—HItEE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HMEBEERRERE#
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HERREZ(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERRE)
(i)  Impairment of trade and bills receivables (i) EUNEZREEZER
and financial assets at FVOCI (Continued) HRFEGTEAREZE
FSTABMEE K E
HEEFE ()
Bill receivables and financial assets at BN EIERIE R AT
FvOCl B2 BEEEH AR
fEEBENEREE
The loss allowance of bills receivables and R_E_=FR_FT—
financial assets at FVOCI as at —F+=-—RA=+—H"
31 December 2023 and 2022 was e E R FIA MR R F
immaterial. Bir2BEHEEZHT AR
ErERENEREE
HEEEEY TERX -
Impairment losses on trade and bills FEWE 5 R EIBFIAH
receivables are presented as net BEBEREE RN
impairment losses within operating profit. 25| R EREFE -
Subsequent recoveries of amounts E & U B 2B 2 MEE A
previously written off are credited against SEAGAR—IER -
the same line item.
2023 2022
—=E-= —_F_—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ET T AR T
At 1 January n—H—H 15,423 11,327
Accrual of provision for TEIREWE 5 Kk
impairment of trade and SBRFIERERE
bills receivables 20,704 22,400
Written off i 88 (7,323) (18,304)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—A” 28,804 15423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
SE+ZA=H-ALSE

=

3.

2T

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(ii)

Impairment of other receivables and
long-term receivables

Other receivables and long-term
receivables comprised receivables from
disposal of subsidiaries, receivables from
disposal of land use rights and property,
plant and equipment, value-added tax
recoverable, prepaid income tax,
prepayments for purchase of raw materials,
due from related parties, deposits, prepaid
expenses, rental income receivables from
investment properties, receivables from
sales of pollution discharge rights,
receivables from return of prepayments of
equipment and other receivables (Note
17).

The Directors of the Company consider the
probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has
been significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis during the year ended
31 December 2023. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares risk of a default
occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial
economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
change to the third party’s ability to
meet its obligations;

actual or expected significant
changes in the operating results of
the third party;

significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the
third party, including changes in the
payment status of the third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEEBEE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMERBREEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERKE)

(i) Impairment of other receivables and (i) BMEWRIREE
long-term receivables (Continued) YRR R (4E)
Impairment on other receivables and Hib AR R R KRR
long-term receivables are measured as WER SR EZ 1218 A T8
either 12-month expected credit losses or H{sEE B2 HER
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on EEEEFTE  ERT
whether there has been a significant EERR A VPR
increase in credit risk since initial KBS RIBEIMNME °
recognition. To assess whether there is a RITEEERBRES
significant increase in credit risk the TRIZHN - DR BRI
company compares the risk of a default SRR EERLENE
occurring on the asset as at the reporting K b B ) S TR B
date with the risk of default as at the date HMZEARR - &
of initial recognition. It considers available BASAEREEIEA
reasonable and supportive &R - (WIEBRER A
forwarding-looking information. If a B12M8 B KB T eI
significant increase in credit risk of a RFEHEERR B VH
receivable under the circumstance of aging TR AR A MR N - Bl
over 12 months has occurred since initial BEZEHEREEE
recognition, then impairment is measured BErE - BREZEE R
as lifetime expected credit losses. On that —E-=F+ZRA=+
basis, the loss allowance as at —HEEREIRE
31 December 2023 was determined as Hh FE LU BR 51 K = HR R UK
follows for other receivables and long-term BEREEAT :
receivables:

Stage 1
12-month Stage 2 Stage 3
ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
F-BE F-KR FZER
1288 2HEH 2HEH
BAGERE GEFE GEFE @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFIT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2023 R=2==
+=A=+-8
Gross carrying amount MEREE 1,345,135 — 33,748 1,378,883
Expected loss rate TEHEEE 0.50% — 100.00% 2.93%
Loss allowance BIREE 6,705 — 33,748 40,453
At 31 December 2022 R=2==
+=A=+-8
Gross carrying amount BEEEE 759,898 — 33,034 792,932
Expected loss rate TBEIBIER = — 100.00% 417%
Loss allowance BB EE = — 33,034 33,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EEFT A=t —HIEEE

=

3.

2T

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other receivables and
long-term receivables (Continued)

During the year, the Group made a
value-added tax recoverable impairment of
RMB40,095,000 (2022: RMB18,804,000).

The loss allowances for other receivables
and long-term receivables as at
31 December reconcile to the opening loss
allowances as follows:

MBRBREER @

31 MEBRERREE(E)
(b) FERMEE)
(i) BAMERERSRRBE
W kR 1E ()

FAN - AEEELER
BEHREARE
40,095,000C (Z & = —
F: AR 18,804,000
JT) °

RTZA=+—HEf
R Mo B R I £ A R M B
R E R R R E
BEENEKRNT

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AREFT
Opening loss allowance R—A—BKHY]
at 1 January EERE 51,838 34,623
Increase in loss allowance FRERERERL
recognised in profit or loss &5 8 1 & 38 N
during the year 47,514 17,215
Closing loss allowance R+—A=+—88
at 31 December HREEEE 99,352 51,838
Net impairment losses on financial assets (i) REDERNEHEE
recognised in profit or loss H B 18 5 75 7 AR
During the year ended 31 December 2023 REBE_ZT_=FKk=
and 2022, the following losses were T _F+ZRA=+—

recognised in profit or loss in relation to
impaired financial assets:

BIEFE  ERRES
BEEN BT RN

TEE

2023 2022

—E2-=5F —Eg=-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ETF T AR TF T

Impairment losses REEE

— Trade receivables — BINE 558 20,704 22,400
— Other receivables — H b AR K 47,514 17,215
68,218 39,615
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HILtFEE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) BEERER &)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available. Details of the
undrawn borrowing facilities available to the
Group are disclosed in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

31 HMERBER(E)

() HBELAR
AEEEDEBEENRBE D
R ER  BBRTBEE &
EEERERBEARES R
APHANES AKBEERE
BREFTRENERA#EEE
BE URFES2ELE
M- BRAEENKREAE
EmEFHBREAMBRE
MIFE23 R #5255 ©

TR AKENSTRAE
DA - Uk Jh % A8 B8 2 HA 48 B
Y REBHEEHEZS O
B e R R HIRET T - K
AEBENSERAHERR
BHBRERE -

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and  More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —FEZWMFE MEZRF BENE Fohy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2023 R-Z-=F
+=A=+-8
Borrowings (Note 23) B8 (Hit23) 4,145,651 2,184,860 1,387,693 5000 7,723,204
Supply chain financing HREERE (f1i222)
(Note 22) 2,495,882 - - - 2,495,882
Interest payable on borrowings & & & (& s Fl &
and supply chain financing ) 268,695 129,721 18,829 91 417,336
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£ & f T &
(Note 24) (Hfat24) 7,055 — — — 7,055
Trade and bills payables ENESREEHE
(Note 26) (Hfzt2e) 868,848 — — — 868,848
Accruals and other payables HRRE R REMER
(excluding non-financial R (T BiEE
liabilities) ERAR) 470,560 — — — 470,560
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HERE (Hit9) 48,782 38,641 80,692 54,352 222,467
8,305,473 2,353,222 1,487,214 59,443 12,205,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BKERERE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HERBRREZE(E)
() Liquidity risk (Continued) () RBELERK(E)
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —FZRE WMEERFE  AENLE FeEy
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFTLT AREFLT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2022 R=B==fF
+=-A=+-A
Borrowings (Note 23) B8 (Hit23) 5,155,158 2,323,407 1,064,807 — 8,543,372
Supply chain financing GIEERA (f1i222)
(Note 22) 549,041 — — — 549,041
Interest payable on borrowings & B FE (4 F & 282318 124,224 22,681 — 429,223
Derivative financial instruments ﬁiﬁ HMZ,E:
(Note 24) (Hfit24) 142,054 — — — 142,054
Trade and bills payables ENE S REEHE
(Note 26) (Hfit26) 4,597,463 = = — 4,597,463
Accruals and other payables HiRE R REMER
(excluding non-financial R (T BiEE
liabilities) SRAE) 551,927 = = = 551,927
Lease liabilities (Note 9) BEBE A7) 65,884 52,701 114,975 131,429 364,989
11,343,845 2,500,332 1,202,463 131,429 15,178,069
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EzEKRER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEBERESHNEEARERE

safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet), supply chain financing and
lease liabilities less pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘total
equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less
non-controlling interests plus net debt.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT —%&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEEBEE#)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 BcEREE(Z)
The net gearing ratios at 31 December 2023 and 2022 RE_=FR T -—F+_-A

are as follows:

=St—BZFEEABLEMT

2023 2022
B = —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTFT
Total borrowings (Note 23) BEBEE (MiF23) 7,723,204 8,543,372
Supply chain financing (Note 22) HEERE (f1:222) 2,495,882 549,041
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBEHZ9) 209,308 314,382
Less: pledged bank deposits and B BRI TR R
cash and cash equivalents Re kB
(Note 18) EEY (K7t 18) (2,228,003) (2,580,068)
Net debt BEFHE 8,200,391 6,826,727
Total equity excluding g - MBRIEZESIME R
non-controlling interests 9,149,079 9,501,623
Total capital BB 17,349,470 16,328,350
Net gearing ratio FEEAMBE 47% 42%
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3.

2T

3.3

=F+=A=+—AILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation
Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group held
forward foreign exchange contracts, cross currency
swap contracts, cotton future contracts, cotton option
contracts, bills receivables held both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling of these assets and
equity investments that are held for trading. These
forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair
valued using forward exchange rates that are quoted in
an active market. Cross currency swaps are fair valued
using forward exchange rates that are quoted in an
active market and interest rates extracted from
observable vyield curves. Cotton future contracts and
cotton option contracts are fair valued using forward
cotton price that are quoted in an active market. Bills
receivables held both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling of these assets are fair valued using
interest rates that are quoted in an active market.
Equity investments that are held for trading are fair
valued using seed transaction price that are not based
on observable market data.

3.

MERBER (&)

3.3

AT EEH
AT EER

TRABEES MR RFEIIRZ
TRTER  ZFFRIMWOT

HREEXBEZARMS
HECRERAE)(F—MR) -

BR®REGIASE &) &
EXBEZERZ (WERB) X
RZ (R B ERE) TSR
BABR(FMR) -

WRREABEMSEIEE
EZBEXBEHAEN (A
THBEEHAER)(E =
R

REZBZ=FR=ZF-_—F+=A
=t+—H AEEEBFEREINES
49 RXXNEBIBPELH - BIEHE
BH - IRTEHESY BRESY
ReERMEEZSEEMBTENE
WERRIEARFEEE 2 BRAE
& o ZERBPINESHLUERTIS
HEMNRHEXRFEAFEE - XX
BB ERERMERENR
HADE 5 K 44 AT 2 2R Uk 2k R AR T 65
FIRAENFE - BIEHEAHN
IRTEEREA W T E R IER TS RE
RIRHIRIEEBBTTE A TE - #ElK
EANBRERAHEZEEEMR
B R R FORE AR BT S W
BEOFRFEQAFE - FHEEEZ
BRAKREFEAWIEERAIBRMTS
BENETRSERTEATFE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HMEBEERRERE#
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AQAFREMEEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DNFEERE)
The following table presents the Group's assets and TRINTAEENEEREE  H
liabilities that are measured at fair value at —Eo=FR-ZFT-__F+—-HA
31 December 2023 and 2022: =+—HHAFEFE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R EZR B=R mEt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT

At 31 December 2023 R-ZB-=F
+=-A=+—-AH
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEGERR
g2 AL rEkE
HEMmEE — 336,761 — 336,761
Financial assets at FVPL BATEFABZED
SREE — — 15,903 15,903
Derivative financial instruments FTESI A — 84,792 — 84,792
— 421,553 15,903 437,456
Liabilities a8f&
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA — 7,055 — 7,055
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H E-® BE=M; FCE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2022 N-ZE-—
+=A=+-8H
Assets 5E
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEGERE
ZEGFAHMEE
WaHHERMEE = 380,615 = 380,615
Derivative financial instruments TESBMIA — 99,353 — 99,353
— 479968 — 479968
Liabilities &8f&
Derivative financial instruments MTESBMTA = 142,054 = 142,054
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2T

=F+=A=+—AILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1

4.2

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and
financial assets at FVOCI

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and financial
assets at FVOCI based on the expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade and bills receivables. The loss allowances for
financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. Management uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Management reassesses the provision
at each balance sheet date.

4.

BA g 2 ol 5t & M

BB KA RE L - WRBES
RELHEMER (BERSERBRTEHAR
REMHRABR/BIRZTAE) FFE -

AEEEHBRARRBRA M LB -
EREE > FatEtER BT SRS
RAEBRERER - Bt RERRERH T —
EFBRFEANEERBEREERFD
BERFHBRMBEXNEXNERFHIT

41 FEZUSRFEE

FEZ A B FETEHBR TR Z
AETRA R ER &2 B %%
ErEE - Z SR/ HERBRTH
MREEEEELERUEMZB
ERRME - A AKRMEIH -
BEPEHRERBEFHT QLR
7T A MEM 2 TBMHREKX
B  ERENSBERENIMG
A SR

42 BEURESREBERERZRLFER

BMEERE
AEEEEERBEEHNEERHEE
ERWE S MEEFRIBENERTFE
AFEAHEHF AR MEE KRS
TREERERE  MEMERK
BEHREBRFAEREHNERE
BREG sREENBERREBER
HENRRMFEREBEROMREK -
REREHMR - EEERBEAEH
WEFESL - E A & AT IR
fhat  BEHEFHZEFRRME
BREAEZ2BABE - EEER
BEREERENFEBE -
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BHE-ZT—

4.

=E+=A=+—AILER

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.3

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial condition and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections,
it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE-ZT—

=F+=A=+—AILEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.4

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Committee of Executive Directors of the
Company. Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The Committee
of Executive Directors reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The Committee of Executive Directors considers the
business from both a product and geographical
perspective. From a product perspective, management
assesses the performance from sales of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well
as garments.

China now includes Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macao. Southeast Asia now includes Vietnam and
Cambodia. Americas now includes United States,
Mexico, Nicaragua and Honduras.

4.

5.

g et R M E )

4.4

FrEH RIEEFTEH
AEBEANE T RAEEEBMAA
B -EEERSHERER T2
EHEARHE EEREXBKBE
h BRERGMAEMS RN &
RIGETE T THEEN - NEH
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PHREEEBNA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER &)

(Continued)

(a) Description of segments and principal activities (@) PBREEEENB (&
(Continued)
The revenues from external customers in Asia and KA M REMIIBEF WA S
Americas accounted for 92.9% and 6.8% (2022: 89.9% RIME 7N & B 48 40 A #992.9% K 6.8%
and 9.5%) of the Group's total revenue respectively. (ZZF == :89.9% K 9.5%) °
The Committee of Executive Directors assesses the HITEELZESRBRAREE T
performance of the operating segments based on M EEE D E 2 34E -

revenue and operating profit.

(b) Segment profit or loss (b) DWER
The segment information for the year ended HE_T-_=+-HA=+—HL
31 December 2023 is as follows: FEZOMBERAT :

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE-$-ZE{R=T-ALER
Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Others

ARRER

Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast

China Asia  Americas Others China Asia  Americas China Asia China Asia China Asia

B FEE M it # REE Bl HE  REE E  RED HE RED
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFR ARRTR ARETT ABETT ARETT ARETT ARRTT ARBTT ARBTL ARBTL ARBTR ARETE ARKTR ARKTR

Total revenue ELION 21,879,282 6,526924 281,788 379,517 2,767,929 1,155,679 925581 596299 418,721 53,985 79462 190,072 109,180 35,364,419
Inter-segment revenue GELIN (5,525,556) (4,985,364)  (198,011) (2483)  (88,036) (964,853) (260,567)  (65,122) (418,241 - (63,465) = (67,404)(12,639,102)

Revenue (from external WA (RENG%E

customers) F) 16,353,726 1,541,560 83,777 377,034 2,679,893 190,826 665014 531,177 480 53,985 15997 190,072 0,776 22,725,317
Timing of revenue WARRER

recognition

— Ata point n time —REEBEY 16353726 1541560 83777 377,034 2679893 190826 665014 53177 480 53985 15997 190072 41776 22725317
Segment results PHER 487,410  (591,497)  (62,423)  (48,528) 476,749 (19,049) 25,590 (7,871) 1,057 (10,013)  (39,568) 8,154 12,698 232,709
Unallocated profit FARET 157,109
Operating profit fdyv] 389,818
Finance income BBRA 98,358
Finance costs HBER (615,950)

Share of losses of investments A EREAR
accounted for using the RENER

equity method (2,414)
Income tax expense FEHEY (169,194)
Loss for the period BRER (299,382)

—
Depreciation and REREH
amortisation (453,412) (328,801)  (67,092)  (19,583) (108,402)  (61,889)  (40,934)  (10,178)  (22,478) - (30,628) (67)  (10,155) (1,153,619)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSHER &)
(Continued)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) 2IPERE)
The segment information for the year ended BE-ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H1t
31 December 2022 is as follows: FEZHBERAT :

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-B--ET-ASt-RLER

Yarns Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Total
95 AHRRE iyl 4% 1]
Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast
China Asia Americas Others China Asia  Americas China Asia China Asia

TE  OREE E3ll At FE REE i PE O REE R REE
RMBO  AMBUD0  AMBOOD  AVBOOO  RMBUMO  AVBUW  AMBUOD  AMBODD  AMBUW  AWBUWO  AWBUOD  AMBOD
ARBTE NRETL ARETE ARETT ARBTEZ ARETL ARETT ARETI ARETEZ ARETL ARETL ARETL

Total revenue ELON 25160952 8268556 239632 469,647 3,985,993 1,165,346 12365820 797,831 53424 39469 95987 42112657
Inter-segment revenue AHERA (8566,668)  (6,998754) (210,178) - (527,280)  (1,060,308) (277449) (69872) (523403) - (73391)  (18307,303)
Revenue (from external customers) WA (RESNSBEE) 16,594,284 1269802 29454 469,647 3458713 105,038 1,088,371 727959 A 39469 259% 23805354
Tiring of revenue recognition BAERER

— At a point in time —REEREY 16594284 1269802 29454 469647 348713105038 1088371 727959 21 39469 25% 23805354
Segment results AHEK 210057 248397 (42021) 46,000 185915 (12,855) @) 15587 3857 (840) (71,904) 581,782
Unallocated profit RABEF 20079
Operating profit fyvil 601861
Finance income BIBHA 37743
Finance costs B%EA (504,604)
Share of profits of investments HENBREAR 2K

accounted for using EEH

the equity method 36,159
Income tax credit itz 30027
Profit for the period BRER 201,186

—

Depreciation and amortisation REREH (407,538) (323,725) (45910) (18,114) (94090) (41,603) (34083) (10230) (23,080) - (30677)  (1,029,050)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSHESR (#2)
(Continued)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities () 2BEERERE
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December ATE-=F+_A=+—HZH
2023 are as follows: HEERBEHT

As at 31 December 2023
R=B==%1=A=1-A
Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics

AHRR%

Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast

China Asia  Americas Others China Asia  Americas China Asia i Asia China Asia

G REE Bl L4 vE o REE By P REE REE vE REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTT ARKTL ARETA ARETR ARETT ARKTT ARRTL ARRTT ARKTL ARKTA ARETT ARKTT ARKFT ARKTZ

Total segment assets ABERE 8270885 5317237 1239803 451234 3,196,269 856792 568,174 344806 448,149 4563 490483 495389 365095 22050879
Unallocated assets KAREE 760,293
Total assets of the Group rEEAKE 2,811,172
—
Total segment liabilities APHBER (4794702) (2730,622)  (968,097)  (289.962)  (617,767)  (635743)  (332710)  (202918)  (365,251) (373)  (498,084) (414740  (353,493) (12,204,462)
Unallocated liabilties KARERE (851,352)
Total liabilities of the Group ~ AEBAEE (13,055,814)
—
Addition to non-current assets ~ FEFRHEE 218189 125636 51,060 114 83459 65146 16,640 3028 11445 - 2195 — 321,059 899,001
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RZE__F+_A=+—H2Z2HHE
== .
2022 are as follows: EXBEAT :

As at 31 December 2022
RZBZZ#+-A=1-8

Yarms Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Total
95 AHRRE & st 88
Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast
China Asia Americas Others China Asia Americas China Asia China Asia

FE O REE ESl At TE OREE *iff FE REE TE O REE
RMBOOO  AUBUD0  AUBODD  AVBOOD  RMBUDO  AVBUD  AMBUDO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO  AWBUIO  AWBUOD  AMBOD
ARETL NEETT ARETT ARETZ ARETL ARETT ARETT ARRTZ ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETZ

Total segment assets AREEE 10815350 6156506 1189212 S07466 3452885 1415621 60655 36576 454044 2668 53003 25523039
Unallocated assets AOREE 628260
Total assets of the Group FEMAKE 26,151,299

—
Total segment liabilities APEEE (5968788 (3037955  (862945) (36381  (206%86) (1140683  (407921) (213425  (398391) (135) (5037790 (13067390)
Unallocated liabilties APEBE (2982433)
Total liabilities of the Group KEBAGE (16049823)

—
Addition to non-current assets BEFRBEE 83009 724655 381479 14397 149393 116623 21350 2023 120625 - 6176 2391030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
=Et=A=t—ALEE

BHE-ZT—

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5.

WAR D RBER (&)

(Continued)
(d) Sales disclosures (d) SHEEE
Analysis of the Group's sales by products is shown AEERERESHHEE ST
below: (I NI
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Sales of goods EmiHeE
— Yamns — BB 17,537,022 17,587,450
— Woven garment fabrics — HamR 2,056,331 2,647,893
— Trading —E5 1,480,616 1,822,180
— Knitted garment fabrics — STEEmE R 797,448 866,442
— Grey fabrics — 531,657 727,980
— Non-woven fabrics — EHm 69,982 62,065
— Jeanswear — H1FRREE 20,413 91,344
22,493,469 23,805,354
Others EAh
— Properties — 190,072 —
— Utilities — B AR 41,776 —
22,725,317 23,805,354

(e)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

(i)

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as
well as garments in the market. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the
specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and
the customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract. For domestic
sales, revenue is recognised when the products
are shipped to the agreed delivery locations in
accordance with the contracts, and customers
confirm the acceptance. For oversea sales,
revenue is recognised when the products pass
the ship’s rail in the port of shipment. The Group
enters into sales contracts with customers for
each transaction. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the
contract. The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one vyear.
Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location.

(e) WABRBZEHER

(i)

& mm 85 &
AEBMEBGERETHIHED
AR BT B M E R R
RE-ZERMEEZHETH
HoRERRMEBREER
EEFP BEFPEREHE
EBHEMER: AIBLEX
N-RBEAFEEMNS  EE
mIRBEARNMEERHER
T d - BER P HEREM
B Bl R A - 385
HEMS  EERBBME
BORMmEE - e RRIK
A AEERERXZRE
FrILHERN - %ZFHE
M AR B K35 E R B 1R
R AKBE AR YL EALM A
AHAEMBERTEFERF
NHRHEBEE—FNEH0-
REmMBEEXERTHHE
BIBREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
SE+ZA=HALSE

BHE-ZT—

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(e)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(Continued)

(i)

Sales of goods (Continued)

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. No significant financing component is
deemed present as the sales are made with a
credit term of less than 90 days to its customers
in Mainland China and 120 days to its customers
in other countries, which is consistent with
market practice.

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue
recognised as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

A contract liability is the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. The Group's contract liabilities mainly
comprise advanced payment and 5% deposits
from certain of their customers before delivery of
goods.

Arrangements that involve shipment of goods to
a customer might include promises related to the
shipping service that give rise to a performance
obligation. Management should assess the
explicit shipping terms to determine when
control of the goods transfers to the customer
and whether the shipping services are a separate
performance obligation.

Shipping and handling services should be
considered a separate performance obligation if
control of the goods transfers to the customer
before shipment, but the entity has promised to
ship the goods (or arrange for the goods to be
shipped) for overseas sales. Shipping is not a
promised service to the customer as control of a
good does not transfer to the customer before
shipment for domestic sales. This is because
shipping is a fulfilment activity as the costs are
incurred as part of transferring the goods to the
customer.

Management assess the Group is the principal for
the shipping service and it is a separate
performance obligation for overseas sales. The
gross amount of revenue allocated to the
shipping service is recorded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

=

5.

BT _—F+_A=+—HItEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WARSHESR @)
(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition (e) WABRBZEETEE (&)
(Continued)
(ii)  Sales of properties (i) WEHE
Revenues are recognised when or as the control WAREEEH BERER
of the asset is transferred to the customer. For PRER HNREX K
property development and sales contracts for R RS RRY ERE
which the control of the property is transferred at MEALK WAREFR
a point in time, revenue is recognised when the BERINEMEYMAE
customer obtains the physical possession or the SEEMBEREARAEEHESR
legal title of the completed property and the IR B WS KR I 1R AT A Uk [B1 X
Group has the present right to payment and the BRTER ©
collection of the consideration is probable.
FREEHOLD LAND 6. XKAEELH
2023 2022
—EB-=fF —FE-—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AR FT
Freehold land KAERELTH 109,393 188,492
2023 2022
—E-—
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT AREFIT
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 188,492 163,957
Transfer to Investment properties (Note 8)  BERE =AY EE (H1718) (77,887) —
Additions = — 9,147
Currency translation differences BEHEL =5 (1,212) 15,388
Closing net book amount FARREFE 109,393 188,492
The Group’'s freehold land is analysed as follows: REEZXAERELHDTAT -
2023 2022
—=E-= Tz
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AR®EFr
Freehold land KA EETE T3
— In Cambodia — RRIEEE 50,446 127,491
— In Turkey — REIEEHE 27,085 29,973
— In Mexico — REME 15,557 14,995
— In Uruguay — RENE 10,837 10,656
— In Nicaragua — RJEMA I 5,468 5377
109,393 188,492

Freehold land is the land owned for an unlimited time.
Freehold land is not amortized, which located in Cambodia,
Turkey, Mexico, Uruguay and Nicaragua.

IKAERE T Thph R I RS 09 £ 3 o
IKAEREL M BB - AR TIANR
WE - +EHE - 2EF  SuNERENN

I o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7. MR -BEEZRE

Machinery
and Furniture Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles  in-progress Total
BF HBERRE HAREE RE HEIR st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANEREFT ANREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2022 RZB-Zf-F-H
Cost or valuation B E 4165476 8432929 74872 66,729 1,509,660 14,249,666
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (787079)  (4,162,29) (36,239) (34933) — (5,020,547)
Net book amount REFE 3,378,397 4270633 38633 31,79 1,509,660 9,229,119
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E--%+-R
=t-RLEE
Opening net book amount FONEREFE 3,378397 4,270,633 38633 31,7% 1,509,660 9,229,119
Additions RE 7,058 36,487 18115 9,091 1816,550 1,887,301
Revaluation X 8,198 = = = = 8,198
Transfers BE 383,283 1,299,907 2,045 2,19 (1,687,431) —
Disposals (Note 36) & (Hrits6) (21,389) (116,519) (4,893) (809) (324,000) (467,610)
Depreciation charges (Note 29) WESH (H229) (156,050) (738,567) (11,576) (9,548) — (915,741)
Transfer to investment properties (Note §) BREREME (Wits) (238353) - - - (238,353)
Currency translation differences EBERER 46,447 52877 2,585 941 1014 103,864
Closing net book amount FREEFE 3,407,591 4804818 44909 33,667 1315793 9,606,778
At 31 December 2022 RZB--f+=A
Sr=F[F
Cost or valuation B E 4302575 9,387,736 71818 73,084 1315,793 15,151,006
Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges 2 5HTE RREX H (894984)  (4582918) (26,909) (39417) — (5,544,228)
Net book amount REFE 3,407,591 4804818 44909 33,667 1315793 9,606,778
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=%1+=A
=t-RLEE
Opening net book amount FOREEE 3,407,591 4,804,818 44,909 33,667  1,315793 9,606,778
Additions RE 7,512 143,787 4,131 4,291 558,708 718,429
Transfers [ 165,785 689,164 1,043 8,481 (864,473) -
Disposals (Note 36) & (Hits6) (376,914) (242,848) (2,727) (2,554) (130,673) (755,716)
Depreciation charges (Note 29) e (Hr#29) (160,683) (834,262) (11,551) (8,262) —  (1,014,758)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 8) BREREME Hits) (58,459) - - - - (58,459)
Impairment charges (Note 29) REX W (H729) - (3,978) - - - (3,978)
Currency translation differences ERERER 2,532 (1,218) 2,718 21 (2,601) 1,452
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,987,364 4,555,463 38,523 35,644 876,754 8,493,748
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=f+=A
Sr=F[F
Cost or valuation B E 3,848,580 9,342,584 47,260 76,248 876,754 14,191,426
Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges ~ 25HTE RREX H (861,216)  (4,787,121) (8,737) (40,604) —  (5697,678)
Net book amount REFE 2,987,364 4,555,463 38,523 35,644 876,754 8,493,748
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BT _—F+_A=+—HItEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, depreciation of
RMB904,025,000 (2022: RMB818,096,000) was included in cost
of sales, RMB5,236,000 (2022: RMB4,647,000) was included in
selling and distribution costs and RMB105,497,000 (2022:
RMB92,998,000) was included in general and administrative
expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, finance cost of
RMB6,581,000 was capitalised as part of property, plant and
equipment (2022: RMB63,607,000) (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no property, plant and
equipment were pledged.

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Buildings are
shown at fair value, based on periodic, but at least triennial,
valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. The gross carrying amount is
restated to revalued amount of the asset. The accumulated
amortisation at the date of the revaluation is adjusted to
equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount of the asset after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses. The Group did not revaluate
the buildings as at 31 December 2023, because in the opinion
of the directors, the net book amount of RMB2,987,364,000 as
at 31 December 2023 for such buildings did not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair value.

The valuation performed as at 31 December 2022 was
determined using the depreciated replacement costs
approach and was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Current gross reproduction costs of the buildings are adjusted
for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimization.

The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income tax
liabilities, was regarded as other comprehensive income and
credited to revaluation reserve in equity (Note 21).

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs or
revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 15 to 40 years 2.5%-6.7%
— Machinery and equipment 6 to 15 years 6.7%-16.7%
— Furniture and fixtures 3 to 10 years 10.0%-33.3%
— Motor vehicles 5to 7 years 14.3%-20.0%

See Note 42.7 for the other accounting policies relevant to
property, plant and equipment.

MEE - BB RRE 4

REBEE_ZT_=%+= H +— Eti
€ AR #904,0250000 (ZFE = =
AE%&M%%WﬂW%%E#A%&
BN AR 52360007 (2B = 4 :
AE%%M%WﬂW%%EJA%&&
DR X B A R%105497,000C (ZZF =
:¢ AR #929980007T) MITEE A
—MRITERAYX -

REBEEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIEF
B AR¥6581000tWHBER(ZF
——F: AR#63,607,0007T) DENL A
ME - BB KRB —3BD (KizE3) -

R-B_=FR-_F__F+-_H=*+
—B - BEDE  BERRERIER

BFTEREIMMPAE - EFEEI
MBI GEMETH(EBEZRLE=ZF—KX)
BTGB ER A FEREENITEER -
REEAEC BRI EEENEGESTE - &
BN ETHBECHABUAEREE
REEMAEREmMEBMNE58 (KT
Bt REEE) - ASEVESHZEE
FR_E-_=ZFF+_A=+—HZEE"
AEERARSEEFR_ZE_=F+=
A=+t BzZEEMEFEAREK
2,987,364,000CERF FH A FEETE ZEE
ZRIWRERX o

R —F+-_RA=+—H#ETZHE
THRBTESERAEEE - AHEARF
BERE=RA - BT B AMNBEBERK
rEenERZCRAARE RELHRE
FAEH AR -

ERARMBERNECHERAE - 1F
AEMEEKREY D AEEANER
s (faE21) -

W% BERRENTEUERE
S BELFE A (o B 5 (2 A 21T
ERESR FBEEDT -

— EF 1552404 2.5%6.7%
— EEREE 6Z&15%F 6.7%-16.7%
— BRRESE 3E105F 10.0%-33.3%
— A8 SE7E 14.3%-20.0%
BRAWE - BERSENEMSEBUR

EE LA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7.

Y3k - BER&RE

If buildings were stated on historical cost basis, the amounts HIEBF AR SR AL £%E#& AWM
would be as follows: N
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB000
ARM¥T T AR Fr
Cost B AR 3,530,103 3,984,098
Accumulated depreciation Z2EHE (887,467) (838,897)
Net book amount FREDEE 2,642,636 3,145,201
8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8. ®REY=
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_E-=%+=A
=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 268,891 —
Transfer from property, plant and HEHEBYE  BE &
equipment (Note 7) B (HaE7) 58,459 238,353
Transfer from freehold land (Note 6) EEAKAERETH
(Htzte) 77,887 —
Transfer from right-of-use assets EEgEAEEE 3,911 49,508
Depreciation (Note 28) e (Hfit28) (27,768) (18,970)
Currency translation differences HEEE N 2 1,320 —
Closing net book amount FREREFE 382,700 268,891
At 31 December 2023 R=-B-=%+=A
=+—H
Cost B AR 499,561 287,861
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (116,861) (18,970)
Net book amount BREDHE 382,700 268,891

The Group's investment properties are stated at historical cost

at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 8.
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties
Other income (Note 28) HMWA (HiF28)
Rental income from operating leases  &ZHENHEE WA

Depreciation expenses

REW=#)

REVENERRBIANESHE

2023 2022
—_E-= —Eg-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AREFT
42,212 26,843
(27,768) (18,970)

The above investment properties, excluding the related
freehold land, are located in China, Vietnam and
Cambodia and are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 3 to 50 vyears. Freehold land is not subject to

depreciation.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31
December 2023 was RMB431,376,000
RMB289,799,000). The valuation was determined using
the sale comparison approach and was within level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The
most significant input to this valuation approach is price

per square metre.

The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or
construct investment properties as investing and rental

inflows as operating cash flows.

See Note 42.6 for the other accounting policies relevant

to investment properties.

NEREME  BRERKAERL
AN - IR B - B R RIS
WIRIES0F A BRI E ° KA
ERTHWBAFTE -

RZZE-_=%F+-_A=+—8 %
EMENDATFEASARK
4313760007 (ZE=—F : ARK
289,799,0007T) ° {H{E TR IHE L
BEABT UHRARFEERE=
WA KA ELEMENEED
MEBH (IMERN ZERE
HAE - WEEERERNHE AR
BB KER -

AEBES KRB EEREMENR
EREDERRE  BEERAS
BRRERERE -

ERKREMENEMSEEER 5
28 M tE426 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

9. LEASES 9. HE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) MRHREEEEBERBANSE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following EASHEENSESNGEEESR
amounts relating to leases: BRI
2023 2022
B = —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT ARBTFT
Right-of-use assets FHAEEE
Land use rights T A 1,078,554 1,287,843
Buildings and warehouses EFEREE 178,913 263,242
Equipment and others Byl 6,607 30,125
1,264,074 1,581,210
Current lease liabilities BIERfHE B & 47,038 55,687
Non-current lease liabilities JERNEAFHE B E 162,270 258,695
Total lease liabilities HEAEEE 209,308 314,382
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2023 —ECFUBRFEAEFREER
financial year were RMB180,572,000 (2022: EAANRY180,572,000L (ZE ==
RMB494,582,000). & AR ¥494,582,0007T) °
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BHE-ZT—

ZEt-H=t—HILFE

9. LEASES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

HE )
(b) ERGFERBZRBEIANEHE

ek ERITATAEREENR
18

2023 2022
—E=-= e
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Depreciation charge of FHAEEEREXH
right-of-use assets
Land use rights T fE R 34,486 31,204
Buildings and warehouses EFEREE 66,990 52,111
Equipment and others R R H At 5,956 7,363
107,432 90,678
Interest expense MEBFAX
(included in finance cost) (Note 31) (GtABEER)
(Htet31) 11,343 10,183
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ BRI IHAEMNF X
(included in selling and distribution (GFASHE kD ER X
costs and administrative expenses) LARATE )
(Note 29) (Bt 7E29) 6,510 27,690
Expense relating to leases of low-value B BAKZIRA it
assets that are not shown above as ENREEEEHER
short-term leases (included in cost of B3z (FF ASHE KA K&
sales and administrative expenses) TR ) (K 5E29)
(Note 29) 15 152

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was
RMB181,750,000 (2022: RMB332,523,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases buildings, warehouses and machinery
and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods and have no extension or termination
options. Rental contracts for buildings and warehouses
are typically made for 2 to 50 years. The Group leases
various machinery and equipment under both
operating and finance lease agreement. The original
lease terms are from 2 to 10 years. Under the terms of
the finance leases, the lessors transfer ownership of the
assets to the Group by the end of the lease term.

—EoFNHEERSREATEA
AR #181,750,0000T (ZE = =4 :
AR #332,523,0007T) °

(0 FAEENHSEEFBIREARSR

AEEHEERT BE HERR
weMHO—KRAFETEHEN BY
BERAKRILEERE BFRAEE
MAEEHN—RA/I2E0F - K
SEREEERBREHEHEHEE
ZIHEBELRE - REMB2E0
FoREBEMEEMSRR BBEAR
HMEREKEEMARERTA
£8-
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=

9.

2T

(c)

=E+=A=+—AILER

LEASES (Continued)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continued)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held
by the Group.
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=

9.

2T

(c)

=F+=A=+—AILEE

LEASES (Continued)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continued)

All land in the Mainland China and Vietnam is
state-owned and no individual land ownership right
exists. The Group acquired the right to use certain land.
The premiums paid for such right are treated as
prepayment for operating lease and recorded at cost as
right-of-use assets, which are depreciated over the lease
periods using the straight-line method.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

See Note 42.24 for the other accounting policies
relevant to leases.

9.

HE @)
(€ FEMHEETHRAARSR

(%)

o B 3 N B R RO PR LS B B
B AEEEMEALERE -
AEBESERE T LA ER -
HREBEMNS MO BERAKLEHE
EMBENFRIR - WA ARTIVEGE B
BEE  WHEMRAERENE -

HRHlTEEMHEREEEE
EMARERBENMNRABRER
BEaRRRMx  EHEEREE
HANREAKATHEE - KEE
BEERREMBRERERNEBE R
R A o

ERAHENHEMETEER B2
MfaE42.24 -
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

10. BEEE

Customer
relationship Goodwill Total
EFB& GRS et
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AR¥TFoT AR T T ARKTT
At 1 January 2022 N=-8==
—HA—H
Cost or valuation A =k ik (B 54918 26974 81,892
Accumulated amortisation R E (12,814) — (12,814)
Net book amount REFE 42,104 26,974 69,078
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE_-_C
+t=A=+—-AH
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 42,104 26,974 69,078
Amortisation charges (Note 29) BER T (MiE29) (3661) — (3,661)
Closing net book amount FREMEFE 38,443 26,974 65,417
At 31 December 2022 N-—ZEE—-—
+t=A=+—-H
Cost or valuation AN 38k (B 54,918 26,974 81,892
Accumulated amortisation RET 5 (16,475) — (16,475)
Net book amount BREFE 38,443 26,974 65,417
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=%
+=-—B=+-—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFAE 38,443 26,974 65,417
Amortisation charges (Note 29) BESHR (M7E29) (3,661) — (3,661)
Closing net book amount FREHEFE 34,782 26,974 61,756
At 31 December 2023 R-E2==
+t=A=+—AH
Cost or valuation AN S A 1B 54,918 26,974 81,892
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (20,136) — (20,136)
Net book amount REFE 34,782 26,974 61,756

During the year ended 31 December 2023, amortisation of
RMB3,661,000 (2022: RMB3,661,000) was included in general

and administrative expenses.
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BHE-ZT—

10.

ZEt-H=t—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited
useful life using the straight-line method over the
following periods:

Customer relationship 15 years

Customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Goodwill

The Directors have performed an impairment review of
the carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December
2023 and have concluded that no provision for
impairment is required. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to the
lowest level of cash-generating units identified by
business segments.

A summary of goodwill by reporting segment is
presented below:

10.

BEEE ®)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BELERAE
AEBEERERZZ T HHRSE A
BEREAERAFHZELEE TN
-3l

REBIE 154

EFR%

EXBAMHTBANTPBERIZE
BERMRQFERR - EFAEMNA
RERER - BRIZAAR R #
5RO E R 1RSI B -

5k

EEEHBERZE_=F+=A
= t+t—HZEAEETRER
SR BB AN IRREEE - BLRE
BHME - IREREE SRR
EB o BHP 2 RIEBSEEEM
KF

BBEDEDIZEHBRBELT

2022

—Eo=F —ET-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AR T
Garment fabrics and Garments [EREYSEi & 17,641 17,641
Yarns wWig 9,333 9,333
26,974 26,974
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10.

=E+=A=+—AILER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. The calculation of
goodwill on the garment fabrics and garments and
yarns segment use cash flow projections based on
financial estimates made by the Directors, with
reference to the prevailing market conditions, covering
a period of five years and assuming revenue growth
rate ranging from -43% to 10.0% (2022: —5.0% to
10.0%) and 5.0% (2022: 5.0%) and gross profit margins
ranging from 11.2% to 11.6% (2022: 11.2% to 11.6%)
and 4.6% to 5.6% (2022: 4.8% to 5.8%). The long-term
growth rate is 10.0% (2022: 10.0%) and 5.0% (2022:
5.0%). The cash flows are extrapolated with reference to
the production capacity of the cash generating units
acquired. The cash flow projections are discounted at a
pre-tax discount rate of 8.0% (2022: 8.0%) and 12.0%
(2022: 12.0%) per annum. Based on management'’s
assessment results, there was no impairment of
goodwill as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 and any
reasonable change to the key assumptions would not
lead to an impairment.

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 42.2.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
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11.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 11.

EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
are as follows:

DiEsESIRNIRE

UTRERGREERBRERNESE

2023 2022
—g-= —_F_—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥F AR T
Associates /NS 374,448 355,774
Joint ventures EREDE 4,590 4,266
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” 379,038 360,040
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income NTRERGERGRERANSHE
statement are as follows:
2023 2022
—E2-=5F —Eg=-=
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥FT AR TFT
Associates R l/NC] (2,738) 36,024
Joint ventures A& 324 135
For the year ended 31 December HE+_-_A=1+—H
IEFE (2,414) 36,159
(a) Investments in associates (a) REEATPRE
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AR T
Share of net assets of DAEFEETEEE QA
unlisted associates BESFE 374,448 355,774
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11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investments in associates (Continued)
Movements of shares of net assets of associates
attributable to the Group are as follows:

11. UERZEIRNERE &)

() REH#AFNBRE )
AEBE GBS AN EEFEASH
m -

2023 2022
—_E2_= —=E-=

RMB’000 RMB000

ARB¥TFT ARBTFT

Opening amount e 355,774 316,807

Additions () R () 22,000 =
Share of (loss)/profit based on RIR P YR 25 JE 1S

equity held (E518), & 7 (2,738) 36,024
Share of other comprehensive income 1R {E AT HfE 25 B (G

based on equity held Efh 2 a (588) 2,943

Closing amount HiRe %8 374,448 355,774

(i) On 28 September 2023, the Group subscribed
20% equity interest in Jiangsu Yifeng New
Materials Technology Co., Ltd. and it became an
associate of the Group. As at 31 December 2023,
the investment has not paid, which is recorded as
accruals and other payables (Note 27).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interests in the associates.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at
31 December 2023 which, in the opinion of the
directors, are individually immaterial to the Group. The
associates as listed below have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group. The countries of incorporation or registration is
also their principal places of business.
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11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 11. URERZEIERNERE &)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(a) Investments in associates (Continued) (@) REZAIMBRE(E)

The Group’s investments in associates that are
individually immaterial to the Group as at 31 December

2023 are:

NRZTBE-_=F+-A=+—H0" &K
& B A A S [ E Bl 3 N B K A B
BAAMKA

Name of associate

Place and date of incorporation

and form of legal entity

Principal activities

Particulars of issued
share capital

Interest held

At B R A EU R
BEARER EEERER TEXH BRTRARE Fis s
Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries British Virgin Islands, 2 July 2015, Investment holding in RMB166,167,000 45%
limited liability company British Virgin Islands
BRUHERARARRENBERT ERARLES —T-0F REBREZHSET AR #166,167,0007C 45%
tAZR BREEAR REER
Xinghong International (Hong Kong) Co,, Limited and Hong Kong, 11 June 2019, limited  Investment holding in USD5,000,000 30%
its subsidiary liability company Hong Kong
EZER (FR)BRAARANBAR R —Z-NFERAT-A REBETRESER 50000005 7T 30%
BREERT
Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Holdings Limited and its Hong Kong, 16 November 2018, Investment holding in HKD20,000 45%
subsidiary limited liability company Hong Kong
ZEFEaE(BE) ERERAAREME AR & “F-\F1+-A REBETREZR 20,000 7T 45%
+RB BREARA
Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Technology Development Nantong, Mainland China, 9 March  Manufacturing and sales of RMB10,000,000 30%
Co, Ltd. and its subsidiary 2020, limited liability company textile products
THAEBEMRERERAARENERT TEANEE —E-FF HERHESE R AR ¥100000007 30%
ZANE BREEAR
Treasure Reap Limited and its subsidiaries British Virgin Islands, February 2017,  Investment holding in UsD100 45%
limited liability company British Virgin Islands
LEERNAREKBAR HERLEE —T—tF REBRRBESETR 1003 7T 45%
—R BREERA Bk
HLD (HK) Trading Limited Hong Kong, 24 February 2022, Trading of textile products HKD100 45%
limited liability company in Hong Kong
HLD (HK) Trading Limited & —T--F=A REBETHRER 10077T 45%
ZtWmE - BEREERRA 25
Jiangsu Yifeng New Materials Technology Co, Ltd. Changzhou, Mainland China, 28 Manufacturing and sales of RMB110,000,000 20%
September 2023, limited liability textile products
company
T & SN RRRERAR REAMEN —E-ZFAA REREEHER AR #110000,0007C 20%

—+AR - BREEAR
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142 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 1. UREHZEINRNIRE @)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in a joint venture (b) MEELENRE
2023 2022
—EgE== =
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT ARBTFT
Opening amount e 4,266 4131
Share of profit pak: Yoyl 324 135
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 4,590 4,266
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the REBPNEE D ERNERIEER
Group's interests in the joint venture. SABE -

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at
31 December 2023 which, in the opinion of the
directors, is immaterial to the Group. The joint venture
as listed below has share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also its
principal place of business.

The Group's investment in a joint venture as at
31 December 2023 is:

AT RR-F_=F+_-_A=+—
B EFRRELAEBRYFTEEY

AEEEERE - THEERELZ
BAEREBRRAR  YHAEH
BEESA  AEMAZERER

MREFTRERME

Place and date of incorporation

Name of the joint venture and form of legal entity

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital Interest held

MR KR AR
RELERR EEERER TEXH BRTRARSE iigeY $+3
Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company Vietnam, 30 June 2016, limited Cargo transportation by VVND20,000,000,000 50%
liability company land and sea; other
assistant services; cargo
landing-over, storage,
management
consulting
R BN RBH R A B —E-RERAZTA  BEEWER: Et#Y 20,000,000,0004 7 /& 50%
BREARA R% - &HE
f#7F - EERS

RUEBREERRAT
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BHE-ZT—

11.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 11.
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(c)

ZEt-H=t—HILFE

Summarised financial information for associates

and joint ventures

The tables below provide summarised financial
information for associates and joint ventures as a group.
The information disclosed reflects the amounts
presented in the financial statements of the relevant
associates and joint ventures and not the Group's share
of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity

method, including fair value adjustments.

ERESIRNIRE (&)

(c)

BENAREELENBEVKE
)
TREHBERARRAERE(E
A—EAR) WBERHMBHER - B
BREENRREBBLEARREGE
TCENTBHRERMZINNEE - M
VHARE D HREELHE - HO K
{ERT AR IR B B8 M R R 2R B 1F
HEAE  BREAVERAE -

2023 2022

—g2=-= —_F_—
RMB’000 RMB000
AEB¥F AR Fr
Current assets MEEE 1,093,130 938,566
Non-current assets EREEE 914,135 807,329
Current liabilities mEa & 1,099,269 932,271
Non-current liabilities EmEBBE 8,246 10416

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HILFE

2023 2022

—E-= g
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AR FT
Revenue WA 2,369,891 2,035,016
Cost of sales $H & BN 2,214,813 1,867,487
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE) & F (3,962) 73,239
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. REHEPHNEMITE

144 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED RITEIRREEEHR A A

Financial
Financial Financial assets at
assets at assets at amortised
FVPL Fvoci cost Total
ROFENE
BRAFESA BESHTA REBHRE
BRf HizZEWE B8R Y
SREE WELREE CREE et
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFIT ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
31 December 2023 —EC-=F
t=A=+—8”
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRMIEE
Trade and bills receivables B E 5 R EERIA
(Note 14) (Btati4) — — 1,571,477 1,571,477
Financial assets at FVOCI BN EFTEBEE 5
(Note 15) AH A2 E &=
CREE (Mit15) — 336,761 — 336,761
Financial assets at FVPL BRAFEFABEN
(Note 16) SMEE (Hitie) 15,903 — — 15,903
Derivative financial instruments TTESBMI A (Matr1)
(Note 24) 84,792 - — 84,792
Deposits and other receivables = & H R BR K
(Note 17) (KizF17) — — 1,338,430 1,338,430
Pledged bank deposits and BEHEFRITEARR
cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEY
(Note 18) (Biet18) — — 2,228,003 2,228,003
Total it 100,695 336,761 5,137,910 5,575,366
31 December 2022 —E_C
+=A=+—H
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRMIEE
Trade and bills receivables EUE 5 Rk EERIE
(Note 14) (Hfst14) = = 1,363,146 1,363,146
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEEAEZEHET
(Note 15) AE MR E R
TREE (Met15) — 380,615 — 380,615
Derivative financial instruments fTHEemMTA
(Note 24) (Htat24) 99,353 = = 99,353
Deposits and other receivables ’e & H M EYER R
(Note 17) (Btet17) = = 613,898 613,898
Long-term receivables (Note 17) REABKER (M at17) = = 146,000 146,000
Pledged bank deposits and EERBITERR
cash and cash equivalents ReERBEZEY
(Note 18) (Hist18) = = 2,580,068 2,580,068
Total Bt 99,353 380,615 4,703,112 5,183,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. RERESNEMIA (@)
(Continued)
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
FVPL amortised cost Total
RAFETA RE A
BEW SR
SREE cHaE st
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
AR FT AR For AR Fr
31 December 2023 —EC-=H
+t=A=+-—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBXRFIERE
Supply chain financing (Note 22)  {ESERYE (H/7E22) — 2,495,882 2,495,882
Borrowings (Note 23) B8 (K7it23) — 7,723,204 7,723,204
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIA
(Note 24) (Bt 7t24) 7,055 - 7,055
Trade and bills payables (Note 26) BN E 5 Kk ZiE A
(Kt7#26) — 868,848 868,848
Accruals and other payables TRIRE A R HMER
excluding statutory liabilities RR(TBIEEE
(Note 27) B&)(#at27) — 470,560 470,560
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HE&EHF9) — 209,308 209,308
Total #ET 7,055 11,767,802 11,774,857
31 December 2022 —E_-—
+=A=+-—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EESEXRFIVIAR
Supply chain financing (Note 22)  {ESERNE (K7at22) — 549,041 549,041
Borrowings (Note 23) B8 (#i23) — 8,543,372 8,543,372
Derivative financial instruments MESMTIA
(Note 24) (Htit24) 142,054 — 142,054
Trade and bills payables (Note 26) B E 5 Kk EiEFIE
(Ktst26) — 4,597,463 4,597,463
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R HEMER
excluding statutory liabilities ERCTBIEEE
(Note 27) a&)(#it27) = 551,927 551,927
Lease liabilities (Note 9) ME&E (H79) — 314,382 314,382
Total R 142,054 14,556,185 14,698,239

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is
the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.

AEEHGRESRTABENSERR
M3 - RBEHR - FXEERR

RLEREREREENKREE -
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13. INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER 13. FERBRETIME
DEVELOPMENT
(a) Inventories (a ®E
2023 2022
—_E2_-= —Eg-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EFTT AR T
Raw materials R 3,076,504 4,515,136
Work-in-progress T m 360,810 604,728
Finished goods BIRY fh 2,149,564 3,075,127
5,586,878 8,194,991
Less: provision for write-down of B WORFEERIE R
inventories to net realisable HEZ B E
value (342,295) (604,886)
5,244,583 7,590,105

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to
RMB17,398,540,000 (2022: RMB16,420,861,000) (Note 29).

Reversal of write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value amounted to RMB262,591,000 (2022: accrual of
RMB495,159,000). These amounts have been included in
‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income statement
(Note 29).
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A BFERNBIEE IR ° A IA
IR P AR E © B m R AESR M
MR BRERVF  BEES T H
MEEXRANRABREZEEER
(REBEESKEERIAE) ML
REEER AERFERARER
Bi@ie (hat &8 (R A =X
PR B SHEE PR O fR AT A AR)

BRABHAAINABERANTE
RN & 58 A A R #17,398,540,000 70
(ZZF=—=%F: AR¥16,420,861,000
7o) (HF3E29) ©

MRTFEZUZBEFERDAAR
#262,591,0007C (ZF = =4 : 5H4=
AFR#495159,0007T) ° % E &5
FFAGRERBERZIEEKA] P
(Pt 5E29) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

13. INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER 13. FERBETYWE®)
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
(b) Properties under development (b) EERHBYWE

2023 2022
—=—= e

= — =

RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT

Properties under development expected T8 HA¥& T #) 3% &

to be completed: S E
— Expected to be completed — FaHI 121 A A SEAK
within 12 months 185,322 —
— Expected to be completed — TEER1 218 B2 5ERK
after more than 12 months 230,227 340,796
415,549 340,796
Properties under development BEPYEDE
comprise:
— Land use rights — T Hb{F R 225,141 236,440
— Construction cost — BEEK AR 190,408 104,356
415,549 340,796

Properties under development are stated at the lower BRPYERNAE]ERFEZ
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value RIEEVER - Af R FEZERERR
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be i‘ﬁﬂéﬁﬂé}/’\%fﬁZfﬁTﬁ I B i A
realised, less applicable variable selling expenses and ~ AJ & FHE M RIEET SRR ©

the anticipated costs to completion.

MEZBERRABRENRERINE
2 T AR - AR
EERAREXER o« REKE -
SZEYMFREBREDERGEYE

Development cost of properties comprises cost of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2023, land use rights of RZE-_=F+=-RA=+—H &

RMB225,141,000 (2022: RMB236,440,000) were in FEAM T EREAARE

Mainland China with lease terms of 40 to 70 years. 225,141,000 (ZE = —F : ARK
236,440,0007T) * HEHAR H40ZE70
E'E °

As at 31 December 2023, land use rights with net book
value of RMB25,531,000 (2022: RMB32,959,000) is under
development, and the construction cost is
RMB190,408,000 (2022: RMB104,356,000). The remaining
land use rights with net book value of RMB199,610,000
(2022: RMB203,481,000) has not been constructed.

RZE-_=F+=-_A=+—H" 'K
mFEAARE25531,000T (ZF
— 4 AR¥32959,0007T) ) +
A REDEERF BEKL S
AR #190,408,0007T (Z T = —4F :
AR #104,356,0007T) ° %E@ﬁﬁ
AR#199610000C (ZE ==
AE%mm&wwwm%Timﬁ
R ARER -
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13.

14.

INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

(b) Properties under development (Continued)

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

13. FERBRETYWE B

(b) BEPWE(E)
BRTFMEDDBERRBEE - B
FHAMEERREBER ZEZEHEY
ER—REEBHZRTK -

14. EWEZREERE

2023 2022

—ZEg-= T
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ET T AR TT
Trade receivables JEUNE 5 5RI8 1,139,523 1,090,423
Bills receivable JE W = 4R 5RI8 460,758 288,146
1,600,281 1,378,569
Less: provision for impairment R EEE (28,804) (15,423)
1,571,477 1,363,146

As at 31 December 2023, included in the trade receivables
were amounts due from related parties of RMB25,136,000
(2022: RMB13,984,000) (Note 38).

Due to the short-term nature of the trade and bills
receivables, their carrying amount is considered to be the
same as their fair value.

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade and bills receivables are expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. Trade and bills receivables
are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional, unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and bills receivables with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Details about the Group’s
impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance
are provided in Note 3.
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SIEHREIERERER T RBELFARE
25,136,000t (ZE = F : AR
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HREWE S RREFRR NS - &
FREERSRSEAFERR -

BWE 5 EZBEFA/ERARELBE
L E R R IRE P 2 IR - BN E
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—HILEFE

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 14. BEREZREERE @)
The Group generally grants credit terms of less than 90 days rEERTEAEAMEFP 2EEH—
to its customers in Mainland China and 120 days to its BROAR - MR THMBEREF 2EE
customers in other countries. The ageing analysis of the trade BAZR120A A » EINE 5 REBERIE (815
and bills receivables (including amounts due from related MEREWE ST < FIE)REER
parties of trading in nature) based on invoice date is as B2 BRE DT T -
follows:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB000
AR®FT AREFr
Within 30 days 308 A 953,266 755,648
31 to 90 days 31£90H 439,782 364,322
91 to 180 days 912180H 92,457 210,345
181 days to 1 year =S E:S 50,451 38,154
Over 1 year T8 LA E 64,325 10,100
1,600,281 1,378,569
Less: provision for impairment o R E R (28,804) (15423)
Trade and bills receivables — net R E 5 KRB FIA
— FH 1,571,477 1,363,146

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and bills receivables, as the Group has a large number of

customers.

Trade and bills receivables are denominated in the following

HRAEEEREASLES  WEKES M
EBEFEEETNEERR -

W E 5 R ERERAL AT ERFHE

currencies:

2023 2022

:g: = —=__
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥T T ARKET T
usb ETT 812,403 956,910
RMB AR & 670,109 361,761
VND WEE 98,442 52,996
HKD BIT 5,811 2,538
Others Hith 13,516 4364
1,600,281 1,378,569
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss

allowance for all trade and bills receivables.

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in net accrual of impairment losses on
financial assets in 2023 and 2022. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are written off when there is no

expectation of receiving additional cash.

Information about the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is

the carrying amount of trade and bills receivables.

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI

14. EWESZREBRIE (&)

15.

BER RO
NEBIRBEBT B REEFEOFREE L
HEFTERBEEEE - AFERKE S
NMEERZERBA S BHEEEE -

HERBEBREREBKERBER -
TR E__FBEIAEGFEME
EZBEEIEFEE - ETEHREKEEEIN
IR B - E B AE R R B B9 SRIB A B
8 o

FRARKEZNERRERAEEME
RS B R - SNERR N A R R A
IBERHES - RIBERY  AREEY
MEAEERRSEREE S REEHIA
BREfE -

BRAVEHTERAHS B AHA

Current — bills receivables

BIH — BUREB IR

2HUENEREE
2023 2022
—_E_= —=E-—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ETFTT AR F T
336,761 380,615

Bills receivables held both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling of these assets are classified as financial assets at

FVOCI.
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

16.

BRAFEFABENERMEE

2023 2022
—Eg-= —=ET-=

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥FT AR T

JERNER

Non-current

15,903 —

Equity investments for which the entity has not elected to
recognise fair value gains and losses through OCl are classified
as financial assets at FVPL.

See Note 42.9 for the remaining relevant accounting policies.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

During the year, the following gains were recognised in
the consolidated income statement:

ERTEEZZEFEEMEEBRERR
FERSEERZBAREDBEREA
FEAABRSENEREE -

BRAESBRSETER - F2HME429 -

(a) CERGEEUBERBEAZEHE

FR - U TREEREGRE W K
=2
2023 2022
—E-= - S —
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AREFr

Fair value gains on equity
investments at FVPL recognised in
other gains/(losses) — net
(Note 28)

KERER
= (B1at28)

Hiodess (BER) — %
VIR A FER AR
mARARE D FER

3,454 —

(b) Risk exposure and fair value measurements

Information about the Group's exposure to price risk is
provided in Note 3.1. For information about the
methods and assumptions used in determining fair
value see Note 3.3.

(b) EEmORAFEFE
BRASEEEGRESRBRANER S
B3 - BREEAFEMRA
ERBERHOER - BLREME33 -
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17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, OTHER 17. FANEHE - B4 HtEWER
RECEIVABLES AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES X = H B AR X
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ T AREFT
Prepayments, deposits, FEARE - RE
other receivables H {th & I BR =X
Receivables from disposal of subsidiaries  Fff B A &) H & FE UL BR =X
(Note (a)) (K17t @) 676,085 146,000
Receivables from disposal of land use rights 3 FAHE & ¥ 2% BB &
and property, plant and equipment R AR X
(Note (b)) (HtzE®)) 487,543 —
Value-added tax recoverable fERIE (BT 327,619 433,356
Prepaid income tax B F1SH 96,474 79,763
Prepayments for purchase of raw materials 8 B JR #7#} 69 78 (< 5118 87,974 136,732
Due from related parties (Note 38) JE WK B e 75 R IE (KT a2 38) 77,524 150,141
Deposits R& 60,234 49,482
Prepaid expenses TR 34,693 29,826
Rental income receivables WEYER S WA B
from investment properties BR 32,425 22,233
Receivables from sales of pollution PEV5 R B IR U AR X
discharge rights 14,559 —
Receivables from return of prepayments BB R TR RIR FE MR K
of equipment (Note (d) (H15() — 222,000
Other receivables H fth & U BR 3K 30,513 57,076
1,925,643 1,326,609
Less: provision for expected credit loss o TBEE B E R G
(Note (c)) (B3 () (40,453) (33,034)
value-added tax recoverable FERIEE TR A
impairment (Note (c)) (H15E) (58,899) (18,804)
Prepayments, deposits, other receivables — FE{NZIE « #Z& K EAb
— net JE W BR SOF RR 1,826,291 1,274,771
long-term receivables R Hi P BR =X
Receivables from disposal of subsidiaries M B A 7 & U BR 3N
(Note (a)) (K17t @) — 146,000
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17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Due to the short-term nature of the deposits and other
receivables, their carrying amount is considered to be the
same as their fair value.

Information about the impairment of deposits and other
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amount of deposits and other receivables.

Note (a):
The receivables from disposal of subsidiaries comprised:

— On 4 August 2023, a sale and purchase agreement, was entered
into between an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the seller, and a third party company, as the
purchaser, for the sale and purchase of the entire issued share
capital of Fashion Time Viet Nam Limited (the “Target”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, together
with the assignment of loan payable to the Group at the total
consideration of USD78,766,000 (after adjustment), which
comprised the consideration for the disposal of the equity
interest at USD12,776,000 and the assignment of the loan
payable to the Group of USD65,990,000 which shall be payable
by the purchaser to the seller within 12 months from the date
of the framework agreement. The gains on the disposal of
Fashion Time Viet Nam Limited were RMB93,441,000. As at
31 December 2023, the consideration receivables amounted to
USD74,836,000, equivalent to RMB530,085,000.

— On 13 October 2023, a sale and purchase agreement, was
entered into between an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the seller and a third party individual as the
purchaser, for the sale and purchase of the entire issued share
capital of Hongan Textile (Huaian) Co., Ltd. (the “Target”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The losses
on the disposal of Hongan Textile (Huaian) Co. Ltd. were
RMB1,352,000. The consideration for the disposal of the equity
interest is RMB7,000,000 which was received on 13 November
2023.

17. AERIE - BE > HBERER
KB EWARRR (4

HRRE REMERRRZEEME - &
FREERSR AR FERR -

BRERERAMEBYRR R ASEME
EREVEE R - SNE R K M R EL g 6 E
IBENEEST - KRG A AREmY
MR AEERRARE REMEKERX
FREE -

Hti @) -
MiE AR ERKRREE

— MRIE-_=ZFN\AWEAB ARQFMEEZ
BWBARHERBEFHE=FRNFHER
BEFREERNHUEARAR(TBEA
Al AREFAE2ERBAR) 26
BIRA EREZENALEENE
;o EIN BB - BR{E%78,766,000
EL(EAR) BREIERENNE
1277600 E T R ERENAEBNER
65,990,000 7T * 7R B HRIERp®EAR
BBt ZEAARNINTFES - LER
HHBEARRABAZHREZAARE
03,441,0007C e R_E-_=ZF+-_A=+
—H ' EIRRE S % 5748360003 T
(8% % AR #530,0850007T) °

— RIZE-—=F+A+=8 AR AHE
2EMBARHERAE HEE=FEAAE
AEITMEBRLRHE CEL)BRAT
(TBERR]  ARAAEEZEHBA
A EEEBTHRA ST EE R -
HET R4 CER) ERARIZEERA
AR 13520007 - HERENRESR
AR#70000007T ' ER T _=F+
—A+=BUKE -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-=F%# 153



m e ME RN (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

=

BT _—F+_A=+—HItEE

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
Note (a): (Continued)

— On 5 November 2021, a share transfer and assignment of loan
agreement, was entered into between the Company, as the
seller, and a third party, as the purchaser, for the sale and
purchase, of the entire issued share capital of Great Triumph
Investments Limited (the “Target”), a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, together with the assignment of
loan and dividend payable to the Company at the total
consideration of RMB810,387,000. The total consideration
comprised the consideration for the disposal of the equity
interest at RMB130,950,000, the consideration for the
assignment of the dividend payable to the Company of
RMB68,571,000 which shall be payable by the purchaser to the
Company within 12 months from the date of the framework
agreement, and the consideration for the assignment of the
loan payable to the Group of RMB610,866,000 which shall be
payable to the Group with four instalments by 1 December
2024 and bearing with interest at 5% per annum. And as a
security for the payment of the consideration relating to the
loan assignment, it was also agreed that the equity interest for
some subsidiaries of the Target shall be pledged in favour of
the Group until such consideration has been fully paid. As at
31 December 2023, the current portion of the consideration
outstanding amounting to RMB146,000,000 were included in
other receivables (2022: the current and non-current portion of
the consideration outstanding were RMB146,000,000 and
RMB146,000,000 respectively).

The net proceeds received on disposal of subsidiaries in 2023 were
RMB170,013,000 (2022: RMB186,764,000).

Note (b):

On 3 November 2023, an asset disposal agreement, was entered into
between Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co., Ltd., an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the seller
and Shaoxing Paojiang Venture Construction Development Co., Ltd.
(the “Purchaser”) as the purchaser for the sale and purchase of the
properties and land use rights located in Shaoxing, China at the total
consideration of RMB975,085,000.

As at 31 December 2023, the current portion of the consideration
outstanding were disclosed as other receivables amounting to
RMB487,543,000 and there is no non-current portion of the
consideration outstanding were disclosed as long-term receivables.

Note (c):

In 2023, the Group made an expected credit loss and value-added
tax recoverable impairment of RMB7,419,000 (Note 3.1) and
RMB40,095,000 (2022: RMB18,804,000) respectively. The Group
reversed expected credit loss of RMB1,589,000 in 2022 (Note 3.1).

Note (d):

All the receivables from return of prepayments of equipment have
been received by the Group between January 2023 and March 2023.
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REHIEWERR (&)
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PR A R B B R MBS AN B AR S
VRN EERERE RS BRE
B AR#810,387,0007T » AR EEIEH
EREAHNREARE1309500005T @ B
EEMARABRENREEARE
68,571,0007T (7B 3 B 77 IMEZE 175 3% B B
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BB BLrEELAEMERERARE
487,543,0007T * WA TS RERIERNEH 5
WEAERBAEURR

HtiE ) -

RZZZ=F  A5EEHRHREHEEERE
R ETURE A R 7,419,0007T (M5E3.1)
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18.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 18.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

EEFARTERURRERA S
ZEY

2023 2022

—EC-=F —EF=-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AR®BFT
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITER 66,208 111,647

Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEEY

— Cash at bank and in hand — RITRFERE 2,161,795 2,468,421
2,228,003 2,580,068

As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits with net book
amount of RMB11,168,000 (2022: RMB104,179,000),
RMB53,957,000 (2022: RMB6,010,000) and RMB1,083,000 (2022:
RMB757,000) were pledged as collateral for the Group's trade
and bills payable, the Group’s bank borrowings and
guarantees for operating activities, such as utilities, labor
wages, etc. respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no bank deposits
pledged as collateral for the Group’s construction projects
(2022: RMB701,000).

Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

%:z:_$+ A=+—8" %ﬁ@@
DRlAEANRE11,1680007T (ZF = —4F ¢
AR 104, 79000 JT) )\E?fﬁswsmoo
TL(ZZE==F: AR¥e6,0100007T) *
R #1,083,0000t (Z &2 = =4 : }\Eﬁ%
757,0007T) RERITIF R EA/EE#H - HBIE
AAEERMNESREERE - ALER
TEEUREEEE (08 RRE - 5
ITES)RBES2EMSR -

RZEBE-_=F+—_A=+—H ~&EEL
EIRITEREEEIRIEARNEEREELIE
BZzERR(ZZE=_—F : AR¥701,000
JT) °

EERRTERARRERREEEY
BATE®EHE

2023 2022
—Eg-= —=E-

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T AR%Fr

RMB AR 1,033,030 1,385,664

usb ET 793,463 989,224

VND WA 306,938 142,272

HKD BT 66,427 44,648

European Monetary Unit (‘EUR") BUNE¥ B (BT 3,275 5,519

Others H 24,870 12,741

2,228,003 2,580,068

Majority of the cash and cash equivalents are deposited with
banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The conversion of
the RMB denominated balances into other currencies and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China are subject to the
rules and regulations relating to foreign exchange control